Public Document Pack

AGENDA FOR EU’;W

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

Contact: Andrea Tomlinson

Direct Line: 0161 253 5133

E-mail: a.j.tomlinson@bury.gov.uk
Web Site: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Planning Control Committee
Councillors : J Mason, R Gold, T Cummings, S Haroon,
J Harris, I Schofield, G McGill (Chair), M Hayes,
G Keeley, T Rafiq, C Tegolo, K Thomas and D.Vernon
Dear Member/Colleague

Planning Control Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control
Committee which will be held as follows:-

Date: Tuesday, 21 January 2020

Place: Peel Room, Bury Town Hall

Time: 7.00 pm

Briefing If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require

briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the
Facilities: | appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the
related report should be contacted.

Notes:




AGENDA

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider
whether they have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if

so, to formally declare that interest.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 17 DECEMBER 2019 (Pages 1
- 4)

The Minutes of the last meeting held on 17 December 2019 are attached.
PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Pages 5 - 106)

Planning applications report attached.

SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA (Pages 107 - 118)

Supplementary agenda attached

DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 119 - 136)

A Report from the Head of Development Management on all delegated
planning decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control
Committee.

PLANNING APPEALS (Pages 137 - 142)

A report from the Head of Development Management on all Planning
Appeals decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control
Committee.

URGENT BUSINESS

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.



Agenda Item 3

Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting: 17 December 2019
Present: Councillor G McGill (in the Chair)
Councillors J Mason, R Gold, T Cummings, S Haroon,

I Schofield, G Keeley and T Rafiq

Also in
attendance: Councillor D Vernon

Public Attendance: 25 members of the public were present at the meeting.

Apologies for Absence:Councillor J Harris, Councillor M Hayes and Councillor
C Tegolo

PCCA1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Mason declared a personal and prejudicial interest in application
number 1 of item 4 (planning application 64093 relating to former Magistrates
Court, Tenters Street, Bury) as he had a family member that lived in close
proximity of the site. Councillor Mason stated that he would leave the meeting
during deliberation of the application.

PCC.2 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 12 NOVEMBER 2019
Delegated decision:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2019 be approved as a
correct record and signed by the Chair.

PCC.3 PLANNING APPLICATIONS

A report from the Development Manager was submitted in relation to various
applications for planning permission. Supplementary information was also
submitted in respect of application numbers 64093, 64778 and 64789.

The Committee heard representations from applicants and/or objectors in respect
of the applications submitted. This was limited to three minutes for each speaker.

Delegated decisions:

1. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following applications in
accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the
report and supplementary information submitted and subject to the conditions
included:-

64552 Rear of 85 Carr Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9EG Ramsbottom Ward:

Erection of 1 no. dwelling with vehicular access off Tanners Street

64570 69 Blackburn Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1WG Radcliffe — East
Ward

Page1l



Planning Control Committee, 17 December 2019

Change of use of former public house/retail unit to 2 no. 5 & 6 bed houses
of multiple occupation (HMO) (Class C4) with two storey rear extension and external
alterations.

64642 72 Park Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OFA — Sedgley Ward
Erection of 4 no. storey block of 9 no. flats with basement car parking and
Landscaping

64721 221 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 9HJ — Redvales Ward
Change of use from dwellinghouse (Class C3) to 7 person house in
multiple occupation (HMO)

64741 23 Hillsborough Drive, Bury, BL9 8LE — Unsworth Ward
Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of replacement dwelling

64778 Land adjacent to 7 Salmsbury Hall Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0O 9FG —
Ramsbottom Ward

Erection of 1 no. dwelling and detached garage

64787 — 27-29 Bridge Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9AD Ramsbottom Ward
Change of use from banking/financial services (Class A2) to restaurant &

cafe (Class A3), drinking establishment (Class A4) and 1 no. apartment (Class C3) with
internal alterations and construction of new principle entrance

64789 Land to south of Central Avenue & Keswick Drive, Bury

Redvales Ward

Erection of walls between 1.5m & 3.5m in height to form a flood defence

64816 121 Lowercroft Road, Bury, BL8 3PA — Church Ward
Change of use from dwellinghouse (Class C3) to residential care home

2. That the Committee be Minded to Approve the following application in
accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the
report and subject to the conditions included:-

Note: Councillor Mason left the meeting during consideration of the following item:
64093 Former Magistrates Court, Tenters Street, Bury, BL9 OHX — Bury East Ward:

Conversion of the existing building to 39 no. apartments and erection of 10
no. townhouses with associated landscaping works

PCC.4 SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA
PCC.5 DELEGATED DECISIONS

A report from the Development Manager was submitted listing all recent Planning
Application decisions made by Officers using delegated powers.

Delegated decision:
That the report be noted.

PCC.6 PLANNING APPEALS

Page 2



Planning Control Committee, 17 December 2019

A report from the Development Manager was submitted listing all planning appeal
decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee.

Delegated decision:

That the report be noted.

COUNCILLOR G MCGILL
Chair

(Note: The meeting started at 7.00 pm and ended at 8.40 pm)

Pages3



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Title Planning Applications

To: Planning Control Committee
On: 21 January 2020

By: Development Manager

Status: For Publication

Executive Summary

The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved.

My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports.

This report has the following implications

Township Forum/ Ward: Identified in each case.
Policy: Identified in each case.
Resources: Not generally applicable.

Equality Act 2010: All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for:

The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation;

The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and person who do not share it;

The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.

Human Rights: All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human
Rights Act 1998.

Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments.

Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could include
a person's home, and other land and business assets.

In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and
all material planning considerations, | have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based

Page 5



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council
under the Town & Country Planning Acts.

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes (without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on
it) a duty upon the Council to exercise its functions and have due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of its functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and
disorder in its area. In so doing and on making planning decisions under the Town and Country
Planning Acts, the Planning Control Committee shall have due regard to the provisions of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and its implications in the exercise of its functions.

Development Manager

Background Documents

The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith.
Certificates relating to the ownership.

Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties.
Responses from Consultees.

e A

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE.

Page 6



01 Township Forum - Ward: Bury East - Moorside App No. 64022

Location: Access road off Halsall Close, Gorses Quarry, Bury
Proposal: Increase in width of existing access track (incorporating a bridleway)
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:
02 Township Forum - Ward: Radcliffe - East App No. 64518
Location: Site at corner of Spring Lane & Bury Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26
2QX
Proposal: Erection of three storey block of 15 no. apartments with car parking, bin
storage and cycle storage with vehicular/pedestrian access from Bury
Road
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:
03 Township Forum - Ward: Bury East - Moorside App No. 64707
Location: Euro House, 30-32 Walmersley Road, Bury, BL9 6DP
Proposal: Change of use from shop (Class Al) to Restaurant (Class A3) with flue
and 4 no. air conditioning units at rear; New shop front
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:
04 Township Forum - Ward: Bury West - Church App No. 64766
Location: 16 Westbury Close, Bury, BL8 2LW
Proposal: Front porch extension and dormer extension at front
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:
05 Township Forum - Ward: Bury East - Redvales App No. 64790
Location: Land to west of Metrolink line at Warth Road; Land to west of Bury Road;

Land to east of Whitefield Road; Land to west of Hardy's Gate Bridge and
Land to north of York Street, Bury

Proposal: Proposal A - A series of sheet piled walls and concrete walls across 4 sites
Proposal B - Erection of an embankment and retaining wall at land to west
of Metrolink line at Warth Road

Recommendation: Split Decision Site N
Visit:
06 Township Forum - Ward: Prestwich - St Mary's App No. 64902
Location: Land adjacent to 152 Butterstile Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9TJ
Proposal: Erection of attached 2 storey building comprising of ground floor retail unit

with 1no. flat above

Page 7



Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:

Page 8



Ward: Bury East - Moorside ltem

Applicant: Mr Stewart Sivvery

Location: Access road off Halsall Close, Gorses Quarry, Bury

Proposal: Increase in width of existing access track (incorporating a bridleway)
Application Ref: 64022/Full Target Date: 31/05/2019
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

Description

The site

The application relates to an access track which is located within a semi rural area and is in
the Green Belt. The access track carries a bridleway and footpath reference 24BUR.

The access track starts from the junction of Greymont Road/Halsall Close/ Milbourne Road
and continues northwards towards Davis Farm and Further Davises Farms, following the
boundary of Gorses Quarry to the east. Gorses Quarry is a site of Nature Conservation
Interest, as defined in the Bury UDP and a Grade B Site of Biological Importance. To
clarify, the track runs along the boundary of Gorses Quarry but is not part of the quarry or
within the SBI.  There is a large residential estate which is known as the Limefield Estate
and the Limefield Brow Recreation field to the west of the access track.

The majority of the lower part of the track is made up of stone setts/cobbles and loose
stones and is potholed in parts and has a generally uneven surface. The track is bounded
by fencing which forms the rear garden boundaries of houses on Milbourne Drive and
Halsall Close at this lower end.

As the track continues northwards, the land opens out on either side to fields and the
surfacing changes to compressed earth and compacted stone/rubble, with loose stones in
parts and is also fairly uneven in places. Approximately halfway up the track, a steep
banking forms the eastern boundary and the boundary with Gorses Quarry.

It is part of the banked area to which the application relates and where engineering works
have been carried out to widen the access track to provide a passing place without planning
permission. Approximately 130m of total length of track has been widened in several
separate parts and between 1m to 2.5m of banking has been removed.

The applicant states that the works were carried out without the understanding that planning
permission would be required, and were in response to vehicular access difficulties for
those residing at Davis Farm and the conflicts which arose with other users of the track
including walkers and horseriders. This caused safety issues for users.

The works have resulted in the removal of a stretch of vegetation and trees and have
caused the embankment to become unstable in parts. Tree roots from those that remain
have become exposed and now protrude from the side of the embankment. The works
have also caused minor landslides of earth and stones to fall into the access track which at
times of heavy rainfall, are being washed down the track and surface water carrying
deposits washes onto Halsall Close and Greymont Road.

The application has been submitted retrospectively and seeks to implement a scheme of
ecological mitigation and re-profiling/stabilising works.

The application process

Following Enforcement processes, the application initially proposed the regularisation of

works for the widening of the track and included some ecological mitigation proposals, the
Page 9

01



re-surfacing of the track and a drainage channel. The application was submitted April 2019.
The application was assessed by the LPA and consultees it was considered that the
proposed scheme did not satisfactorily address the works which had been carried out.

The scheme was subsequently revised in August 2019. The changes involved revised
landscaping proposals, an ecological mitigation plan for the track and Gorses Quarry,
re-grading of parts of the path and a drainage scheme.

The amendments included proposals outside the application site and from consultee
feedback, the works to re-profile the track surface and incorporate drainage channels

would cause more harm than good for users by making the track less stable underfoot for
horses and easier to drive a vehicle, potentially encouraging faster speeds causing highway
safety issues.

Following discussions with GMEU and the LPA, the applicant has sought to address the
previous objections and concerns and the application has been further revised resulting in
the submission of a final scheme which is under consideration in this report. The scheme
seeks to stabilise/re-profile the embankment and provide ecological mitigation measures to
the affected areas of the track.

The application proposals

The area of affected embankment would be re-graded to reduce its steepness and the toe
of the banking re-profiled and backfilled with locally derived soil of a free draining type. A
geotextile or similar non-woven bonded material would then be laid over the infill to prevent
any loose stone or earth run-off into the track. The re-profiling and infill works would
essentially reduce in width part of the track which had been originally widened. The
re-profiled bank would then be sown with a grassland seed mix, and existing vegetation
would also naturally re-seed and re-establish itself. Trees which currently exist would be
retained.

To clarify the application description and the status of the access track and the bridleway,
the works involve the widening of an access track which carries a bridleway. The width of
the bridleway has not changed - it is the access track which carries the bridleway which has
been altered. The classification of the bridleway as a bridleway remains unchanged.

A bridleway is defined as a route which may be travelled by foot, on horseback, leading a
horse or on a bicycle. Anyone driving a vehicle will require a private right to use the
bridleway. Whether the applicant/residents of the properties at the top of the track have a
'right of access' to use the bridleway is a private matter and not a material planning
consideration. It is stated that there is such a right to use the track for access purposes.
It is likely that such a right exists and the Council has no reason to doubt this is the case.

The application has therefore been described as 'Increase in width of existing access track
(incorporating a bridleway)'.

Gorses Quarry

Unlawful works have also been carried out to land which forms part of Gorses Quarry which
is located to the east of the access track (outside the current application site). The works
involved the material change of use of the land for the parking and storage of motor vehicles
and the associated clearance and groundworks to facilitate the use by the deposition of
materials to form hardstanding.

The unlawful works are already subject to enforcement action which is currently being taken
and are the subject to an enforcement notice which is separate to this planning application.
To date, the applicant has been responsive, stopped works, removed the vehicles and has
been proactive in the submission of this application, and through discussions with the LPA
and GMEU, a restoration package suitable given the ecological implications.

The enforcement notice action requires the cessation of the use of the land for parking
vehicles and the restoration of the land in accordance with ecological recommendations.

Page 10



Relevant Planning History
63404 - Increase in width of existing bridleway - Withdrawn - 8/2/2019

Publicity
Neighbours were notified of the application by letter on 15/4/2019.

Neighbours were re-notified of an amended scheme by letter on 30/8/2019.

Some 245 letters were sent on 16/12/2019 to notify neighbours and those who had made
previous representations of the scheme which is the subject of this report.
A full list of those notified can be viewed on the public file.

A total of 153 letters of objection have been received to the application.

Two letters of support and one comment have been made.

A full list of the comments and objections made to the superseded schemes (described
above) are available to view on the public file.

The objections which are reported below relate only to the current proposal which is being
considered in this application.

« There is no statement on the authorities planning web site or the sent out paper work to
objectors as to what this implies to, so the application is null and void.

* The existing road leading to the bridal way path is not suitable to take any further traffic;
especially towed caravans etc. rumoured to be the reason for the application.

« Considerable risk already from existing traffic more is definitely not advisable and safe.

e Theissue is simply comply with the two constraints and use the enforcement powers
against the applicant to repair the vandalism and destruction of the area.

e ltis still unclear as to why the application is being made and the continued resubmission
in an attempt to make legal the work that has already been done is frustrating.

« Damage to the environment and the general concern about what the widening will
ultimately lead to in terms of causing further damage to the countryside and distress to
local residents

e Strongly disagree with the comments made by Roman Summer Associates regarding
there being no related drainage problems with this proposal . We have a river running
down Greymont Road this morning. | have yet again had to clear the drain outside my
house .

* The documents submitted indicate that further excavation work will be done to reduce
the angle of the incline in Section CC - Tree Constraints Plan.

« Itis unclear whether the retrospective application has been agreed with some tidying up
as outlined in the submitted additional documents or is returning the lane back to its
former state (as best it can) following the failure of the application.

* Our garden gate opens directly onto this bridleway - we consider the mitigation
measures are insufficient to rectify the damage done.

e Excavating an embankment to a height up to 8ft and felling mature trees in an area of
ecological significance cannot be considered modest.

* Whilst drainage related problems did exist prior to the works they have been
exacerbated by the works and in particular the silt and stones released have blocked the
existing storm drain and caused sediment to be carried on to Greymont road as far
down as the junction with Lowes Road - this is a traffic and safety hazard.

* No further work should be carried out other than to add more habitat for the wildlife
residing in that area not less.

e The land is green belt, the land is significant due to it being the habitat of the great
crested newt and other ecologically important wildlife.

e Theroad is not a hazard to any walker, horse rider or cyclist.

« Even though the applicant has allegedly expressed his regret at the work already carried
out, the application submitted still doesn't show any landscape details where he has
excavated and widened the bridleway adjacent the field/dry stone walling in the
ownership of Walmersley golf club. Any work to be done should improve the

Page 11



appearance of the area or match what was there to visually satisfy the public, especially
as the applicant doesn't own this land. Can you confirm the applicant isn't going to
excavate this verge as he has done everywhere else as it will weaken my fence line.

« The widening of the track will lead to increase in traffic flow if permission is given to
widen the track;

* Noise will be greatly increased with HGV's accessing the site.

« Safety of horseriders will be seriously affected.

« Already breakdown and recovery vehicles are using the path to bring scrap vehicles to
the farm site.

* Planning officers should take action against this flagrant disregard for the Countryside
Act. Its a disgrace to let this be allowed to happen again.

« Widening of the bridleway has been carried out without permission and is unnecessary.
It has always been a bridleway, NOT a road. It has allowed access to the dwellings for
all the 65 years | have lived here, without problems.

¢ Widening would undermine the fences and vegetation of gardens backing onto the
bridleway.

« Dry stone walls have been moved without permission and have not been re-built safely.
They must be re-instated in the previous position.

« This smacks of a bigger agenda which is underhand and to the detriment of the area.

« If this were to happen elsewhere and in more affluent areas it would soon be brought to
a stop - why are the council more lenient in our area.

« Disappointed in the lack of enforcement action

* This damage has been occurring over a number of years with total INACTION by
BMBC. There is satellite footage to support this fact. It's to be one rule for one and one
for another.

Those who have expressed an interest have been informed of the Planning Control
Committee meeting.

Statutory/Non -Statutory Consultations

Traffic Section - No objection.

Borough Engineer - Drainage Section - No objection.

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objection. Should unforeseen
contamination be suspected or found, a risk assessment and any remediation proposals will
be required to be submitted to the LPA.

Public Rights of Way Officer - No objection. Proposals for the surface remaining after
the embankment works have been completed will be required

Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - No objection subject to the submission of a
methodology for the remediation works and to ensure the protection of Protected Species.

Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent has agreed with pre-start conditions

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
EN1/1 Visual Amenity

EN1/3 Landscaping Provision

EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk

ENG6/2 Sites of Nature Conservation Interest LNR's

ENG6/3 Features of Ecological Value

EN7/3 Water Pollution

EN7/4 Groundwater Protection

EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting

OoL1 Green Belt

OL1/5 Mineral Extraction and Other Development in the Green Belt
oL6 Multi-Functional Countryside

OoL6/1 New Uses and Development of the Countryside

RT1/1 Protection of Recreation Provision in the Urban Area

Page 12



RT3 Recreation in the Countryside

RT3/1 Protection of Existing Recreation Prov in the Countryside
RT3/3 Access to the Countryside
HT2 Highway Network

HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict
Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Policies

Chapter 13 of the NPPF considers development in the Green Belt.

Paragraph 143 states that inappropriate development in the Green Belt is, by definition,
harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in Very Special
Circumstances (VSC).

In chapter 144, it is stated VSC's will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt
by reason of inappropriateness , and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly
outweighed by other considerations.

Paragraph 146 states that some forms of development are not inappropriate provided they
preserve openness and do not conflict with the purposes of including land within it. One
such development relates to point (b) and the carrying out of engineering operations.

UDP Palicies
OL1 - Green Belt - The fundamental aim is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land
permanently open - the most important attribute of Green Belts is their openness.

OL1/5 - Mineral Extraction and Other Development in the Green Belt - This includes
engineering and other operations and the making of any material in the change of use of
land, for example, car parks or other areas of hardstanding. Such development will not be
considered inappropriate if it maintains openness and does not conflict with the purposes of
including land in the Green Belt.

OL6 - Multi-Functional Countryside - In considering development proposals, the Council
should seek to ensure that the countryside is used and managed so as to minimise conflicts
and balance the benefits it offers to the community as a whole, with the need to protect the
value of the countryside for its own sake.

RT3/1 - Protection of existing Recreation provision in the Countryside will not allow
development where it would result in the loss of, or prejudice the use of areas
predominantly used for recreation outside the urban areas. Any proposal for recreational
use of the countryside should not result in damage to the environment or areas of ecological
value (ie SBI's), nor alter the character of the landscape or affect the enjoyment of the area
by others.

RT3/3 - Access to the Countryside seeks to improve and extend opportunities for all to gain
access to the countryside and includes maintaining, improving and where appropriate,
extending the existing network of Public rights of Way, footpaths, bridleway and cycleways,

OL6/1 - New Uses and Development of the Countryside has regard to the effect of
proposals on the landscape character and diversity, nature conservation, agricultural land

Page 13



and holdings and recreational value. This policy seeks to encourage, mediate and control,
where necessary, land uses in the countryside so as to enhance the quality of life and
conserve its interest and setting.

ENG6/2 - Site of Nature Conservation Interest (Local Nature Reserves and Grade B and C
Sites of Biological Importance) - Planning permission will not be granted for development
which would damage either directly or indirectly, the nature conservation interests of sites of
particular ecological significance unless conditions can be imposed that would acceptably
mitigate those impacts. With all sites of nature conservation interest, it may be necessary
to consider the need for the establishment of 'buffer zones' where development proposals
could have an impact on protected sites. In such instances, development proposals will be
required to make provision for adequate protection measures, such as open land strips,
planted areas or screening the boundary of sites of nature conservation interests.

ENG6/3 - Features of Ecological Value - The effects of land use changes on existing features
of ecological or wildlife value will be taken into account when assessing development
proposals. The Council will seek to negotiate with developers, where appropriate, to
mitigate the potential effects of development on features of ecological value.

HT2 - Highway Network - The present highway network of roads, footpaths and associated
infrastructure will be maintained and selectively improved, with preference given to schemes
which include road safety improvements, improve the flow of traffic and improve or protect
the environment.

Principle - In considering the principle, the proposed development would be assessed as
an engineering operation under part b) of para 146 of the NPPF and under UDP Policy
OL1/5 and acceptability would be dependant on whether the engineering works preserve
the openness of the Green Belt.

It is considered that the engineering works would not constitute inappropriate development
in the Green Belt and would comply with point b) in para 146 of the NPPF. The works have
involved the excavation and removal of earth which formed an embankment and boundary
to the access track. At the widest point, approximately 2.5m has been removed, with up to
1m wide removed at the narrowest point. The mitigation proposals to regrade the
embankment to a profile not dissimilar to its former state and infill part of the lower slope
would preserve the openness of the Green Belt. The proposals to re-seed the
embankment along this stretch and over time, self seeding of vegetation would enhance the
area further. Effectively, the works largely re-instate.

Views of the Green Belt from the west and from both approached along the track have not
been interrupted by the works that have been carried out and it is considered that with the
mitigation measures proposed, there would not be any harm causing any detrimental impact
on the special character of the Green Belt.

It is therefore considered in principle, the works and mitigation proposals would constitute
an engineering operation which would preserve the openness of the Green Belt and not
conflict with the purposes of including land within it, and as such would not be inappropriate
development. The development is therefore considered acceptable and would comply with
the principles of point b) of para 146 of the NPPF and UDP Policies OL1 and OL1/5.

Ecological mitigation proposals
For clarification purposes, the application involves the area of land affected by the widening

of the track only and does not relate to the wider Gorses Quarry.  The application site
does not form part of the SBI nor include any former quarry land.

The engineering works have resulted in some loss of vegetation and ecology along this
stretch of the track. Trees have been removed and some of those remaining have exposed
roots and are now overhanging the track due to its erosion. The works which have been

Page 14



carried out have been discussed in the report above in some detail.

This package of proposed measures have been formulated and developed following the
detailed discussion between the applicant's Ecology Consultant and Greater Manchester
Ecology Unit (GMEU), and include meetings on site between the parties.

The application proposes a scheme to mitigate the works that have been carried out and
are two-fold - an Ecological Mitigation Scheme for Habitat and Ecological Mitigation Scheme
for Protected Species.

Ecological Mitigation Scheme - Habitats

The embankment has been left in an exposed and untreated state. It is an eyesore visually
and dangerous in parts, and has altered the character of the once vegetated and natural
landscape.

The objective of the mitigation scheme is to re-establish the grassland and landscaping
along the track and stabilise the banking.  This would be done through re-profiling the
slope and backfilling the toe of the slope with locally sourced soil and a geotextile or similar
material would be laid over the infilled area to drain naturally. A top layer of slope would
be left in an uncompacted state to form the basis of the seed bed which when established
would further stabilise the bank.

The seeds would be sown in the Spring and carried out by hand. It is also proposed that
annual monitoring would take place annually over a five year period, and undertaken by a
suitably experienced ecologist if approved. This would be conditioned. It is also likely that
heathland species already growing in the area would self-seed in these parts and naturally
establish on the re-profiled soil, further stabilising the bank.

The trees that have remained along this stretch of the track would be retained and a
condition would ensure their protection whilst the mitigation works are being carried out.

Ecological Mitigation scheme - Protected Species

Records show that Gorses Quarry is an area for Great Crested Newts, a European
Protected Species. It is proposed that the re-profiling works would take place under a
watching brief and with regard to Reasonable Avoidance Measures which are outlined in the
submitted Ecological Statement. The measures would ensure that no harm would be
caused to the GCN or their habitat. This approach has been supported by GMEU.

Summary of mitigation proposals

The ecological mitigation measures would offer a positive solution to rectify the works which
have been carried out. The proposals would not only stabilise and re-profile the
embankment to make it safer, but seek to restore this part of the track back to a profile and
visual cover similar to its previous state, providing both ecological and visual improvements.
The mitigation proposals for protected species would ensure no harm would be caused to
the wildlife in the area and this would be a condition of the application in the event of an
approval.

It is therefore considered that the proposals would satisfactorily address the works which
have been carried out and would comply with UDP Policies EN6, EN6/2, EN6/3 , RT3/1 and
OL6/1.

Drainage - The track has historically experienced a steady and continuous flow of surface
water which runs off the land to the east and from the top of the track itself, flowing
southwards and sometimes onto the public highway at the bottom which forms the junction
of Halsall Close and Greymont Road. Loose stones and mud can also be washed down
the track particularly in times of heavy rainfall and on to the public highway. There is also
an underground spring which is located approximately half way along the track, south to
where the works have been carried out, which also adds to the existing run off.

Page 15



A number of the objections made by local residents have referred to the increase in surface
water run-off which is now experienced and has been caused by the works and which has
exacerbated the drainage problems in the area, resulting in significantly large amounts of
loose stones and mud now being carried onto the highway. Photographic evidence has
been submitted by residents to demonstrate as such and complaints have been made to the
highway department.

Since the works have been carried out, the embankment has become unstable and in time
of particularly heavy rainfall, the erosion has caused more stones and earth to be carried
down the track and onto the roads.

Several options to provide channel drains and storage/soakaway manholes were
considered by the applicant but this would pose several problems. Considerable work
would have to be carried out to the track to provide the drainage channels and their
efficiency would actually be capable of working as there are significant sections of large
stone setts and cobbles which would have to be removed/re-profiled or covered over.
Loose gravel would also quickly fill the drainage channels, causing the water and other
debris to run off down the track in any event.

The re-surfacing of the track would also facilitate an easier route for the vehicles to travel
along, which could encourage faster speeds and worsen the safety of the other users of the
track such as horse riders, which has been a concern raised by a number of objectors and
previously the Rochdale and Bury Bridleways Association, where horses hoofs can become
trapped. The ‘formailsation' of the track would also change the character of the track from
a rural countryside lane to one of a more urban form which would be considered
inappropriate within this Green Belt setting.

The works to re-profile the embankment and fill the bottom part of the slope with a free
draining granular infill which would be covered with a geotextile or similar material would
ease the surface water run off and stabilise the slope to reduce and control the movement
of loose stones and earth. The landscaping proposal and self seeding which has already
taken place along the track, together with the retention of the trees along this route would
also better the situation, absorbing water in the vicinity.

There would still be surface water run-off experienced along the track during times of
rainfall. However, the amount of water and rate of flow would become more moderated,
thereby lessening flooding of the roads at the bottom of the track and reducing the amount
of material which would be carried.

All things considered, this is an unmade and rural track in a countryside location. The
condition of such tracks tend to have uneven and broken up surfaces with water trickling
from higher ground and from under ground springs, which can carry debris. This is
commonly found in rural settings.

It is therefore considered that the proposed works to the embankment would offer the most
appropriate resolution to improve the drainage situation.
The Drainage Engineer has raised no objections to the proposals.

The development would therefore comply with UDP Policies EN5/1, EN7/3, EN7/4 and the
principles of the NPPF.

Status of the bridleway - The access is a designated bridleway, Bridleway Number 24,
Bury. It also serves as an access to the owners of properties and land that lies along it.

A Bridleway can be defined as "A highway over which the public have the following, but no
other, rights of way, that is to say, a right of way on foot and a right of way on horseback or
leading a horse, with or without a right to drive animals of any description along the
highway" (see section 329(1) of the HA80).

Page 16



Under s34 of the Road Traffic Act 1988 (as amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way
Act 2000) it is a criminal offence to drive a mechanically propelled vehicle on a footpath,
bridleway or restricted byway without lawful authority.

There is no evidence to suggest that the landowner does not have access along the route. It
would seem an odd situation for a landowner not to have access to their own land and is a
situation repeated elsewhere in Bury and the country with landowners having private rights
of access along public rights of way.

However, criminal matters are dealt with by the police and the legal system. Private rights
of access is not a material consideration under planning law.

For clarification, the application has been described as 'Increase in width of access track'
(carrying a bridleway) as it is the track which has been widened and not the bridleway itself.
This does not change the status of the bridleway along this route which remains as
Bridleway Number 24, Bury.

Highway safety issues - The applicant has stated that the works to widen the track have
been carried out to alleviate the conflict between users, and specifically between those who
travel by vehicle to the properties at Davis Farm at the top of the track, and
walkers/horseriders and cyclists.

The track has been widened by between 1m and 2.5m along a length of track of
approximately 130m. The intention of the widening works was not to facilitate additional
traffic but to secure a safer access route through a short stretch of the track and to improve
the safety of the different users of the track.

The proposed plans show that with the mitigation works proposed to re-profile and re-grade
the slope, parts of the affected track would be narrowed to a width not dissimilar to its
original state. There would however, be a widened area (5.04m wide) formed at one of the
bends in the track (just over half way up). This would provide an area where vehicles and
other users could safely pass each other, without the fear of accident or the need to reverse
along a narrow stretch of road which would be blind to other users. Such passing places,
appropriately located, are commonly found within rural and countryside settings, and enable
different users of countryside routes to travel safely.

The proposed development would provide one such passing space at a place where the
track bends and where there would be more conflict of use than the stretch to the south
where the track runs relatively straight and users can be viewed from a distance, enabling
users to pull in to the side or slow down and stop completely.

It is therefore considered that from a highway safety perspective, the widened area would
be of benefit to the users of the track.

It is also proposed to retain the existing surface which is setted, cobbled and generally
uneven for the most part and discourages vehicles from travelling at speed. From a
highway safety point of view, this is the best solution.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would be acceptable and would
comply with UDP Policies HT2 and HT6/2.

Response to objectors

e Carrying out works without the necessary planning permission is not illegal in itself.

« The LPA is required to assist an applicant where it can remedy unauthorised works and
this includes the ability to submit applications retrospectively and dealing with them
(article 35(2) TCP (General Development Management Procedure)(England) Order
2015. " The Planning Act 1990 makes it clear in s179 that "it shall be a
defence [for the perpetrator] to show that he did everything he could be expected to

Page 17



secure compliance" - this can include discussions, actions and including the submission
of an application under s73A (retrospective - ie planning permission for development
already carried out). The applicant has been responsive in this respect and
discussions have been on-going up to this time of presenting the application before the
Planning Committee.

» Itis considered a simple refusal of the planning application would not have assisted in
any positive recourse or solutions. The LPA has worked with the applicant to progress
proposals which would provide the best and most positive solution to the situation, and
to the benefit of both users of the track and local residents. The LPA's views were to
try to re-instate as much as possible the former position/state of the land and this has
manifested within the application.

e There is a current Enforcement Notice for the works which have been carried out to the
works at Gorses Quarry. This is a matter separate to the planning application.

» The works which have been carried out have resulted in a maximum of 2.5m extra width
at a very short distance. The other affected areas have been widened between 1m and
2.5m. The works sought to secure a safer route for the different users of the track and
not carry additional traffic. The condition of the surface of the track itself and that it
would remain as an unmade and uneven surface does not facilitate the fast movement
of vehicles.

» This application is not in connection to any proposals for development at Gorses quarry.
The application is for the track widening works only.

« The land on which the works have been carried is in the ownership of the applicant.

< All other objections have been addressed in the above report.

Statement in accordance wi th Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Develop  ment
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2 015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. This decision relates to drawings/reports - Rachel Hacking Ecology, Ecological
Statement for track at Gorses Quarry,dated 14th November 2019; Specification for
grass establishment Gorses Quarry Rev B 18/11/19 by Penny Bennett Landscape
Architects; Landscape Layout Lower Section 433/04 Rev A - and the development
shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings/reports hereby
approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

2. Within one month of the date of this decision, a timetable and methodology for the
implementation of the development hereby approved shall be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The timetable shall include:

* a maintenance programme and a five year management plan for the annual
monitoring of the approved grassland establishment,

« details of the remaining surfacing which would not be backfilled or re-profiled,
« and a method statement detailing the control and or eradication for himalayan
balsam and variegated yellow archangel along the areas generated by the

track widening.
The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the
approved timetable and the approved methodologies.
Page 18



Reason. To secure the satisfactory implementation of the development in relation
to ecology and appropriate surfacing and control of invasive species, hereby
approved pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies EN6/2 - Sites of
Nature Conservation Interest (Local Nature Reserves and Grade B and C Sites of
Biological Importance), EN6/3 - Features of Ecological Value, EN8/2 - Woodland
and Tree Planting, EN9 - Landscape, OL6 - Multi-Functional Countryside OLG6/1 -
New Uses and Development of the Countryside, RT3/3 - Access to the
Countryside and HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment of the NPPF.

3. Where during any works on site, unforeseen contamination is suspected or found,
or contamination is caused, works on the site shall cease and the Local Planning
Authority shall be notified immediately. The developer shall then produce a risk
assessment and submit remediation proposals, if required, for approval to the
Local Planning Authority. On approval of the remediation strategy, the
development shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details and
process including any required timescales.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy
Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

4, The trees indicated on the approved plan 'Landscape Layout Lower Section
433/04 Rev A' shall be retained and shall be protected throughout the
development hereby approved in accordance with BS 5837:2012 "Trees in relation
to design, demolition and construction”. The development shall not commence
unless and until the measures required by the British Standard are implemented
and all measures required shall remain in situ until the development has been
completed.

Reason. To avoid the loss of trees which are of amenity value to the area pursuant
to Policies EN6/3 - Features of Ecological value, EN8/2 - Woodland and Tree
Planting and OL6/1 - New Uses and Development of the Countryside of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment of the NPPF.

5. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
Ecological Mitigation scheme - Habitats - in the Ecological statement for track at
Gorses quarry by Rachel Hacking Ecology dated 14th November 2019 and
Specification for grass establishment of Gorses Quarry by Penny Bennett
Landscape Architects Rev B 18/11/19 . Annual monitoring of the grassland
establishment shall thereafter take place for up to five years. Should the seed
mixture fail to establish correctly, plug plants of specific grasses shall be procured
and planted under ecological supervision.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
visual amenity pursuant to Policies EN6/3 - Features of Ecological value, EN8/2 -
Woodland and Tree Planting and OL6/1 - New Uses and Development of the
Countryside of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving
and enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF.

6. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
Ecological Mitigation scheme - Protected Species - inthe Ecological statement
for track at Gorses quarry by Rachel Hacking Ecology dated 14th November 2019.
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 — Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 —
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section
15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

For further information on the application please contact Jennie Townsend on 0161
253-5320
Page 19



Viewpoints

oL gl TR
20 18 o )
&21] EEl

Davises Farm @

/

pp——————
~r===

::
A
\ . |
ve | I I
JEN
//
N 7

Gorses

Quarry
(dis)

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

N
APP. NO 64022 J
wW=E)=E
ADDRESS: Access Road off Halsall Close
Gorses Quarry

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

Bl

COUNCIL

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 20




64022

Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 21



64022

Photo 3

Photo 4

Page 22



64022

Photo 5

Page 23



¢ abed

| 4/ i TN

Aeato be seaded with grazs Existing herb layer - T2 "\ Existing frees to be retained, refer to Tree Constrainis Plan and Arboricultural o s ™ 5 -
[ seed mix EM7 Meadow grass ) . by Trae & L1

mixure for sandy soll by PP | H W | T ]

/
—”

gate Seads \
www.wildseed.co.uk

‘ See drawing 433/05 which shows extent of re-seeding of area east of lane
| T1sivepbion A
L= 'T2T\|}rkey oak |

. o ' Sycamopre

S i

Top of slope if reprofiled to 1:2 as
Engineers recommendations

o

”\.-\GZOak

rExisting slope

*Pull-in space for passing
vehicles and refuge for
pedestrians and horse

3.82
‘ rFree draining granular fill at toe of slope /
‘at1 :1.5, vertical: horizontal as specified by

Engineers riders
rLocally derived soil forming seed bed
rCamber altered on bridleway so
| water falls away from toe of slope
I Existing slope -Free draining granular fill at toe of

. | slope at 1:1.5, vertical: horizontal as

specified by Engineers

SECTION A-A  Including Engineers recommendations

rExisting camber
falls away from toe
Iof slope

1:2 re-profiled slope as
recommended by Engineers

-Existing slope SECTION B-B Including Engineers recommendations

[Existing camber falls away from toe of slope

| SECTION C-C Including Engineers recommendations

e _ TTTurkey oak

‘ | Locally derived soil forming seed bed

Note:

Meadow grass mix sown to help
stabilise newly pr'imed slopes and
create En open matrix which can be
colonised by heather and other
heathtand spacles.l

\
Goat willow

‘

Tg}l‘urke){ oak b

NOTE:

Section numbers refer to sections
described in Engineers report:
Stope Stability Investigation and

©Observational Report by Thomasans,

Refer also to Ecological Mitigation
Statement by Rachel Hacking
Ecalogy.

Project:

LANE LEADING TO GORSES
QUARRY

OFF HALSALL CLOSE
LIMEFIELD

LANCASHIRE

BLO6TY

Agent for Client:
ROMAN SUMMER ASSOCIATES
LTD

Rev A wmendment to ased mix PB 18/11/18

Penny Bennett
Landscape Architects

Mt Bororio. Somumdey Rued
Lovaashia OLIA B
Ta01T 012500

Job e
Lane to Gorees Quany

Drngtto
433/04
Drewng it

Landscaps Layout Lower Section

Seals. [
1400 @ A3 12ans /‘;




Ward: Radcliffe - East Item 02

Applicant:  Bolton at Home
Location: Site at corner of Spring Lane & Bury Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2QX

Proposal:  Erection of three storey block of 15 no. apartments with car parking, bin storage and
cycle storage with vehicular/pedestrian access from Bury Road

Application Ref: 64518/Full Target Date: 18/11/2019
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

Description

The application site is bounded by Spring Lane, Bury Road and Pine Street. The site was
previously occupied by St Mary and St Philip RC Church, which was demolished in 2009.
The site has been cleared and is currently vacant.

There are residential properties to the north and west and there is a social club and
residential properties to the east. There are public gardens and residential properties to the
south.

The proposed development involves the erection of a single building containing 15
apartments. The proposed building would be 3 storeys in height with a flat roof and would
be located along the frontage with Spring Lane. The building would be constructed from
brick and render and would provide 15 apartments for affordable rent.

The proposed development would be accessed from Pine Street and a car park of 12
spaces would be provided. There would be pedestrian access from Bury Road.

Relevant Planning History
None relevant. The site was cleared in 2009.

Publicity

The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 19 August and a press
notice was published in the Bury Times on 29 August 2019. Site notices were posted on 21
August 2019.

Councillor Rhyse Cathcart has objected and raised the following issues:

e The development is a welcome improvement of on the current wasteland, however its
current design impacts significantly on the running of neighbouring businesses and
needs to be redrawn.

* Would like to see parking lots incorporate Electric Vehicle charge points to future proof
the building.

« Adequate bin storage facilities will be required as multi-residential properties like these
often result in overflowing bins and additional waste that results in fly-tipping.

* Radcliffe already has a number of House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) and Supported
accommodation properties that are frequently attended by public services from Health
and Criminal Justice. Many of the residents in HMO are vulnerable and have multiple
complex needs including mental health, substance misuse and or histories of domestic
abuse. HMO residents are targets because of the vulnerabilities.

« | believe that this residential property will further increase pressures on stretched public
resources.

* The property is a Key Strategic Sit(le:)géag ¥V50u|d be better used for commercial use such



as a restaurant/bar that would support the regeneration of the town centre.

2 letters have been received from the occupiers of St Marys Social Club, 3 Bury Road,

which have raised the following issues:

* The proposed plans breach our right of access, which was granted in 1935. The access
is on Spring Lane for the cellar drop to ensure deliveries can be received. This area is
due to be planted.

« The committee were pleased to hear of the plans for the development and see it as a
positive, but the access road is vital for the functioning of the club.

* Loss of privacy and natural light.

« The junction of Spring Lane and Bury Road is a busy one with accidents on a regular
basis. The access to the development could add to this.

* Are there meant to be parking for 15 cars? What if people have more than 1 car?

e There are existing problems with parking overspill from the Metrolink station and a
commercial garage park vehicles all around Pine Street and Schofield Street.

« The more affordable homes are built in Radcliffe, the more strain it puts on the already
struggling infrastructure.

* Something should be done with the land, maybe a slip road off Bury Road would be
better to help with traffic flow.

The neighbouring properties have been notified of revised plans on 19 December.
No representations received.

The objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting.

Statutory/Non -Statutory Consultations

Traffic Section - Comments awaited in the Supplementary Report.

Drainage Section - No response.

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of
conditions relating to contaminated land.

Environmental Health - Air Quality - No objections, subject to the inclusion of condition
relating to a scheme for electric vehicle charging points.

Urban Renewal - No response.

Performance & Housing Strategy - No response.

Children's Services - No response.

Waste Management - No response.

Environment Agency - No response received.

Designforsecurity - No objections - measures in CIS should be provided.

United Utilities - No objections, subject to inclusion of conditions relating to foul and
surface water drainage.

Electricity North West Ltd - No response received.

GM Fire Service - No response received.

GM Archaeological Advisory Service - No objections.

Pre-start Conditions - Awaiting confirmation from the agent that pre-commencement
conditions are acceptable.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

H1/2 Further Housing Development

H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development
H4/1 Affordable Housing

EN1/1 Visual Amenity
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision

ENZ2 Conservation and Listed Buildings
EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk

ENG6 Conservation of the Natural Environment
ENG6/3 Features of Ecological Value

Page 26



EN7 Pollution Control

EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution

EN7/5 Waste Water Management

RT2/2 Recreation Provision in New Housing Development
HT2/2 Improvements to the Strategic Route Network
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict

SPD1 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision
SPD5 DC Policy Guidance Note 5: Affordable Housing

SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Principle - Following revocation of the North West Regional Strategy on 20 May 2013,
there is no statutory housing target for Bury. Work has commenced on the Greater
Manchester Spatial Framework and this will bring forward a new statutory housing target for
the Borough. This will subsequently be incorporated into Bury's future Local Plan.

In the meantime, the National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a material
planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the
supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. There is a
particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a rolling five year
supply of deliverable housing land.

Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity,
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses.

The site is located within the urban area and there is residential development to the north,
east and west of the site. As such, the proposed development would not conflict with the
surrounding land uses and would be in a sustainable location with regard to services and
public transport. The proposed development would be located on a brownfield site.
Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policy H1/2 of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

Design and layout - The proposed building would have an active frontage to both Spring
Lane and Bury Road. The proposed building would be three storeys in height with a flat
roof. There would be 5.7 metres between the proposed building and the adjacent dwelling
(No. 135), which would create a visual gap and would ensure that the proposed
development would not dominate the existing dwelling. Whilst the existing buildings in the
locality are predominantly two storey, the proposed development would be similar in scale
to the church, which occupied the site until 2009 and would hold the corner in urban design
terms.

The proposed building would be constructed from red brick and render, with composite
cladding on the rear and blue brick infill panels. The use of red brick and render would
match the existing buildings in the locality and the use of the materials along with grey brick
panels and composite cladding would add visual interest to the elevations. There would be

Page 27



two entrances to the proposed building - one from the car park and a second from Bury
Road, which would ensure an active frontage is maintained. Therefore, the proposed
development would not be a prominent feature in the streetscene and would be in
accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Impact upon surrounding areas - The proposed site plan indicates two areas of private
amenity space to the side and rear of the proposed building, which would be acceptable in
size. The proposed bin store would be large enough to accommodate the required number
of bins and would be accessed from the car park. The proposed boundary treatments would
be the subject of a condition. Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance
with Policies EN1/2, H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Impact upon residential amenity - SPD 6 provides guidance on aspect standards for
residential properties and would be relevant in this case. The aspect standards states that
there should be a minimum of 20 metres between directly facing habitable room windows
and 13 metres between a habitable room window and a two storey blank wall. For each
additional storey in height, 3 metres should be added to the separation distance, i.e. there
should be 23 metres between directly facing habitable room windows and a three storey
gable.

The openings facing Pine Street in the proposed building would be landing and circulation
windows and as such, a minimum of 16 metres would be required between the proposed
building and the existing dwellings on Pine Street. There would be 28 metres, which would
be in excess of the aspect standard.

The proposed building would not extend beyond No. 1 Bury Road and the occupiers of Nos
1 - 5 Bury Road would overlook the car park. As such, the proposed development would
not have a significant adverse impact upon the residential amenity of the occupiers of these
properties.

There would be 20 metres between the proposed building and the blank gable of No. 119
Spring Lane, which would be in excess of the 16 metre aspect standard.

There would be a window in the gable elevation of the proposed building, which would be
5.7 metres away from the blank gable of No. 135 Spring Lane. While there should be a
minimum of 9.5 metres to comply with the aspect standards, there are two windows on the
front elevation to the lounge, dining room and kitchen area. As such, it is considered that the
window in the gable would be a secondary window and would not be protected.

Therefore, the proposed development would comply with the aspect standards in SPD 6
and would not have a significant adverse impact upon the amenity of the occupiers of the
residential properties.

Highways issues - The location of the proposed building would not prejudice any potential
highways improvements at the junction of Spring Lane and Bury Road should land at this
junction be required in future to facilitate improved traffic flows in the Radcliffe area.

The proposed development would be accessed from Pine Street and there would be
appropriate visibility provided. The proposed development would provide turning facilities
within the car park.

Comments from the Traffic Section will be reported in the Supplementary Report.

Parking - SPD11 states that the maximum parking standards for a 1 bed unit is 1 space per
1 bedroom unit, which equates to 15 spaces.

The proposed development would provide 12 spaces. The site is less than 50 metres from
the nearest bus stop and is 210 metres from the Metrolink Station at Radcliffe. The site is
located within walking distance of the town centre. As such, the site is considered to be in a

Page 28



highly sustainable location and the level of parking provision would be acceptable in this
instance. Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policy HT2/4
of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and SPD11.

Planning obligations
The scheme as proposed would normally include a commuted sum contribution of
£23,429.25 for recreation as required by SPD1 and 2 affordable units.

The proposed development would provide 15 affordable units, which is in excess of the 2
required. The proposed development would be part funded by Homes England and all units
would be available for affordable rent.

The applicant has submitted a viability appraisal where a case has been presented that any
commuted sum would render the development unviable. The viability appraisal is being
assessed and further comments on this will be reported in the Supplementary Report.

However, the scheme will deliver 100% much needed affordable housing in the Borough
which is a clear benefit of the proposal. The affordable housing provision would be secured
through a condition.

Response to objectors

« A condition relating to the provision of electric vehicle charging points is included.

* Theissues relating to privacy, loss of light, residential amenity, bin storage, highway
safety and parking have been addressed in the report above.

« The proposed development is an affordable housing scheme and not a house in multiple
occupation. The affordable units would be managed by the housing association. The
vulnerability of residents is not a relevant issue to this application.

e The site is located outside of the town centre boundary and is bounded by residential
properties to the north, east and west. As such, a residential use of the land is
considered to be appropriate.

» A private right of access is not a material planning consideration and would be a civil
matter between the relevant parties. However, the plans have been revised and the land
between the proposed building and No. 135 Spring Lane would be landscaped, which
would not prevent the use of the access, should it be proven or otherwise required.

« The proposed scheme makes provision for potential increased traffic arising from future
growth. Whilst not necessarily needing to be delivered at this stage, provision for this
would be made and the proposed development would not preclude this.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2 015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons
1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

Page 29



This decision relates to drawings numbered 19011-001, 19011-101-A,
19011-102-B, 19011-103-D, 19011-104-D, 19011-106-A, A1 19E063-001 and the
development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings
hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

Details/Samples of the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external elevations,
together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development
is commenced. Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for the
construction of the development.

Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity.

No development shall commence unless and until:-

* A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority;

* Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;

* Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination

and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory

development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework

Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
development being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a scheme for
the provision of electric vehicle charging points shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be
implemented prior to occupation of the building hereby approved.

Reason. In accordance with paragraph 35 and 124 of the NPPF, to encourage the
uptake of ultra-low emission vehicles and ensure the development is sustainable.
To safeguard residential amenity, public health and quality of life.

No development shall commence unless and until surface water drainage
proposals have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme should be in accordance with the submitted Surface Water
Sustainable Drainage Assessment and must be based on the hierarchy of
drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance and be designed in
accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage
Systems (March 2015). This must include assessment of potential SuDS options

Page 30



10.

11.

for surface water drainage with appropriate calculations and test results to support
the chosen solution. Details of proposed maintenance arrangements should also
be provided. The approved scheme only shall be implemented prior to first
occupation and thereafter maintained.

Reason. The current application contains insufficient information regarding the
proposed drainage scheme to fully assess the impact. To promote sustainable
development and reduce flood risk pursuant to Unitary Development Plan Policies
EN5/1- New Development and Flood Risk , EN7/3 - Water Pollution and EN7/5 -
Waste Water Management and chapter 14 - Meeting the challenge of climate
change, flooding and coastal change of the NPPF.

Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems.

Reason. To promote sustainable development and reduce flood risk pursuant to
Unitary Development Plan Policies EN5/1- New Development and Flood Risk ,
EN7/3 - Water Pollution and EN7/5 - Waste Water Management and chapter 14 -
Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change of the
NPPF.

The car parking indicated on the approved plans shall be surfaced, demarcated
and made available for use prior to the bulding hereby approved being first
occupied.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of
road safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan.

No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic
Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following:

« Hours of operation and number of vehicle movements;

* Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage
of the site;

« Parking on site of operatives' and demolition/construction vehicles together
with storage on site of demolition/construction materials;

* Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not carried on
the wheels and chassis of any vehicles leaving the site and measures to
minimise dust nuisance caused by the operations

The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the demolition/construction
period and the measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended
purpose for the duration of the demolition and construction periods. The areas
identified shall not be used for any other purposes other than the turning/parking of
vehicles and storage of demolition/construction materials.

Reason. Information not submitted at application stage. To mitigate the impact of
the construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the adjacent
residential streets, and ensure adequate off street car parking provision and
materials storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period and that
the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground works
operations, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary
Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and HT6/2 -
Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

The refuse storage facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be implemented
and made available for use prior to the development hereby approved becoming
first occupied and shall thereafter remain available at all times.

Reason. In order to ensue that the development would maintain adequate facilities
for the storage of domestic waste, including recycling containers, in the interests of
amenity and pursuant to the following Unitary Development Plan Policies:

Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design

Page 31



Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development

For further information on the application please contact Helen Leach on 0161 253 5322

Page 32



Viewpoints

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN
APP. NO 64518 J

Radcliffe S COUNCIL y

ADDRESS: Corner of Spring Lane & Bury Road /

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 33




64518

Photo 1

Photo 2
|

Page 34



64518

Photo 3

Photo 4

Page 35



9¢ afied

BURY ROAD

L bl =

PINE STREET

private amenity

SPRING LANE

nofes: -
This drcwing s he copwight of Paddock Johnson Partnership

Witton dimensions fo be fcken In preference to scoled

Dus fo the sconning, shoud
notbescoled.

1b2p Apartment - 47m2 = 15no.

car parking spaces = 12no.

A 193213 Site Plan updated Mw Planners comments. HJ

©ov dale  description by

status: —— N—
PLANNING

- L

client; =
Boiton at Home
project: —
New Apartments,
land of St Mary’s Church,
Bury
drawing fitle: ——
Proposed Site Layout
drawing no: = ——
19011-101-A
scole: — =
1:200 sheet: A3
date: e ———————————
May 2079 by: HJ
checked: SH
© mm paddock johnson partnership
m Bm -

I 10 sudo2 e Lyceum bath Shewt, Port Sundiar, Wiead CHO2 AW
W s i o suone) s lese
L




)€ abed

LJJ Aparment 11 dfr

47 m2

F

O

Apartment 12

Circulation

29 m2

C

U

2 Stairs 1
15 m2

Apartment 13

48 m2

)
|

[ ]

02 Second Floor

1:100

[D-S]
[P

D1
(D01

Apartment 14
48 m2

Circulation

27 m2

Apartment 15

47 m2

o

D |

|

-

Stairs 2
13 m2

1:40 slope

03 Ridge

1:100

<>

D 1B2P Apartment
D Circulation

notes:

This drawing is the copyright of Paddock Johnson Partnership
Limited and may not be used without their prior written consent

Written dimensions to be taken in preference to scaled
dimensions

Due to the inaccuracies of scanning, scanned images should
not be scaled

A 24.06.19 windows updated as elevations developed HJ
B 15.07.19 roof plan added HJ
C 26.07.19 rwp locations amended, roof amended to HJ
show 1:40 fall and ridge height added
D 18.12.19 Floorplan updates to minimise impact on HJ
adjacent properties
rev date description by
status:
client:
Bolton at Home
project:
New Apartments
land of St Mary's Church,
Pine Street, Bury
eleWigfopifhue |
Proposed Second & Roof
drawing no:
scale:
1100 sheet: Al
date:
by: HJ
05/20/19 checked: SH

B B paddock johnson partnership
Bl architects

[ | Bl studio 2, The Lyceum, Bath Street, Port Sunlight, Winal CH62 4UJ
1:+44(0)151 643 1234 f:+44(0)151 643 1666

. . e:admin@paddockjohnson.com w: www.paddockjohnson.com

Paddock Johnson Partnership Limited Registered England and Wales No.06684275 Address as above



8¢ abied

notes:

This drawing is the copyright of Paddock Johnson Partnership
Limited and may not be used without their prior written consent

Written dimensions to be taken in preference to scaled
dimensions

Due to the inaccuracies of scanning, scanned images should
not be scaled

Bin Store

17 m2

@ o

D 1B2P Apartment
D Circulation

: [7D Apartment 1

47 m2

e Plant = || Plant/ Storage
Entrance E I 8 m2 ST T 5
7 re T T T T . RN “
| | . I H
Stairs 2
| | 13 mz Hﬂiai;} H
Stairs 1 | Cycle Storage \ - | “
E Q @ 15 m2 \ ‘ }Il CI.4Sn:[20re \ ‘ H
O o — -
© . .
Clrgglgatlon Circulation
27 m2
[e]

— OINTC 4 T
Aparimen 2 || D AEEE ale L sj= Aparient o
) ]

1 | | 0| O [
|| | | . |

00 Ground Floor

1:100

48 m?2 48 m2

PLANNING
= S | R ]

Bolton at Home

° C‘j Apartment 6 — D 1B2P Apartment
47 m2 — . .
A o D Circulation
— R
al L
Stairs 2
Stairs 1 13 m?
15 m2
[ 1 O X
o] O
o Circulation
29 m2 ) i
Circulation
27 m2
. ) o A 24.06.19 windows updated as elevations developed HJ
B 18.12.19 Floorplan updates to minimise impact on HJ
] adjacent properties
! [ C e D
rev date description by
@ G D ﬁﬂ ﬁﬂ @ status:
Apartment @ ) Apartment 8  [©0) OO Apartment 9 C 1l :
| | |

mijin == || O project:
J \ | \ L New Apartments

N land of St Mary's Church,
’ ’ i ’ Pine Street, Bury

L

eleWigfopifhue |
Proposed Ground & First Floor
Plan
drawing no:
01 First Floor scale:
1:100 1100 sheet: Al
date:
by: HJ
]0/] 9/] 8 checked: SH

B B paddock johnson partnership
Bl architects

[ | Bl studio 2, The Lyceum, Bath Street, Port Sunlight, Winal CH62 4UJ
1:+44(0)151 643 1234 f:+44(0)151 643 1666

. . e:admin@paddockjohnson.com w: www.paddockjohnson.com

Paddock Johnson Partnership Limited Registered England and Wales No.06684275 Address as above



View looking north from Spring Lane

6€ abed

View looking east down Spring Lane

client: prolect: file:

View looking south east from Pine Street/Bury Road junction

Thia drawing s Ihe copyight of Paddock Johnson Parineship
Uimited and may ot ba used wihou! thei prior witen consent

Whitten 1o ba taken o scated
dimensions
Due fo the Inaccuacies of eeanning. scanned imoget should
not be scded

fev date  description by

A 18.12.19 bullding posliion adjusted as per Planning HJ

rfequest. Carpark access changed to off
Pine Street

Bolton at Home New Apartments

St Mary's Church, Pine Street

Sketch Street Views

scale:

“19011-106-A .

PLANNING

shest:

A3

07/23/19

by

mmm paddock johnson partnership

MEm e architects

Authill I 77 Il stocio 2, The Lyoeum. Bath Street, Port Sunbgt, Waral CHe2 4us
Y f AU SN TUME e BAIOYIET A3 10h4
checked: CheSR I Il . soriroain i e poascsirraacan




e 03 Ridge — p— g e e_oaﬁldgu
8800 fl 8800

e 02 Second Floor 02 Second Floor
5700 6—5700 —

01 Firsi Floor 01 First Floor
& 2850 & w0

00 Ground Floor 00 Ground Floor
@ — Qe

Spring Lane Elevation Social Club Elevation
T 11100

e 03 Ridge e 03 Ridge
8300 8800

Ov abed

e 02 Second Floor e 02 Sacond Floor
5700 5700

01 First Floor

2850

e 01 First Flaor
2850

00 Ground Flaor 00 Ground Flaor
@ e — = e

Bury Road Elevation Pine Stroet Elevation Y 200mis wdeepmenionad o
: s © 280719 g colkrs omendad ot emandedts B
1240 o e kg hoigh
0 11219 Hoapkn wddes ombimkeipadon W)
acacert propertes
e date  dascron by
L
+. _PLANNING
Bolion ot Home
project:
New Apariments
0p0: 1 land of 5t Mary's Church,
Pine Stroet, Buy
chawing fie:
Proposed Elevatians
) N amiog
e ! 19011-104-D
. scole;
LAY 1:100 hoet A1
RALAN SN dake:
o X by: A
o 05113019 e aane B i
paddock Johnson parnership
Natural White Render Red Brick Bluo Brick Composite Cladding architects

ATy
B i S

ke T lycmi. B S, P Wbt Wl S ALY |



Ward: Bury East - Moorside Item 03

Applicant:  PREL Ltd
Location: Euro House, 30-32 Walmersley Road, Bury, BL9 6DP

Proposal: Change of use from shop (Class Al) to Restaurant (Class A3) with flue and 4 no. air
conditioning units at rear; New shop front

Application Ref: 64707/Full Target Date: 18/11/2019
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

Description

The double unit is located on a row of commercial premises (183sgm) within a Local
Shopping Centre that runs between 26 and 64 at the southern end of Walmersley Road.
The premises have been vacant for about a year and were last used as a graphic design
shop (Al). The property immediately to the south (N0.28) is vacant and No.34, to the north
is an estate agents office.

There are parking restrictions in the form of double yellow lines along Walmersley Road and
there have been railings erected along the edge of the footway in an effort to deter crossing
and illegal parking. Badger Street, to the north, has restrictions at its western/Walmersley
Road end but is not restricted at its eastern end where there is a row of terraced houses.
Peter Street, running from Badger Street to the rear of the site has unrestricted parking. It is
important to note that the redevelopment of the car park has been approved on land to the
south of the site, on the corner of Moorgate and Walmersley Road (ref: 64112) and a new
public car park would be created.

Proposal is for a change of use of the ground floor of the premises to a 38 seat restaurant
with the installation of a new aluminium framed shopfront and a flue and four condensing
units at the rear. The first floor would remain vacant. There would be 3 full time staff and
no opening hours are indicated.

The site includes the access to the rear bin storage area and a service area within the
adjacent car park and a pedestrian link from the car park to Walmersley Road would allow
customers access and bins to be brought from the storage area to the collection point on
Walmersley Road.

The description of the original proposal indicated the new use to be a hot food takeaway.
However the Local Planning Authority requested the submission of supporting statement
which sets out the justification for the change of use from the Al unit to a restaurant and
focuses on the previous refusal for the change of use to hot food takeaway (64266) in July
this year. It states that the approval for a pay and display car park (64112), being
developed on land to the south, on the corner of Walmersley Road and Moorgate, would
provide parking for customers and allow for servicing and refuse collection.

Relevant Planning History

64266 - Change of use from shop (Class Al) to hot food takeaway (Class A5) with flue and
4 no. air conditioning units at rear; New shop front - Refused 23/07/2019

55719 - Change of Use from teaching centre to Restaurant/Hot food takeaway and bar -
Approved 15/11/2012

39450 - Change of use from shop to teaching centre - Approved 13/08/2002

Land to south (Moorgate)

Page 41



64112 - Formation of public pay and display car park - approved 22/07/19.

Publicity

13 properties were notified of the original application and amended letter was sent when

the proposal was revised to a restaurant use. Three objections were received from the

resident of the flat at 38a Walmersley Road and Councillor Walmersley and Councillor Peel.

Objections are summarised:

e This area of Walmersley Road and immediate surrounding areas already has a high
density of fast food takeaways and has a negative effect on the health and well being of
local people. If approved, the proposal is likely to have a further negative effect on local
residents.

* The proposal would add to existing parking problems in the immediate locality.

* Concerns about deliveries and waste management and the need to keep Walmersley
Road clear for traffic, in particular ambulances.

* Noise and pollution from the flue at the rear.

The objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee.

Statutory/Non -Statutory Consultations
Traffic Section - Comments awaited.
Environmental Health - No objection.

Pre-start Conditions - N/A

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

S2/6 Food and Drink

S1/4 Local Shopping Centres

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design
EN1/8 Shop Fronts

EN7/2 Noise Pollution

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
EN1/7 Throughroutes and Gateways
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development
S1 Existing Shopping Centres

EC4/1 Small Businesses

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Policies and guidance - The National Planning Policy Framework indicates that substantial
weight be placed on the need to support economic growth and maintain the shopping
hierarchy.

Paragraph 80 of the NPPF states that significant weight should be placed on the need to
support economic growth and productivity, taking into account both local business needs
and wider opportunities for development.

Paragraph 91 of the National Planning Policy Framework indicates that planning policies
and decisions should aim to achieve healthy, inclusive and safe places which enable and
support healthy lifestyles.

Page 42



Unitary Development Plan Policy S1 - Existing shopping centres states the Council will seek
to protect, maintain and enhance the role and function of the existing hierarchy of shopping
centres within the Borough.

UDP Policy S1/4 the Council will seek to maintain and enhance local shopping centres and
will encourage the provision of a range of shopping facilities required to serve purely local
needs.

The proposal should also be considered against UDP Policy S2/6 Food and Drink which
states that, in considering all proposals which involve restaurants, hot food takeaways,
cafes, snack bars, wine bars and public houses, the Council will have regard to the following
factors:

a) the amenity of nearby residents by reason of noise, smell, litter and opening hours;
b) whether or not the proposal would result in an over concentration of Class A3 to A5
uses, which could adversely change the nature or character of a centre as a whole;

c) parking and servicing provision associated with the proposed development and its
effects in terms of road safety, traffic generation and movement;

d) provision for the storage and disposal of refuse and customer litter;

e) the environmental impact of any ventilation flues and/or ducting

UDP Policies EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design and EN1/8 Shopfronts relate to
townscape and visual amenity and indicate that favourable consideration will be given to
proposals which do not have an adverse impact on the character of an area.

Previous applications - In 2012, planning permission (55719) was granted to change the
use of the premises from a teaching centre to a restaurant/takeaway. This approval was not
taken up and the property was refurbished and occupied by a graphic design shop (A1) in
2014. This shop was closed in January 2019 when the premises became vacant once
again, albeit in a better physical condition.

In July 2019 an application to change the use of the premises to a hot food takeaway was
refused in the basis that the premises were now a refurbished Al shop and with restrictions
along Walmersley Road, illegal parking was an on-going problem.

Impact on Shopping Centre - The current application is to change the use of the premises
to a restaurant and this needs to be considered against UDP shopping policies S1/4 and
S2/6.

The fundamental aim of UDP Policy S1/4 is to maintain and enhance the Borough's local
shopping centres, principally through the encouragement of a range of shopping facilities to
support their vitality and viability.

With the occupation of the double unit as a restaurant, it is recognised that there would be a
significant proportion of non-retail (A1) uses within the centre (approximately 46%). Whilst
the proposal would lead to the loss of an Al retail use within the centre, the unit has been
vacant for about a year and evidence from Nolan Redshaw, estate agents suggests that,
despite widespread marketing, there is very limited demand with no enquiries from retailers
for this particular property. In the light of this evidence, which is reflected within the centre
as a whole and throughout the rest of the country, there is a concern that the centre could
decline further.

In the light of current trends in shopping and the resultant impact on shopping centres, it is
considered that a restaurant within this neighbourhood shopping centre would have a
positive impact and bring a vacant property back into commercial use.

Given the vacancy rates within the centre and the potential for further decline in its overall
viability, the benefits afforded to the proposal in terms of maintaining occupancy and

Page 43



promoting small business development significantly outweigh the disbenefits in terms of the
level of non-retail uses within the centre which in turn would have a positive impact on the
centre's viability and vitality. As such the proposal would be acceptable and comply with the
NPPF and UDP Policies S1/4 Local Shopping Centres and S2/6 Food and Drink .

Visual amenity and character of streetscape The existing shopping centre appears
rather run down with a number of vacant units evident, although the premises to which this
application relates has been refurbished within the last two years.

It is considered that the change of use to restaurant together with the new shopfront would
not have a detrimental impact on the character of the centre. Indeed the renovation of the
frontage, together with the potential new businesses, would improve the overall appearance
of the centre. The proposal would therefore comply with UDP Policy EN1/2 Townscape and
Built Design.

Residential Amenity - The nearest residential property appears to be a flat above No.38
Walmersley Road, with the nearest houses on Badger Street, to the north.

Located on a busy main road, and with no residential accommodation above or in premises
immediately adjacent, the proposal does not raise any serious residential amenity issues
given that an appropriate conditions would limit late opening hours and control noise and
fumes from any extractor system. Closing at 11pm would be considered reasonable and
whilst information has been submitted with regard to the extraction of fumes and odours, a
condition would require it to be implemented prior to commencement of development and
maintained thereafter. In terms of residential amenity the proposal is acceptable and
complies with UDP Policies S2/6 Food and Drink, EN7 Pollution Control and EN7/2 Noise
Pollution.

Traffic and Parking - The Traffic Team has some concerns about the proposal in relation
to car parking and servicing arrangements for the premises. Although there are parking
restrictions along this part of Walmersley Road together with railings between the footway
and carriageway, there is a concern that customers would park and carry out manoeuvres
on Walmersley Road to the detriment of the free flow of traffic and road safety. However this
would be illegal and would remain so irrespective of the use. It would be unreasonable to
rest unlawful activity by drivers on the new business.

The supporting statement argues that the existing parking restrictions and railings along the
the footway would dissuade customers from stopping on Walmersley Road and suggests
that customers using cars, due to the length of stay, would more likely use the proposed
new car park on the land to the south and access the premises via a short pedestrian link to
Walmersley Road. Further it is suggested that customers could be allowed free parking for a
short period of time to discourage customers stopping on Walmersley Road - although this
could not be controlled through planning.

With regard to service vehicles, the proposal has been amended to include a service area
within the car park to the south with access to the rear of the premises and dedicated bins
storage and collection areas to prevent the need to have bins on the footway on Walmersley
Road.

Given the amended plans, it is considered that the proposal, in terms of traffic and parking
is acceptable and complies with the NPPF and UDP Policies HT2/4 Car Parking and New
Development, S2/6 Food and Drink and HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

Waste Management - The amended application includes the provision of a bin storage
area at the rear of the premises with access to a bin collection area adjacent to the footway
on Walmersley Road. This would allow the bins to be stored and collected without
interfering with access along the public highway. A condition would be attached to any
approval that would ensure the proposed bin storage and collection facilities would be
available prior to the restaurant use commencing. The proposal is therefore acceptable and

Page 44



complies with UDP Policy S2/6 Food and Drink.

Objections - With regard to the concentration of hot food takeaways, it is noted that the
proposal is now for a restaurant rather than a hot food takeaway and although there may
well be a 'takeaway' element this, by definition would not be overly significant.

Although the NPPF and recent government guidance suggests that the promotion of
'healthy living' is important, there is currently no local policy basis for refusing applications
for food and drink uses on grounds of health. As such it is considered that this would not be
a sustainable reason to refuse..

The issue raised with regard to parking, refuse and the noise and fumes from extractor
system have been addressed in the above report.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2 015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to revised location plan P213-100, 19-116A Revised Floor
plans, 19-116C Existing and Proposed Elevations and the development shall not
be carried out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.
Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. The use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers outside the following
times: 0800hrs to 2300hrs daily.
Reason. To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby residential
accommodation pursuant to UDP Policy S2/6 Food and Drink.

4. The scheme for treating fumes and odours, submitted with the application, has

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall
be implemented, available for use and maintained in accordance with the
approved scheme whilst it shall serve the development.
Reason. The application contains insufficient detail in order to demonstrate that
the required scheme would maintain the residential amenities of nearby residential
property from impact upon from fumes and odour pursuant to UDP Policy S2/6
Food and Drink.

S. Prior to the commencement of use full details of proposed refuse storage and
collection arrangements shall be submitted for approval by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved details shall be implemented in full and made available for
use prior the commencement of the proposed use.

Page 45



Reason - In order to ensue that the development would maintain adequate
facilities for the storage of domestic waste, including recycling containers, in the
interests of amenity and pursuant to UDP Policy S/6 Food and Drink.

For further information on the application please contact Tom Beirne on 0161 253 5361

Page 46



Viewpoints

Staton

\______
avod AITSHINTVI

e ———

Garage

Works

95 8§

76 70 66

BADGER STREET

Salisbury
Conservative
Club

St Joseph's
Church

13341 ¥313d

FOX STREET

Presby

S p——

BACK PETER ST

=
Z 7z,

k)

\NEsT .

p————

-~

-
-~

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

APP. NO 64707 J D
W)~ E > Eﬁ
ADDRESS: 30-32 Walmersley Road /
Bury S COUNCIL

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 47



64707

Photo 2

Page 48



64707

Photo 3

Page 49



64707

Photo 6

Page 50



COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

L A J
This drawing is the property of A.J.Cocker Associates Ltd. and must not be copied or used in whole or in part without
- their consent.
« R I Giont

Clients and contractors must fulfil their duties under the CDM regulations 2015.The client is required to notify the
HSE of any projects lasting more than 30 days or involving more than 500 person days.

A

g

=
L
B

BADGER STREET
L
Salisbury.
I“ L N Conservative ;%
] & ‘4 b il Existing area used for
i a bin storage and
ﬂ 2 | ;0’ access to properties
S 2 m served by rear
ﬁ % & - alleyway

L E|E
Concrete hardstanding :\ 5 = ':! Works
area for refuse collection by @ ¢
for numbers 30-32 TEe 8
Walmersley Road - to \D 8
drain to car park area j ~o Area to be cross hatched in
and into site drainage B3 yellow thermoplastic onto
system g / tarmac surface to provide

servicing for numbers 30-32

New pedestrian Walmersley Road

access from car park
onto Walmersley
Road footpath

97.8m

A

=

MOORGATE

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2016. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

0 5 10 20 30m

) roject
AlJ. Cocker Associates |
Architectural Design  Building Surveyors Project Management Planning Supervisors P ro posed Cha n ge Of use ’ E uro H ouse ’
New Century House, 176 Drake Street, Rochdale, Lancs. OLI6 TUP

Tel 01706 356860 Fax 01706 650574 Wal me rSley Road I B u ry -
client

scale - 1:1000
PREL limited size - Ad

date - Nov.19 P213-100
Paggmbn - NL

drawing No rev




d

ZG abe

S E=

Prep Kilchen
Storage Area

-

e Sl

Prep Kifchan 1|

&)

v
e T

S -

|

|
1

we. ]_ =7 = T g ey
) ;T
H .=
WJ = - ‘_ & i
J @
il L L
—— 1
] bl
R HER L

folmstane

i

Electrical & Services Key

Al

ol R

L r— = S
o | woruom.scummmmo mer-rorocoms TP Lt e e eeTecTon ccuee
oy [ae
& = -
[ —— R ———

Emm?@
|
§
]
H

5
i
z

¥Bje[e]|

» GAS
@ wasre
O WATER (COLD)

8 WATER (Hot)

Proposed - Ground Floor Plan

Proposed - Ground Floor Plan

=]

ot
“ELECTRIC TO WATER TANK /WATER MEATER
‘AL EARTH BONDING THROUGHOUT

WEING FOR
“WIRING FOR THLLS

“TELECOM SOCKETS X4 UPTO MATH INCOMMER
“WIRING FOR EVERGENGY LIGHTING

“WIRING FOR PIZZA OVEN IF REQUIRED
~WIRING FOR RATIONAL OVEN

= EWSURE ALL OLD ELECTRICS TO UPATAIRS 13
KEPTINTACT~

“~ ELECTRICS SUPPLY FOR ICE LIACHINE IF DIFFERENT
TO APt

.16 2 et se durber ek, s

| Pt~y
ce mmence

.

et v M 1010 s b |
Pl

[ e et

P e et e
ey

RAY Wntaiers

1 KIHGELEY STRERT
LEICESTER

LB260Y

o 445 ) 118 2100 002
Iz +44{0) 110 2700 093
emait ddoGheyoresosk  www Neyntive son

CLIENT:
Shakd Musan

PROJEGT:
9032 Wenarsley Road
2

iy
BLosac

CRAWING TITLE:
inting And Prepased Shop Piocs And Elavation




€g abed

Existing Front Elevation

Existing Rear Elevation

ey
T e

Proposed Front Efevation

Location Plan
Scale 1:1250

Praposed Rear Elevation

[oTeCLRmeR:

0. das o o, o s avarses
o sl s o T D0
sl vt 4 o ok s e Ty
ekt s et s 5 e LS9k A

Dot surve cnicponssins ey Pt
 ivbe asiop Ppaut e Dok oSS
S iy s A1 e Ut
ot oo w35 o oy A irers bt
oo s it

cormmione
Y
o s U o

s sy oty i Tt . e
ot rgors G s b

:09.06.19 Bin store added
REV B:20.06.18 Projecting sgn repositioned
REV C: 09.07.59 Projecting sign removed,
andre postlones

[HAY Ineriars

't KINGSLEY STREET
LEICESTER

Le260¢

lsl, +43 () 118.2700 02
. va8 ) 116 2700 003
el no@hayorkine.cok  ww.hayorio.com

[cLENT.
Stk Mossa

prOJECT:
2002 viamersiey roat

Buy
eLsas

DRAWING TITLE:
(Existing And Propased Shop Floor And Slevation

|OWG NO: 18-116




Ward: Bury West - Church Item

Applicant: Mr R Heys

Location: 16 Westbury Close, Bury, BL8 2L W

Proposal:  Front porch extension and dormer extension at front

Application Ref: 64766/Full Target Date: 24/01/2020
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

This application is a householder development and w ould normally be dealt with
under delegated powers. It is presented to the com  mittee as the applicant is related
to a member of staff.

Description

The site is a semi detached bungalow located on a cul de sac. It has a garden to the front
and drive along the side. To the rear it has been extended with a single storey and a
dormer. The neighbouring properties are the same bungalow types, the adjoining being
No.14, and to the opposite side No.18 which has a drive to the side of the site and a car
port.

The application includes a front porch 2m deep and 3.3m across and to the front roof slope
a flat roofed dormer 3.2m across to extend an existing bedroom.

Relevant Planning History
61161 - Prior notification for proposed single storey rear extension - Prior approval not
required - 24/03/17.

Publicity
5 notification letters were sent on 29/11/19 to addresses at 75 & 77 Fieldhead Avenue and
9, 14 & 18 Westbury Close. No responses have been received.

Statutory/Non -Statutory Consultations
None.

Pre-start Conditions - Not relevant.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies
H2/3 Extensions and Alterations
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Visual amenity and design - The porch at 2m deep would not project excessively from the
Page 54

04



front of the property. It would have a pitched roof with glazing to either side of the door and
to both side elevations. Materials would be brickwork and roof tiles to match the existing
house.

Supplementary Planning Document 6 (SPD6) seeks to ensure that proposals for
dormer/roof extensions preserve the character of the street scene, especially where
dormers on existing neighbouring properties are absent.

The cul de sac has only one property extended with a front dormer, No.7, which has a dual
pitched roof. Whilst this would be the second dormer on the cul de sac, and of a different
design, the larger estate has many areas and properties containing dormers. They are
seen on properties as both original and extensions and in various designs and materials.
The dormer proposed would not occupy a disproportionate area of the front roof slope
extending 3.2m across. It would be flat roofed and set back from the front wall by 1m and
the walls tile hung in grey slate. The front would have one window which would be located
in line with that to the ground floor elevation.

Both the porch and dormer are considered acceptable and in keeping with the existing
property and would not have a detrimental impact on the visual amenity of the area.

Residential amenity - The front porch would not be located in close proximity to the
neighbouring properties either side.

The property opposite across the street does not directly face and there would be 18m to
the front garden boundary.

There would then be no serious impact on the amenity of any adjacent neighbouring
properties.

The proposal complies with UDP Policy H2/3 and SPD6 - Alterations and Extensions to
Residential Properties.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Plan  ning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2 015

The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in
Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered 16WC/200/PL Rev P2, 16 WC/201/PL
Rev P1, 16WC/202/PL Rev P2 and the development shall not be carried out
except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

For further information on the application please contact Jane Langan on 0161 253 5316

Page 55



Viewpoints

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

N
APP. NO 64766 / D ;
ADDRESS: 16 Westbury Close /

Bury S COUNCIL

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 56



64766

Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 57



85 abed

8

i
-1
g

7
=
Fag
| ] i
C p*¥

i
AN
n

TopmEd - | 00] L |

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION
1:100 @ A3 1:100 & A3 1:100 @ A3

- } -

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION FROM NO.14
1:100 & A3

FT [Tt dwines ssteraton memed = wids JRLTETH|

[FT|more of prop wiaw wiwesries e 00 78 IR VETH| 02

bl - H SLAE HAWGIG THES
HRCK TO NATCH £aSTN0_ ROOF

e
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR LAYOUT PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR LAYOUT FRORY. PN FAGHG EXTERIOL. WL
1:100 © A3 1:100 0 A3




Ward: Bury East - Redvales Item 05

Applicant:  Environment Agency

Location: Land to west of Metrolink line at Warth Road; Land to west of Bury Road; Land to
east of Whitefield Road; Land to west of Hardy's Gate Bridge and Land to north of
York Street, Bury

Proposal: Proposal A - A series of sheet piled walls and concrete walls across 4 sites
Proposal B - Erection of an embankment and retaining wall at land to west of
Metrolink line at Warth Road

Application Ref: 64790/Full Target Date: 20/01/2020
Recommendation: Split Decision

Description

The application relates to 5 sites along the River Irwell:

Site 1 - Land to the west of Bury Road, Radcliffe (Bury Point)

Sites 2 & 3 - Land to the east of Whitefield Road connecting to Hardy's Gate Bridge
Site 4 - land to the north of York Street, Radcliffe

Site 5 - Land to the west of the Metrolink line at Warth Road

Site 1 - This site relates to land to the north and the south of the existing unit at Bury Point,
which is used for storage and distribution by Wincanton. The building is located to the west
of the River Irwell and there is a car park to the north of the building.

There are industrial buildings to the east, which are on the opposite bank to the River Irwell
and there is open land to the north. To the south is a site, which is currently vacant, but
has consent for a residential development.

Sites 2 and 3 - The application site relates to the northern bank of the land adjacent to
River Irwell, which slopes steeply down to the river. The land contains vegetation, which
consists of a variety of trees and shrubs. The site extends from the river bank near St
Peters Primary School, past the rear of the industrial buildings and connects to Hardy's
Gate Bridge.

To the east of the upper part of the site, there are playing fields to the school with
residential properties beyond and an industrial storage area. There are industrial buildings
to the east of the lower section of the site.

Site 4 - The application site relates to the southern bank of the River Irwell. There are
industrial buildings and associated car parking located immediately to the south of the site,
with residential properties beyond. The site extends from the site with consent for
residential development and ties into Hardy's Gate Bridge.

Site 5 - The site relates to an area of land between the Metrolink line and the River Irwell.
The land is mostly flat and grassed, with the exception of an embankment, which is located
in the northern part of the site. The site contains vegetation, which consists of a variety of
trees and shrubs and the site is lower than the adjacent tram line.

The site is accessed via a tunnel from Warth Road and there are residential properties and
an industrial estate to the east and open land to all other boundaries.

Proposal
Page 59



The proposed development forms part of a flood defence scheme for Radcliffe and
Redvales. Phase 1 of the scheme, which involved the erection of bunds and walls at Close
Park and Morris Street was approved in March 2019 and works have commenced. This
scheme forms part of phase 2 and the works have been split into three applications,
including this one. The other two applications cover works at Warth Business Park
(64788), and land to the south of Central Avenue & Keswick Drive (64789) and these
applications have been approved with conditions in December 2019.

The proposed development involves the erection of a series of sheet piled walls, concrete
L walls and earth embankments to create a flood defence along the northern and southern
banks of the River Irwell.

Proposal A
Site 1 - Land to the west of Bury Road, Radcliffe

The proposed development comprises:

¢ Aretaining wall for 176 metres and between 1 - 2 metres in height. The proposed wall
would be finished in plain finish concrete.

« Aretaining wall for 10 metres at a height of 2 - 2.5 metres in height. The proposed wall
would be finished with textured and coloured concrete on the dry side and exposed
sheet pile wall at a lower level and plain finished coloured concrete above.

Sites 2 & 3 - Land to the east of Whitefield Road connecting to Warth Bridge

The proposed development comprises a series of retaining walls and sheet pile walls:

< In front of the school and along the sports field boundary, there would be a retaining
wall for 117 metres at a height of 1 - 1.5 metres. The proposed wall would be finished
with brick effect concrete with a coloured concrete coping.

¢ From the school continuing past the trailer park, there would be a retaining wall for 135
metres at a height of between 1 - 1.5 metres. The proposed wall would be finished in
coloured concrete with a coloured concrete coping.

* From Redvales Business Park to Hardy's Gate Bridge, there would be a sheet pile
retaining wall of 2 - 3 metres in height. The proposed wall would be exposed sheet
piles with a U coping and an timber coping for the 50 metres adjacent to Hardy's Gate
Bridge.

Site 4 - land to the north of York Street, Radcliffe

The proposed defence would consist of:

* AL shaped retaining wall for 18 metres and between 2 - 3 metres in height. It would be
finished in plain finished concrete with a concrete coping.

« A combination of sheet pile wall and precast unit for 252 metres at a height of between
1.5 and 2.5 metres. The dry side would be plan finish concrete and the wet side would
be exposed sheet pile at a low level and coloured concrete above with a concrete
coping.

Proposal B
Site 5 - The proposed development comprises a series of grassed embankments to the

west of the existing Metrolink line:

* The proposed defence would be an embankment for 50 metres at a height of 1 - 3
metres at land to the west of Derby High School. The proposed embankment would tie
into existing high land and would be finished with grass.

e The proposed defence would be an embankment for 25 metres at a height of 2 - 2.5
metres on land to the west of No. 4 Milford Drive. The proposed embankment would
connect into the existing high ground and would be grassed.

e The proposed defence would be an embankment, which would be the same height as
the Metrolink embankment and would tie into it. It would be grassed.

e The proposed defence would be an embankment for 90 metres and would be between
2 - 3 metres in height. The proposed embankment would include a vehicle access
ramp to maintain access to the land and it would be grassed.

* The remaining defence would be an embankment for 200 metres and would tie into the

Page 60



existing Metrolink embankment. It would be grassed.

e The proposed defence would be a retaining wall for 10 metres at a height of 2 - 2.5
metres and would tie into the existing bridge abutment. The proposed wall would be
constructed from textured and coloured concrete to match the existing bridge on the
wet side and plain coloured concrete on the dry side.

There would be a storage compound at Morris Street and access for construction purposes

would be taken from:

¢ The existing access road to Bury Point

* Whitefield Road and the existing industrial estate access from Dumers Lane for sites 2
and 3

* York Street for sites 4

e Warth Road for site 5

Relevant Planning History

Linked schemes

63559 - A series of sheet piled walls and embankments, on land within Close Park and land
to the south of Morris Street, which form part of a wider scheme to improve flood protection
along the River Irwell. Approved with conditions - 28 March 2019.

Works have commenced on phase 1.

64788 - Erection of retaining walls & sheet piled walls between 1m & 3m in height to form a
flood defence between the Metrolink bridge and Warth Bridge at land to south of Warth
Industrial Estate, Warth Road, Radcliffe. Approved with conditions - 17 December 2019.

64789 - A series of sheet piled walls, concrete walls and earth embankments across 5 sites
at land to west of Metrolink line at Warth Road; land to west of Bury Road; land to east of
Whitefield Road; land to west of Hardy's Gate Bridge and land to north of York Street, Bury.
Approved with conditions - 17 December 2019.

Adjacent sites

56744 - Hybrid full planning application for the erection of 153 no. dwellings together with
associated works including the laying out of public open space, and the undertaking of
engineering operations to remediate the site, raise the levels, construct an emergency
access and development platform for future commercial development; Outline planning
application for erection of a Class B1/B2 & B8 development of 7435 m2 at land at Bury
Road/York Street, Radcliffe. Approved with conditions - 9 October 2015

60418 - Variation of conditions 20,27,28,29 & 35 of approved planning application 56744
relating to: 20 & 35- surface water drainage scheme, 27- samples of materials, 28- lifetime
homes, 29- footpath and cycle route to vary the timing of submission for implementation at
land at Bury Road/York Street, Radcliffe. Approved with conditions - 13 December 2018.

60424 - Residential development (Class C3) comprising 65 no. dwellings incorporating 4 no.
four bed houses, 10 no. three bed houses, 21 no. two bed houses and 30 no. one bed
apartments with associated infrastructure and incidental open space including a new estate
road and vehicular and pedestrian access off Warth Road at land adjacent to Warth Road,
Radcliffe. Approved with conditions - 20 December 2016

60482 - Proposed trailer storage area and open material storage, erection of landscaped
perimeter bunding and acoustic/security fencing at Thumbs Up (Bury) Ltd, Greenfields,
Dumers Lane, Bury. Approved with conditions - 25 October 2016

63200 - New sub station at land at Warth Road, Radcliffe. Approved with conditions - 17
October 2018

63361 - Reserved matters approval for the layout, appearance and landscaping (Matters of
scale and access have already been approved) at land at Bury Road/York Street, Radcliffe.
Approved with conditions - 15 March 2019

Page 61



Publicity

182 neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 24 October 2019 and a
press notice was published in the Bury Times on 12 December 2019. Site notices were
posted on 12 December 2019.

5 letters have been received from the occupiers of 18 Milford Drive, 30 Keswick Drive,
Innovation Forum and 42 Buttermere Road, Burnley, which have raised the following issues:

| object to the application for the sole reason of choice of materials/method.

The use of sheet piling and concrete walls goes against the principles of river corridor
re-naturalisation under the European Water Framework Directive legislation.

There are alternatives, which could be used to protect areas from flooding and enhance
wildlife.

The proposed defences would be visually unappealing.

A concern about the large number of trees that would be removed. How would replacing
the trees on a like for like basis benefit the animals and mammals living along the river
corridor?

Will new habitats be created?

We have fishing rights along stretches of the River Irwell and need access to fish near
the waters edge. Ramps and paths would be required.

Request answers to the following questions:

* How long will the workforce require access for?

« Would any damage to the road be our right?

e Would there be any noise pollution?

¢ What time of the day would the work be carried out?

¢ Where would the security be located?

e When is this phase due to start?

Hydropower company have expressed concern at the first community drop in that the
proposal would pose an increased risk of flooding to the hydropower site on the south
bank of the river opposite Warth industrial estate. The scheme will increase the flood
risk and meetings have been held with the Environment Agency (EA). We were assured
that either flood mitigation measures would be included or appropriate compensation
paid.

On 10/10/19, we received notification that no flood mitigation measures would be
included and no compensation paid.

We were not fairly informed of the submission of the planning application. The EA have
not informed us that the application was submitted. | discovered the application after an
internet search on 9 November.

We have been told we can only claim compensation once damage has occurred.

The scheme dramatically increases the flood risk to the hydropower development. The
EA's report is factually incorrect, logically incoherent and simply nonsensical. Using their
data | have demonstrated that the scheme results in a 3-4 fold increase in the probability
of a damaging flood event.

With the effects of climate change and the proposed flood scheme, the hydropower
plant is not viable over the longer term.

The proposed scheme increases the risk to the land surrounding the hydropower
development. The proposed scheme would increase the risk of flooding to the footpath
adjacent to the hydropower plant.

The FRA does not accurately represent the risks posed by the proposed scheme. The
FRA is highly misleading.

The modelled data used by the EA to inform the design is demonstrably incorrect and
sometimes unfathomable. The EA's modelled data does not correspond to real life.

The proposed scheme could lead to a flood surge. Concern that the Metrolink bridge is
not capable of withstanding the increased lateral forces from the proposed scheme.

The objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting.

Statutory/Non -Statutory Consultations

Page 62



Traffic Section - Further comments to be reported in the Supplementary Report.

Drainage Section - No objections.

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections in principle. More detailed
comments will be reported in the Supplementary Report.

Environmental Health - Pollution Control - No comments.

Environment Agency - No objections in principle. More detailed comments will be reported
in the Supplementary Report.

United Utilities - No objections, subject to the inclusion of informatives relating to
drainage.

The Coal Authority - No objections, subject to inclusion of condition relating to coal mining
GM Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to otters,
nesting birds, invasive species, a construction environmental management plan and a
landscape masterplan and an informative relating to bats.

Canal & River Trust - No objections.

Cadent Gas Ltd - Object. Recommend refusal as there is insufficient information to assess
the impact of the proposed development upon infrastructure in relation to site 5.

Public Rights of Way Officer - No objections.

Metrolink - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to maintenance of
the structures on Metrolink land.

Pre-start Conditions - Awaiting confirmation from the agent that pre-commencement
conditions are acceptable.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies
EC1/1 Land for Business (B1) (B2) (B8)
EC2/1 Employment Generating Areas
EN1/1 Visual Amenity

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision

EN1/11  Public Utility Infrastructure

EN3 Archaeology

EN5 Flood Protection and Defence

EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk

ENG6 Conservation of the Natural Environment
ENG6/3 Features of Ecological Value

EN7 Pollution Control

EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution

EN7/2 Noise Pollution

EN7/5 Waste Water Management
EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting
OL5/2 Development in River Valleys

RT1/1 Protection of Recreation Provision in the Urban Area

RT3/4 Recreational Routes

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Principle (Employment) - Sites 2, 3 and 4 are located within an Employment Generating
Area (EGA) or are allocated for employment use and the following policies of the UDP

Page 63



apply.

Policy EC1/1 states that the site has been identified for business, general industrial and
warehousing uses. Development for other business and industrial uses will only be
permitted in exceptional circumstances and in accordance with other policies and proposals
of the plan.

Policy EC2/1 states that within Employment Generating Areas (EGAS) the Council will only
allow development for the uses specified (business, general industrial and warehousing).
Other uses will only be permitted where they constitute limited development or they do not
substantially detract from an area's value as an EGA.

The proposed development involves the erection of a series of sheet piled walls, concrete L
walls and earth embankments to create a flood defence along the northern and southern
banks of the River Irwell. The proposed defences would be located on the perimeter of the
respective employment land and EGAs and would not impact upon the industrial uses
operating at the sites. As such, the proposed development would not detract from the area's
value as an EGA or employment land and would be acceptable in principle. Therefore, the
proposed development would be in accordance with Policies EC1/1 and EC2/1 of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

Principle (River Valley) - Policy OL5/2 states that within the river valleys, new buildings or
the change of use of existing buildings or the change of use of land will not be permitted.
The only exceptions considered acceptable will be those where the development would not
lead to the division of the open parts of the valleys into sections and it falls within the terms
below:
» where the area is designated as Green Belt the established Green Belt policies will
apply:
or
* where the area does not form part of the Green Belt, at least one of the following
circumstances is met:
< that the development represents limited infilling to an established valley settlement
or industrial area;
« thatit is an extension to, or renewal of an existing industry, where the economic and
employment factors are of overriding importance;
« that the development is required in association with an outdoor recreation or
appropriate tourist facility;
« that the development is limited and will form part of, and be essential to, the
maintenance of the provision and improvement of public services and utilities;
< any other development that would be appropriate in a Green Belt.

All of the sites are located in River Valley and the policy is clear that if the proposed
development would be appropriate in the Green Belt, it would comply with the Policy
regarding the river valley. The proposed development would involve the creation of a series
of sheet piled walls, concrete L walls and earth embankments along the river embankment
to act as a flood defence. As such, the proposed development would be an engineering
operation and would be appropriate development within the Green Belt as defined in
paragraph 146 of the NPPF.

Impact upon Public Utilities - A high pressure gas pipeline, which serves around 40,000
dwellings, passes through site 5 (land to the west of the Metrolink line) and would pass
underneath the proposed embankments at 2 places. Cadent Gas Ltd have objected to the
proposed development as there are concerns relating to the impact from the weight of the
embankment upon the pipeline and how access to the pipeline could be maintained if
repairs were necessary and potential degradation. Pre-application discussions have taken
place between the applicant and Cadent Gas Ltd, but no conclusions have been agreed. As
a result, there is insufficient detail within the application to be able to grant a ‘approval in
principle' on a major part of infrastructure and the Local Planning Authority cannot consider

using a condition precedent in this instance. Cadent have recommended refusal of the
Page 64



scheme as there is insufficient information to fully assess the impact of the scheme upon
the pipeline, which is a necessary part of infrastructure maintaining a gas supply to
residential properties. Therefore, the proposed development on site 5 would conflict with
Policy EN1/11 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Design and layout

SITE 1 - The proposed defence would consist of a retaining wall and a sheet piled wall
which would vary between 1.5 and 3 metres in height. The height of the proposed defences
is the minimum required to maintain an effective defence. The proposed retaining wall
would be constructed from plain coloured concrete and the proposed sheet pile wall would
be exposed sheet pile at the lower level on the wet side, to allow for inspections by the EA
and plain finished coloured concrete on the dry side and above the exposed sheet pile on
the wet side. There would be limited views of the lower level of the wall and as such, the
proposed materials would be acceptable. Therefore, the proposed development would not
be a prominent feature in the locality and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2 and
EN1/3 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

SITES 2 & 3 - The proposed defence would consist of a series of retaining walls and sheet
pile walls which would vary between 1 and 3 metres in height. The height of the proposed
defences is the minimum required to maintain an effective defence. The proposed retaining
wall would be constructed from a variety of concrete finishes. There would be a brick effect
concrete near the school and along the boundary with the sports field and a coloured
concrete near the trailer park and residential properties. There would be an exposed sheet
pile wall for the remainder of the defence around the industrial estate. The views of this
section of wall would be oblique distant views from the public right of way on York Street
(3SM), which would be viewed against the backdrop of industrial buildings. As such, this
would be acceptable. Therefore, the proposed development would not be a prominent
feature in the locality and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2 and EN1/3 of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan.

SITE 4 - The proposed defence would consist of a retaining wall and a sheet piled wall and
pre-cast unit which would vary between 1.5 and 3 metres in height. The height of the
proposed defences is the minimum required to maintain an effective defence. The proposed
retaining wall would be constructed from plain coloured concrete and the proposed sheet
pile wall/pre-cast unit would be exposed sheet pile at the lower level on the wet side, to
allow for inspections by the EA and plain finished coloured concrete on the dry side and
above the exposed sheet pile on the wet side. There would be limited views of the lower
level of the wall and as such, the proposed materials would be acceptable. Therefore, the
proposed development would not be a prominent feature in the locality and would be in
accordance with Policies EN1/2 and EN1/3 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

SITE 5 - The proposed defence would be consist of a series of grassed bunds,
embankments and a retaining wall, which would vary between 1 and 3 metres in height. The
height of the proposed defences is the minimum required to maintain an effective defence.
The proposed retaining wall would connect to the bridge over the Metrolink at the southern
point of the site and would be constructed from textured and coloured concrete to match the
existing bridge on the wet side and plain coloured concrete on the dry side. The proposed
grassed bunds and embankments would be appropriate within the setting and as such, the
proposed defences would be acceptable. Therefore, the proposed development would not
be a prominent feature in the locality and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2 and
EN1/3 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Impact on amenity - The residential properties on Whitefield Road would back onto the
proposed defences on sites 2 and 3. The nearest residential properties would be at least 69
metres from the proposed wall, which would be between 1 - 1.5 metres in height. Given the
distance of separation, there would be no significant adverse impact.

Nos 1 - 13 York Street would face the proposed defences on site 4. The residential
properties would be a minimum of 26 metres from the proposed wall, which would be 2.7

Page 65



metres in height. Given the distance of separation, there would be no significant adverse
impact.

The proposed works associated with site 5 would be located on the opposite side of the
Metrolink embankment and would be no higher than the existing Metrolink embankment. As
such, the proposed development would not have any greater an impact upon the residential
amenity of neighbouring properties than the existing situation

Therefore, the proposed development would not have a significant adverse impact upon the
amenity of the occupiers of the residential properties.

Noise - Access to the sites for the proposed development would be taken from Warth Road,
Whitefield Road, York Street, Dumers Lane and the existing access to Bury Point. It is
acknowledged that there would be some adverse impact upon the amenity of the
neighbouring properties through noise and disturbance during implementation only.
However, the potential for noise and disturbance would be mitigated by the restriction of the
hours of delivery from 09.00 to 15.00 and hours of work between 08.00 and 18.00 on
Monday to Friday. The Pollution Control Section has no objections to the proposal and
conditions relating to the hours of operation would be imposed. As such, it is considered
that the wider benefits of the flood defence scheme would outweigh the temporary
disturbance to the amenity of the neighbouring properties during construction.

Flood risk - A flood risk assessment has been submitted as part of the application. The
FRA responds to the wider flood defence scheme as well as the respective phases. The
FRA indicates that the full scheme would provide significant benefits to 873 residential
properties within the Radcliffe area. In addition, the raised defences to both sides of the
river, particularly along side the existing business parks, would significantly reduce the risk
of debris entering the watercourse during flood events and substantially reduce the risk of
blockages at the bridge structures. There are some short terms risks during the delivery of
phase 2 and methods for mitigation have been identified during this period.

The Environment Agency has no objections in principle and further comments will be
reported in the Supplementary Report.

Therefore, the proposed development would not increase flood risk and would offer
significant benefits to over 800 properties in Radcliffe. The proposed development would be
in accordance with Policy EN5/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF.

Ecology

Otters - An otter survey was carried out on the River Irwell and the otter technical note has
been provided to GM Ecology Unit (GMEU). GMEU has no objections to the proposed
development, subject to the inclusion of a condition requiring the recommendations of the
otter technical note.

Bats - A bat survey was submitted and the proposed development was assessed as having
negligible impact upon bats. GMEU has no objections, subject to the inclusion of an
informative relating to bats.

Nesting birds - As a result of the proposed development, trees and scrub will be removed
along the river bank and therefore, the removal of bird nesting habitat. GMEU has no
objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to nesting birds and a condition for
landscaping to include mitigation for loss of nesting bird habitat.

Invasive species - A construction method statement has been provided in relation to the
presence of Giant Hogweed, Himalayan Balsam and Japanese Knotweed. GMEU have
assessed the statement and have no objections, subject to a condition relating to the
implementation of the statement.

Protection of the River Irwell - During construction, the river would need to be protected to
Page 66




minimise the risk of pollution and this would be secured by a condition relating to a
construction and environmental management plan.

A Water Framework Directive Assessment has been provided, which has assessed the long
term impact of the work as negligible with no significant impacts on the ecological potential
of the river. GMEU agree with these findings and would recommend a condition requiring a
landscaping masterplan for all mitigation for phase 2.

Overall, the proposed development would not cause harm to the protected species and
GMEU has no objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to reasonable
avoidance measures, nesting birds, invasive species, a construction environmental
management plan and a landscape masterplan. Therefore, the proposed development
would be in accordance with Policies EN6 and ENG6/3 of the Bury Unitary Development
Plan.

Trees - The proposed development would involve the removal of trees on the various sites
to facilitate the development. All of the trees on all the sites have been surveyed and they
are all of moderate to low quality trees. Of the trees on site, 5 trees and 3 groups of
category B trees and 5 trees and 9 groups of category C trees would be removed. This
would equate to 300 trees being removed and pruning works to a further 100 trees. It is
acknowledged that there are a lot of trees to be removed, but the trees are located within
the flood defence positions. In addition, the applicant has committed to planting 2 trees for
each one removed in the locality. A condition securing this and tree protection measures
would be included on any grant of planning permission. Therefore, the proposed
development would not impact significantly upon the character of the area and would be in
accordance with Policy EN8/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Highways issues - The proposed developments would be accessed from Warth Road,
Whitefield Road, York Street, Dumers Lane and the existing access to Bury Point. Small
compounds would be located at the respective sites, with a main compound located at
Morris Street. Parking would be available for vehicles at the sites.

A public right of way (105BUR) would cross the proposed defences at the site to the west of
Warth Road. The proposed development would include a 1:12 pedestrian access ramp over
the proposed embankment to maintain access along the PROW following completion of the
works. The Public Right of Way Officer has no objections, subject to access being
maintained after construction has been completed.

The proposed flood defences for sites 2 & 3 and 4 would both tie into the road bridge
(Hardy's Gate) at the junction of York Street and Dumers Lane. The Traffic Section has no
objections in principle to the proposed development and further comments will be reported
in the Supplementary Report.

Conclusion
The proposals put in place the final elements of the flood defence scheme, when read
across all of the other related developments (63559, 64788, 64789).

Site 5 remains an outstanding issue. There has been much discussion between the Local
Planning Authority, Cadent and the Environment Agency in seeking a way to grant a full
consent, including site 5. However, the significance of this infrastructure is such that the EA
cannot provide appropriate degrees of assurity at this stage that the proposal on this part of
the site would not have a detrimental impact upon the high pressure gas pipeline, which
serves many thousands of properties. The EA have therefore suggested that if this issue
cannot be conditioned, a split decision, allowing site 5 to be revisited through a separate
application, whilst permitting the remaining sites to proceed.

Response to objectors
e The ground conditions and limited space at the site have resulted in the use of sheet
piles and concrete retaining walls being the only available option. The use of these has

Page 67



minimised the tree loss in these areas.

* The impact of the proposal on ecology has been assessed by GMEU, who have no
objections to the proposed development, subject to the inclusion of conditions, which the
LPA supports.

« The impact of the proposed defences on the visual amenity of the area has been
addressed in the report above.

The Environment Agency have provided the following responses to the questions raised:

e The works are due to begin in February 2020 and last until March 2021. However, the
proposals on Milford Drive are expected to be completed in a shorter timeframe.

e The works would be restricted to the hours of 08.00 - 18.00, Monday to Friday and
works would not take place at weekends.

* The majority of site cabins would be located at the compound at Morris Street with some
smaller huts and individual cabins at the site. It is likely that these would be located on
the opposite side of the Metrolink embankment to Milford Drive.

« There would be some noise impact, but the works would take place on the opposite side
of the embankment, which would limit noise impacts upon residents.

The following points have been responded to by the Environment Agency in relation to the
hydropower objection:

Objection : We were not fairly informed of the submission of this planning application.
Response : The Environment Agency has taken steps to hold direct discussions with
Resolution Hydro Ltd prior to the formal application. Further discussions are planned to be
held on 2nd December

Objection : The proposed scheme dramatically increases the flood risk to the hydropower
development.

Response : The modelling done by the Environment Agency has shown that, in the area
around the Hydropower plant control building, the relative change in level for a given return
period flood is unlikely to significantly change the degree of damage caused. We are
currently in the process of updating the model with final design defence levels which should
improve the clarity of flood levels for events exceeding the 100yr event. We will advise of
any changes to our predictions. Every effort has been made to minimise the impacts either
by scheme design or alternative arrangements.

Objection : The proposed scheme increases the risk to the land surrounding the
hydropower development.

Response : The proposed scheme will act to restrict flooding on the north bank, but
changes to the south bank are limited to minor works to prevent extreme event overtopping
onto Bury Road and prevent downstream flooding via Hutchinson's Goit. The works
proposed on the entrance to the Hutchinson's Goit culvert under Bury Road will not block
the culvert and are designed to limit flows during extreme events to no more than that which
occurs under the 'no scheme' scenario. These flows are very small in comparison to the
main river flows and have little impact on the overall flood levels in this area. As with the
hydroplant control building, the frequency and routing of flood water in this area remains
largely unchanged by the proposals. As such, there is not considered to be any significantly
detrimental increase in the risk of erosion or to public safety as a result of the proposals.

Objection : The flood risk assessment does not accurately represent the risks posed by the
proposed scheme.

Response : The reference to 940mm is only applicable to levels downstream of the large
weir and is caused by the flow being constrained by Warth bridge. The level increases at
the location of the hydropower plant control building are predicted to be much lower than
this.

Objection : The modelled data used by the EA to inform the design of the whole scheme is

demonstrably incorrect, and sometimes unfathomable.

Response : The modelling work carried out by the Environment Agency is based on a

verified hydraulic model that has been developed and updated with recent site survey data
Page 68



and hydrology based on long term river gauges.

Objection : The proposed scheme could lead to a flood surge.

Response : The predicted increases in flood levels upstream of the Metrolink bridge are
relatively low and not expected to significantly change the risk to the bridge structure. All
proposals are to be discussed and agreed with TTGM to ensure they are suitable and do not
pose unacceptable risk of this nature.

Objection : FRA (downstream) - it demonstrates that for any given event, the probability has
approximately doubled as a result of the flood defence scheme

Response : The probability has not doubled. The change and impact need to be considered
relative to the baseline flood level and the relative building levels and the point at which
damage may occur. Please refer to our previous responses.

Objection : FRA (upstream) - The EA data demonstrates the presence of the scheme will
result in approximately a 3-fold increase in the probability of our defences being destroyed,
and approximately 4-fold increase in the probability of a 'total loss' event occurring, in any
given year

Response : The increased probability of a 'total loss' is not 3 or 4 fold. Please refer to our
previous responses.

The hydropower station is located in an area that will flood and would suffer severe
damage at a 1 in 100 year flood event with or without the flood defences being in place. It is
accepted by the EA that the proposed development would increase the flow within the river
by 200mm in a 1 in 100 year flood but the flood defences would control and retain this flow
to protect the nearby properties. The issues raised in the representations have been directly
responded to by the EA and the LPA and the Local Flood Authority would have no reason to
assume otherwise given the responses given. The issue of compensation would be a
private matter between the objector and the EA.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2 015

Proposal A

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during pre-application discussions to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Proposal B

The proposal would not improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of the
area nor does it comply with the development plan and therefore does not comprise
sustainable development. There were no amendments to the scheme, or conditions which
could reasonably have been imposed, which could have made the development acceptable
and it was therefore not possible to approve the application. The Local Planning Authority
has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

Recommendation: Split Decision
Conditions/ Reasons
1. Proposal A - The development must be begun not later than three years

beginning with the date of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act

Page 69



1990.

Proposal B - The application and submitted plans contain insufficient information
to enable the impact of the proposed development upon the gas pipeline to be
properly assessed. Therefore, the proposed development would conflict with the
following Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan:

Policy EN1/11 - Public Utility Infrastructure.

Proposal A - This decision relates to drawings numbered
ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-47Z-DR-T-0213365 P01,
ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4WN-DR-T-0213380 P02,
ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4WN-DR-L-0307021 P02,
ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4RV-DR-T-0213382 P02,
ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4RV-DR-T-0213383 P02,
ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4RV-DR-T-0213384 P02,
ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4RV-DR-T-0213385 P02,
ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4RV-DR-L-0307020 P02,
ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4BP-DR-T-0213387 P02,
ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4BP-DR-T-0213386 P02,
ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4BP-DR-L-0307022 P02,
ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4RV-DR-T-0213393 P01,
ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4BP-DR-T-0213395 P01,
ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4WN-DR-T-0213394 P01,
ENV0000389C-DzZ-477-VS-C-0214012 and the development shall not be carried
out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

Proposal A - Details/Samples of the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external
elevations, together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the
development is commenced. Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for
the construction of the development.

Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity.

Proposal A - The development hereby approved shall be carried out in
accordance with the recommendations of the Otter Technical Note, dated 4
December 2018.

Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 — Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 —
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section
11 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Proposal A - No works to trees or shrubs shall occur between the 1st March and
31st August in any year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably
experienced ecologist has been carried out immediately prior to clearance.
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 -
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

Proposal A - The development hereby approved shall be carried out in
accordance with the Construction method statement relating to Giant Hogweed,
Himalayan Balsam and Japanese Knotweed.

Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the actual extent of
Japanese Knotweed and Himalayan Balsam in the interest of UDP Policy EN9 -

Landscape and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 11 -
Page 70



Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

7. Proposal A - Notwithstanding the information submitted, a Landscape and
Environmental Management Plan, as part of the overall master plan for phase 2,
shall be submitted to, and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of the development, excluding any tree and vegetation clearance.
The contents of the plan should include native tree and shrub planting and the
provision of bat bricks/tubes within the new development and bat and bird boxes.
The approved scheme shall thereafter be implemented not later than 12 months
from the date of substantial completion of the development or within the first
available tree planting season; and any trees or shrubs removed, dying or
becoming severely damaged or becoming severely diseased within five years of
planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those
originally required to be planted.

Reason. Information not submitted at application stage. To secure the satisfactory
development of the site and in the interests of visual amenity pursuant to Policies
H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development, EN1/2 - Townscape and
Built Design and EN8/2 - Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment of the NPPF.

8. Proposal A - No development other than tree and vegetation clearance shall take
place or machinery brought on site unless and until a method statement to protect
the River Irwell and riparian corridor from accidental spillages and from via existing
drainage has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. All
approved measures shall be implemented and maintained for the duration of the
construction period in accordance with the approved details, for all phases of the
development.

Reason. Information not submitted at application stage. To ensure a safe and
satisfactory development of the site and ensure the protection of the River Irwell
and riparian corridor from any pollutants and construction disturbance which may
cause risk, pursuant to chapter 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment of the NPPF.

9. Proposal A - No development, other than tree clearance shall commence unless
and until:-

« An appropriate scheme of intrusive site investigations has been undertaken
and the report of the findings of the intrusive site investigations has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;

« Where actual/potential risks from coal mining have been identified, a detailed
scheme of remedial works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority;

« Where remedial works are required, a Site Verification Report detailing the
actions taken and conclusions at each stage of the remediation works,
including substantiating evidence, shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the development being brought
into use.

Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the actual risk form coal

mining and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory

development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework

Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

For further information on the application please contact Helen Leach on 0161 253 5322

Page 71



64790 - Various sites in Radcliffe User Name

By

Production Date: 09 Jan 2020 Scale 3500 when printed at A4

© Bury Council 2020 WML Update 18-07-2017

© Crown Copyright and Database Rights 2020. 0OS 100023063..




64790 - Various sites in Radcliffe User Name

- s

Production Date: 13 Jan 2020 Scale 3500 when printed at A4

© Bury Council 2020 WML Update 18-07-2017 © Crown Copyright and Database Rights 2020. OS 100023083,

Notes




Vc

Viewpoints Sites 1,2,3,4

=

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

Bk

COUNCIL

Y

N

/
~@)=E

Land to south of Central Avenue & KeswicK/Drive

S

W

. NO 64790
Bury

APP
ADDRESS:

Environmental and Regulatory Services

Planning,

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 74




Viewpoints Site 5

R O . AT KR ST A RS 71
O, N AR RINF

/) \\ ‘Q \ ’
N R SN
N MR AR N /) ==K
(0 N2 07 A IO
) By (K
/

4

> Qe 7 )
..,,Z,»A\w, 38
N 62/

)

d
§w

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

APP. NO 64790

E

Y

COUNCIL

N

W

/
E
ick/ Drive

ADDRESS: Land to south of Central Avenue & Keswic

S

Bury

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 75




64790

Photo 1 (Site 1)

Photo 2 (Sites 2,3&4)

Page 76



64790

Photo 3 (Site 2,38&4)
LA e S

Fr iyl
|rF|_

Photo 4 (sites 2,3&4)

Page 77



64790

Photo 5 (Site 5)

Photo 6 (Site 5)

Page 78



64790

Photo 7 (Site 5)

Photo 8 (Site 5)

Page 79



Location Map
e = * 'T'Ll\DnJ n

= v} Halifor

T ; 3
.- |rL s Otgk

:mm.um TER e

- {
Hudder

Ea 1 /

Key to Symbols

D Planning Application Boundary

/ {see drawing 0213362]

= "1—"‘%427‘2}

Notes

1. Contains OS data ® Crown copyright and database right

(2019) Contains Environment Agency |nfovmahon ®
Agency and/or datab

is licensed under the Opan Govemmant Licence v3,0

P01 | 22/08/18 | SP_|Firstiswe EW | Js
Rev Date | Drawn| D on Chikd | Appd

Spring Bank House

M 33 Stamford Street
Altrincham, WA14 1ES

M United Kingdom

MOTT

MACDONALD T +44 (0)161 926 4000
F +44 (0}161 929 8815
W mottmac.com

@Aamcy

Titls
ENV0D00389C Radcliffe & Redvales FRMS
Detailed Design Phase 2
Planning Application Boundary
Radcliffe Areas - Overview
Sheet 01 of 03

[orawn  |sParkdnson  [sP [Eng cheek [nia NiA
b | Designed | S Parkinson SP | Coordination | J Staring S
| i ,._‘Q_ 4 GIS Check | € waters EW |Approved |Jstaring |us
\ 3 S dal __‘ o / R nl A 'i Scale atA3 I Status I Rev I Sacurity
) ] . = = . = 1:5,000 PRE PO1 STD
a document s eaued for heparty which commisioned  andforapecllc 1t éhould not be refied upon by any ofher party or used for any cths pupose, Drawing Number
of this document being relied upon by any othr party, or bemg wsed for eny obhes purpose, or containing any emor or omissicn which Is due to R emar of emission b data aupplied to us by ofher parties. ENV0000383C-BMM-DZ-427-DR-T-0213361

for the

0} [, wi

VA [See drawing 0213365] -~
. na 0 .
_4" / A / \\

»
<

! EALo 3 GMMC7 Appralszie Package\Drawings and Mapsii.0 Radeiifle & DZ-47Z-DR-T-0213381-82-P01-Phesa 2 Red Line Plan Redvales Areas Sheet 1,mxd




Tia info existireiwall "

@ G Crown sopyighl and daiabave fhl 01, Contaims

‘Contabe 03
Evionment Apemcy Irhrviaten G Eaiunion Aqency endr datidese dght,

[ Notes

1. e .

2. Allevels are in matres Above Ordanance Datum (AQD) uniess siated atharwise,

3, This crmwing s to communicats the design for planning purpases anly nd must
‘not be uead for canstruction,

4, Exinting Some required,
Additiorial screening to be pravided whete Indicated, For full datalts of tree.
clmarance and planting refer to document reference
ENVO0C038EC-BMM-DZ-4BP-DR-L-0307022 - Final Landscape Masterplan,

Key to symbols

CentreEne of propoved defence
Exleling Ground Protile

T8 abed

€:Mol MacDonald

Retadning wall
Sheet pile
Bury Point East - Plan s
1:500
70.00,
Comp Bury Polrt East - 73m
89,0 o o
g 88,00}
g 8700
66.00)
: - : - - y=s
Chainage (m) % g g g g f g g g Refarence Drawings
h v H i)
amlngmmﬂwlé & & 13 ﬁ 8] & & 5{ 1
{ ACD) 3 E 5 g 2 E E R
: : i 1 1 |
Defence CrestLevel 8 2 8 1 8 ] R/ &8 |
we5 "8 8 4 8 & 3 ¥ §s [
Bury Point East - Profile |
HY:500 V1100
PO1 | 27/08M9 CC | Draft for EA review 8 Js
P02 | O7HOHD CC | For Planning Submission J& -
Rev | Dats Drawn | Deseription Chi'd | App'd
E
Spring Bank House
E‘ M 33 Stamford Street
Plsin Enish concrete on wetand dry side 5 AStincham
bl 1 B 3 M WA141ES
o MOTT United Kingdom
MACDONALD
T +44(0)161 928 4000
W ¥ bam Nomcom
-
i &
Bockl Erwironmant Agency
. Environmeny —Seeoreriu tose
64 LW Agency Warnpton,
WA HHG
s
€. Title s
Section A-A Radcllfrg & Redvales FRMS
1100 Bury Point
Planned Development Area
East Defence Plan & Section
Sheet 1 of 1
Designed |JHokon | Eng check |ustaring | Js
Dawn  |commw | cc |G [sien sL
Dug. check [ABure | AB Approved | J.Staring s
MMD Project Number Scale at A1 Securtty
408463 As Shown 8TD
‘Suitability Deacrigtion Sutt, Code
s 11— == | Fit for Information s2
o $m 10m ProctCoan Ongosior Vome Localon Type Dibe St Hurber. Reviskon
el e L L7 g EN >-BMM-DZ-4BP-DR- T -0213387 P02




. [ e | s
- L 1N inmetres unjess stated otherwls
2. All levels are In metres Above Ordanance Datum (ADD) unless stated otharwise.
3. This drawing is to communicate the dasign for planning purposes onfy and must
nat bo ussd for construction.
4, Existing traes shown os surveyed, Some trae clasrance will be requited.
. pn Indicated. For of ise
0 clagrance and planting refer to documant referenoe
ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4BP-DR-L-0307022 - Final Landecapa Masterplan.
Appiia 7m wide x 2.75m hig vwleike sreews S gats AmpSinuie e Retate
™ e
” 1 Tin indo extates; smmserart
| s e "
M 2 = Key to symbols
+ 3 .
/ Cenrefina of proposed defence
Theifte exjstirn embarkmwmt " L Existing Ground Profle
a ke |
E Retaining wall
I .
Bury Point North - Plan
1:500
7000 ‘Comp Bury Point North - 176m
9.0 = 2
g 88.00
g sro0
B8.001
;JU I : . & g 2 g 8 8 g ] 2 3 3 g [ 8 3
8 ] ] ] 1 4 ] 2 8
Q Ghalnage {m) g B € 3 2 B 8 14 g 2 g 2 k4 g g [ Relerence Drawings
1 : ' : : ¥ .
- - - - - - - - . F ; i -
D Extsling Ground Level & e b3 2 ] 2 g 8 b 5 8 & 3 8 B ] 3 8
{m acD) % 2 g B : B 8 3 B & 5 B % B ] 2
:
S
Defence Craat Level & 4 y 3
) § & § & § 8§ § 8§ § & § § § § § § §°@
| i i i }
Bury Point North - Profile
H1:500 V1:100
P01 | 300818 CC | Dvafl for EA raview Js Js
E P02 | 07TMOMO | CC | For Planning Submission Js
Plaln finish concrete on wet and dry side & S Pisin finkeh cormorefp o wet are dy wide Rov_|Date | Orawn | Description pp'
- Spring Bank House
7 M 23 Stamford Street
= Altrincham
Typlcal water level MOTT M WA141ES
Unitet Kingdom
MACDONALD
g [ i +¥ bam Vomnmeaion,
n T 1 Grownas be reinstated to
G;:\;‘d 't: »’;' relmut’ﬂ:: | h:mll-h ;::uﬂmu':ﬁmn: nuttal}
usbwih sureour
and match axisting finish l == id 7 Cliert
854 L2 Backdifl Environsment Agency
— .. o - Richard Fairclough Hause
= Environment o
A Agency Warrington
WAd 1HG
8
Section A-A SectonB-B
1:100 100 -
: ’ Radcliffe & Redvales FRMS
Bury Point
Planned Development Area
North Defence Plan & Section
Sheet 1 of 1
Designed | J. Holdan JH Eng. check | J Starling S
Drawn C.Chau [==] S.Las 8L
Dwg. check | ABurke AB Approved J.Starking Js
MWD FPreject Number Scale at A1 Security
408463 As Shown STD
a ‘Suitabilty Description Suit. Code
o0 —— “m | Fit for Information 82
€ holt MacDomald 0 5m 10m Project o Origniler Vekma Loaon Tie e SwhMumber | Revision
100 T e 1 ! EN -BMM-DZ-4BP-DR- T -0213386 PO2
AR RaemeToam [T s 1T B S R BT




14 Lacation Map
Vehicle access through flood wall

=

%0 5800000080800 0 8 s tessecsrrre s

Flood wall ties into

Ik DFlelcrech-ld

5| wREg® T & @ Ho
ST

E Sea existing defence ]
[l -y e ' G
[} . , LI
1 . 5 & s HA
Reinstatement only required if route external | S~y A : Cantains 05 data © Crown Gonytight and Hataase
to carpark is used for access. Alternative b ! | fight 2019
access available through the carpark L i & Key to Symhols
o
\ . : : ) _ Engineering measure
Flood wall ties in to high ground | . Pedestian access iough flood gale :I E % " Water and flow direction
| ;;* :I = 9 e Lol o ] l & — — Public Rights of Way (PRoW)
. T N\ _ Site of biological interest
_ A AL @ Existing Data Terrain Model
y . g (DTM) - 5m contours
o Bealey's Goil N % Tree removed (indicative canopy)
-~ / . Existing grass embankment to be a | : FIrrERpTY
. reinstated only whers impacted by >0 @ 3 | : r_é33‘ Tree retained {indicative canopy)
S ° the works [ § g i . Approx. area EG9 meadow seed
¥, Gravity reteining B Lpy - Approx. area EM1 meadow seed
/ floodwall, plain finish
concrete to wet and a‘-‘?B / Approx. area EM8 meadow seed
dry side. @ [:, Area of invasive species
River lrwell

{treatment by others)
Landscaping works as designed
by Groundwork (see drawing
reference GM 2228 03)

Photograph/ visualisation location
~_and direction

1 Approx site compound location
* * Construction site access

1. [ "

20 AR lovels are in metres above Orchance Datum (MACD).

3 gLy
2 Agoncy mert Agarcy andtor databaise
tight

£.Tobo read n confuncion Survey Report BMM-
DZ-22-RP-EN-03
&. Landacape sy 220808

PO2| 0410M9| GO | Update to Client Commants MB JS

Numbers of individual trees to be removed to be Flood wall ties into existing def

s e
’a-ncn-tncuo-ouoilcou.-.otuao-noon »

PO1| 26/08M9 | GO | First fesua MB | Js
confirmed throughout site area, and subject to Rev| Oate | Drawn| Information Chkd| App'd
warking areas requirad M Spring Bank House

Gravity retaining floodwalls ranging 33 Stamford Street
Non-native invasive species grow along the in height approximately 1.0-2.0m. Viewpoint 7 - Existing situation MOTT M cvk:;'ﬂas"s'
river embankments. The EA are undertaking Plain finish conrets to wet and dry MACDONALD United Kingdom
active freatment of invasive species within the dry sides. T +44 (0)161 826 4000
footprint of existing assets, this wili continue W mottmac.com
for any future assets as a result of the
Scheme. The contractor must accomodate this “lient
work, and comply with all requirements. Environment Agency
Seeding in these areas subjecf to confrmallcn r Es ety Richard Fairclough House
of successful treatment. R A U AN I I I IR A A @\IZ-. mﬁ;gtrﬁ:oad
Gravity retaining floodwalls ranging in height g B 2] WA4 1HG
between approximately 50 - 200 cm Flood wall ties in to high ground ——
Plain finish concrete to wet and dry sides.

Reinstatement works to soft areas of the works and

working area to comprise wild flower meadow seeding:

- EM1 Basic general purpose meadow

mixture to dry side

- EMB Meadow mixture for wetlands to o
weat side E:

Seeds available from Emorsgate www.wildseed.co,uk

{Titte

Radcliffe and Redvales FRMS
Phase 2 Detailed Design

Bury Point

Final Landscape Masterplan

- - - Designed RCosta | RG |Eng Check MBrewster | MB
Boundaries to reinstated seeded areas to be confirmed Viewpoint 7 - At completion of proposals Drawn | G O'Donovan | Go M Brewster | M8
on site. 4 GIS Check| T Ruff TR | Approved J Starling Js
Hard areas to be reinstated to their original state . cale at A3 Status. Rev I Secanity

4 Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2019 1:1,000 82 P02 STD

& Moft MacDonald Lt

| This document Is issued far the party which commissioned & and for specilic purposes connected with the captioned project only. It shotdd nat be relied upan by any other party or used for any cther purpose.
W acvest no for the 1 this docup

T T T T T 1 [
o u3 by other parties., 0 10 20 30 40 50 Meters | ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4BP-DR-L-0307022

wgen by mvy othver gty or belng used far wry other pumuse. or containing mevy error or omission which Is due to an emer or omissio




Corking G5 a3 Coma sopyrh and Gt o Wt (1018, Contas Mates.

= J

1. All dhmensions are in metres Uniesa stated ctherwise.
2 Alllavels are In mefrea Abave Ordanance Datum (AOD) unlass stated otherwite.

3. This. planring onty and must
ot be usad for construation.
hown

il be required.
Acditional pr For oftree
jooe

ENVDOOABIC-BMM-DZ-4BP.DR-L-0307020 - Firal Landscape Mastarplan.

Key (o symbols

Centreline of proposad defence

. Retairing wal

.

T
QD
(o] Reforance Orawings
(¢}
(o] ’
N
PO1 | 3000019 CC | Draft for EA review Js 5
P02 | 07H0/49 | CC | For Planning Submission JS
Rev Date Drawn | Description Ch'k!
Spring Bank House:
M 23 Stamford Street
Altrincham
M WA141E8
MACDONALD e g
T +44{0)181 926 4000
+ bam Weorsmaimacom
nuttall
X
Erviranment Agency
ey iryr Richard Falrelough Housa
l‘ OVITONMEnE e e
LW Agency Wartington
WAL 1HG
=2 [ Tto
Radcliffe & Redveles FRMS
Component 38 Redvales Business Park
Planned Davelopment Area
General Arrangement
Sheet 1 of 4
Designed J,Holden JH Eng. check | J,Staring J5
Drawn C.Chau cC Cx Lee SL
Dwy. aheck | A Burks AB Approved J.Stariing JB
MMD Project Number Scale ot A1 Security
408463 As Shown STD
Sultabllity Description Suit. Code
) Fit for Information 82
- - o 50m 1m PriretCode Okt Volme Locaton s D Swmew | Reviskn
— , by 5000 [ i | EN -BMM-DZ-4RV-DR- T - 0213382 P02
CIUsersChad0MIdOUmantiBIm s =I7SHENVWM!IDDWWW~T-UIIS)!:MD¢ 7, 2019 « 2A9PM chad0gdz = — ;




Ao

B

N

_—
‘Coatia OF 002 C Crous opyight aad duliase iy (2318), Cortas | |

Notes.

1. it n maire 3

2. Allevels ara in matres Byl

3 This {0 for planning
notbe used (or construiction.

4. Exiling treaw shown s surveyed, Some tree clsarance will be required.
Additional P indicated, For

of tree

ENVD000388C-BMM-DZ-4BP-DR-L-0307020 - Firal Landscape Masterplan,

Key o symboly

Canirebne of praposed defence
Exdsting Ground Profle

-~

Retairing wall

Sheet plle

gt o
75.00
74,00
72,00
72.00
- 38-00 - 252m 38-03-133m
7 — — W —
o
i 70.00
g
69.00
88,00
67.00)
o 6500
QD
T T T T T T T T
g 2 g 2 8 g 8 B 8 g g g 8 8 g 2 g g g g g 8 g g g
(poteese ) . ] g g ¢ H g g £ g g 8 H 8 g g 2 g § g & g 8 H & & Retororo Dravings
: ! . i i . . . i | : i } f f ¥ t + § f
QQising Ground Level . 5 2 2 3 ] 2 8 2 8 - 3 8 2 IS 2 3 3 & g e ] b g 2 % 8
oD g E 2 2 2 2 2 2 g g g 4 8 g 2 g 2 2 E g g 3 g g E g g
t t ) . + . + t t + t t 1 t t t t t t t + % 1 t t + 4 } ¥ + i
Defence Crest Lavel § 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 [ |4 [ 2 2 2
w0 & § § § § & § & § R & & ¢ § § § & § § & § & § & € % ¢ & § ¢ ¢ ¢
Redvales Business Park Profile
H1:500 V1.100 POt | 27700019 CC | Draft for EA review Js s
P02 | 0710/ CC | For Planning Submission J8 -
Rev | Date Drawn | Dwscription chkd | App'd
Spring Bank House
M 33 Stamford Sirast
M Altrincham
WAI41ES
T |"°u| :lll ONALD United Kingdom
E Both sides to be. T +44 (0}161 926 4000
2 3| e oy +¥ bam STt mEsn
Precast modular gravity wal & s tobe i &l / nuttall
with Intogea coping stene. % o i dipt-erite ) Procast modular gravity wallwith o
2= = _ Integrat coping stone. =1/ Ciont
= ] Emvironment Agency
Environmeny {ehearorichtose
5.l LW Agency Worrington
7 L3 WA4 1HG
N Title
5 : Radcliffe & Redvales FRMS
S e . Component 38 Redvales Business Park
—_— . Topsol \  seeett Planned Development Area
3 ! . i
d 85 Chainage 0-789 Plan & Section
Sheet 2 of 4
Designed | .LHolden M Eng. check | J.Starling S
l Drawn C.Chau o ‘Coardination | S,Les SL
L= . Dwg. check | A Burke AB Approved J.Starkng Js
Section A - A SectionB-B MMD Froject Number ‘Scale at Al Securty
oo 00 408453 As Shown STD
a . _ﬁm Som ‘Suitability Description Suit. Code
e L ! | Fit for Information 82
Mo MaeDenetd sm 10m Profec Code Otgniw Ve Lwster Typs D Godwbumber | Revision
L T s T o W oy [ ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4RV-DR- T -0213383 P02
Clusarsicha M2 docummentsbam .--m17mvsnvomm-wmﬂv-oﬂwzum.m o7, 5|’.z_uﬂv m'ﬁ.




Notes

1. All dimentions 81 in metras uniess atated otherwise,
\O0)

2. Alllavels ere In matres Oa
a ign far planning and must
ot bo used for constuction,
4. Existing trees shown s survoyed, Some tras clearance wil be requiad,
indicated. For of tras

ctearance and planting refer to document raforence
ENVO0OD3S8C-BMM-DZ-48P-DR-L-0307020 - Final Landscape Masterptan,

Key to symbols

Certreine of propased defence
Existing Ground Profile

Retaining walt

Shoet pile

75.00l
m:o]
73.00,
U 72.00)
g 71.00 - 2508 “A33m 38-08- 41m 3607 - 96m 38-09-81m 2610 29m Reference Drawings
—— §  Osi0-2
o ! e
m ’ £0.00/
(o]
68,00/
67.00
€6.00
PO1 | 30/0918 CC | Draft for EA review Js Js
8 8 2 g g g g 8 8 g g 8 g g g g g 2 8 S Poz | 071018 | GG | For Fanning Submission s | -
Crainege (m) 8 H E s g § g § g g § & H & 2 3 & H 3 i ] = e
; i t T : + - + + + + . - + t
2 : F: g g 5 3 3 ] 8 & 2 i g 2 b4 g 8 g 3 I Spring Benk House
oy g 8 FB B B ¥ g g i & & § & & § & & § s 3 § § @& 5 IM 5 St S
1 1 T I 1 I I 1 1 + } - - } T + } t T ) T AMincham
1 T T T T T 1 1 t t t T t T ¥ T T i 1 T R T T M
Delerca Crest Lavel [4 I3 2 4 |4 2 4 b g 8 g g g $ 2 2 g g ¢ g & 8 g 8 8 2 g WA141ES
meTTME B 8 ¢ 0§ ¢ f f 0§ 8 B B 3 ¢ % & ¢ ¢ ¢ f & & f & & & & B B ¢ |wwm M e
) T +44 (0)161 925 4000
Redvales Business Park Profile # bam Wewmotimac.com
H1:500 v1:100
nuttall
Client
s Ervironment Agency
Industsie! style steel - Rithard Fairclough House
ot | | nment
Finish to hoth side 1o be exposed g o opo tples 1\' ‘_ “"‘: L Knuteford Road
shest pila facing 10 anable / A ALENCY Wartington
faimenance inspection WAL THG
™ } Exising vegetation and trees to rver side of crest b be it
. a rel cret B
rotaived s ot ms possile 0 prvide seresting Radcliffe & Redvales FRMS
—_—t— — Component 38 Redvales Business Park
\ Planned Development Area
3 \ Chainage 0-789 Plan & Section
\ Shest3 of 4
"\ Existing river bark crest to be s-{retled & Designed | JHoklan | JH Eng. check | J.Starting 5
- Sheet pite | [y Gm'u e/plomtod ish Drawn C.Chau [ =3 Lee sL
S DOwg. check | ABurke AB Approved J.Stariing JS
MMD Project Number Scale al A1 Securty
408463 As Shown STD
Eutabllity Deseription Sult. Code
. ‘em | Fit for Information 82
& Mt MarDond SectionC-C Nl =T gt Ve oo Tpv O swrres | Revision
= 1:100 A ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4RV-DR- T -0213384 P02
ﬁﬂmw remevoRm Y T ST B TR




/8 abed

£ Mot MacBionnd

Hotes.

& .
.
Tie wotul tan
Xl
e
Redvales Business Park ——— 3
st e .
75.00
74.00
73.00
7200/
71.00)
§l 38-10-28m 38-11-177m
LYY — —
EH
69.00|
8,00
67.00|
66.00]
g g 8 8 -1 g 8 g g g 8 g 8 g
e L g g § g g 2 B S i 4 £ £ B 3 g
T T T } ; o + T + . + t + y
Exiating Ground Level g 4 8 1 8 g 8 2 2 - g 8 8 8 8 & 8
{m A0D) g g 8 E E g S g g g o g g g H g ?
t . + I f + t t 4 + f ¥ T ¥
Defenca Crest Level & o 2 14 g 2 & g 8 8 8 8 & 8 2 2 g g g 8
(mA0D) g g g g g g g g g H R R g g g g $ $ £ &
L N i ) i i i P
Redvales Business Park
H1:500 V1:100
£ tndustrial style stoel = .
g S| Uoopgtotopsolpes {ow vt ram iy &
| D =T
E bt 3
S k= 2
& 4 Exuting &
) Existing buikiing ol Building i l
o
£
&
Finish1o both #ide to be exposed 1 A |
sheet pile facing to enable - L
E mairenance inspoction .~ g
- Shectplle - -l /
Exiating fivar bank crest 1o be re-profiled Shest pllowall * Exleting river bank crest o be ra-profifed
a3 necesuary fo avold low points behind I 3 necessary to avokdfow points behing
W existing bank crest. Grasses/planted finish | exieting bank crest Grassea/planied finish
LE 6
SectionD - D Section E-E
1100 11100 - ?'_I_’ L z:'“ som
Sm 10m

0
e T LT LI i

1 lews siated atherwie

2. Allevels ara in metrea Above Ordanance Datum (AOD) uriess siated othervise,

3. Thia drawing 1s to communicats the design for planning purpases anly and must
1ot be used for construction,

4, Exinting Iress shown as survayed. Some bise clearance wil be requirad.
Additional sareering to be provided whers indicated. For ful datais of tree
clearance and planting refer to document reforence
ENVO000385C-BMM-D2-4BP-DR-L-0307020 - Final Landscape Masierplan,

Kay to symbols

Gentreline of proposed defence
Existing Greund Profle

Retairing wal

o

Retarence Drawings
PO | 2700918 CC | Draft for EA review 5 JS
Pa2 | o048 GC | For Planning Submiasion 48 -
Rav | Date Drawn | Description [um: App'd
Spring Bank Houss
Ivl 32 Stamford Stroet
M Altrincham
WA141ES
MOTT United Kingdom
MACDONALD
b T +44 (0)161 926 4000
ﬁ am e matimaccom
nuttall
Client
Environmant Agency
. . v 3 Richard Fairclough Housa
Cnvir
Environment Jowerods
W Agency Wartington
WA4 1HG

Title
Radcliffe & Redvales FRMS
Component 38 Redvales Business Park
Planned Development Area

Chalnage 0-789 Plan & Section

Sheet 4 of 4
Designed | JHolden i Eng.check |LStading | JS
Dvawn C.Chau <C Coardination | 5.Lee SL
Dwg. check | A Burke A8 Approved J.Starfng JS
MMD Project Numoer Scale at AT Securtty

408463 As Shown STD

‘Sutability Description Suit. Code
Fit for Information s2

Project Cade. Originalor Vehsme Lecaion Typs  Dise Barta) Nambar. Revision
EN\ >BMM-DZ-4RV-DR~ T -0213385 P02




— — Locatian Map
OC‘\//"\S\’ (‘15 .
KESWICK DRIVE ~\ 7 x5 G
— \ e..,‘z) D \
\ L l»u »er
» " &l
See drawing ENVO0U3BIC-BMM-DZ-4WR- . o, i Z
DR-C-0213348 for proposals for Component 45 %:ﬂ;‘, ° " %
< Wall ties into Comp 45 > - Contains OS data © CrownCoperght‘and datahase
os™ aX Racnsd Grofight 2019
TGR L Key to Symbals
A8" " . ) . r . Temporary access route through existing = n
Gravity refaining wall with brick eﬁgcl paﬂemed concrete finish to botl'! sides, paved storage yard owned by Thumbs Up. —— Engineering measure
a_r:jd :;‘hgp::! ?Ioured_cor:c:'etf;oplng integrated as part of precast unit. Dry Planting to existing grassed areas only as ) R | Water and flow direction
side height of approximately 1.0m. N N i . L = : N
i . required for reinstatement. Also used as access . . — — Public Rights of Way (PRoW)
5‘1 } \ \ to Gomponent 45 Sketeh of Hardy's Gate Bridge proposals from York Street ¢ B s ) B A
P Woooal ] . " _: Site of biological interest
Gravity retaining wall with plain coloured concrete finish to both sides, and A ! Existing Data Terrain Mode!
shaped coloured concrete coping integrated as part of precast unit. Ran- . TR (DTM) - 5m contours
ging in height between approximately 1.0-2.0m. % o ]
, §1. o — Tree removed (indicative canopy)
I \ €ES Tree retained (indicative canopy)
. ‘\ 7 Approx. area EG9 meadow seed
T Numbers of individual trees to be : -
= removed to be confirmed along length 2 - Approx. area EM1 meadow seed
of site, and subject to working areas ! Approx. area EM8 meadow seed
required. Trees are likely to require [ N . .
trimming rather than feliing 7 [ ]Area of invasive species
(treatment by others)
»* \ Landscaping works as designed
Sheet pile retaining wall with exposed % by Groundwork (see drawing
pile finish to both sides, and Industrial . reference GM 2228 03)
style up-tumed metal U beam coping 3 . . .
at at dry side height of approximately———— & J . . | pprox site compound location
4,0m, extends to Hardy's Gate Bridge e ) )
4 K ‘. * Construction site access
T > - ‘.
] el . Viewpoint 4 - Existing situation
< = ry & e . .- Notes
9 R / 533 .- : ; & levels mepeim)
1 . A
8 f A .. N P S e I
1 River Irwell N o . To o rend nconju suvey Roport
S o . &, Landacape igned by 22008
‘ &/ .-,
] "§ y L] L
) . .
ey . ¢ F02 | 0411019 | GO | Update to Glient Comments| MB | Js
3 II @ @y e Pot | 260919 | Go | Firsttesue v | s
o . % Rev| Oate | Orewn| information chicd| Appd
! 5 * Spring Bank House
" Jl ° - M 33 Stamford Street
- — o N M Altrincham
” I ., ° o MOTT WA14 1ES
' i n—b'o b2 .‘. g . MACDONALD United Kingdom
| “seea. o +F bam T +44 (01161 926 4000
3 - | %5 L) W mottmac.com
3 g / N Flood wall ties into Hardy's Gate Bridge‘ R
- 1 Jrd fenent
Reinstatement works fo soft areas of the works and working area to comprise = Environment Agency
wild flower meadow seeding: ) ) Enivir Eicham Faercqugh House
- EM1 Basic general purpose meadow mixture to dry side ] Raised parapet at Hardy's Gate Bridge constructed using focal ¥ Apency W’;“r::;g“ oad
- EM8 Meadow mixture for wetlands to wet side @ stone to match the bndga s exlslmg slone coping. Thisis WA4 1HG
Seeds available from Emorsgate www.wildseed.co,uk . in a sep pl g ap
Boundaries to reinstated seeded areas to be confirmed on site. @ York Street ‘\ =
Hard areas to be reinstated to their original state \L \ Radcliffe and Redvales FRMS
Numbers of individual trees to be removed to be confirmed throughout site e J 7\(5 (P;hase 2 D?talled Design
area, and subject to working areas required o ) *b . -omponen 38
e . . - eF Final Landscape Masterplan
Non-native invasive species grow along the river embankments. The EA \ 3
are undertaking active treatment of invasive species within the foatprint of N U Dasigned RCosta | RC |EngCheck | M Brawster | mB
existing assets, this will continue for any future assets as a result of the N L, < Drawn | G O'Donovan | GO | Coordination| M Brewster | MB
Scheme.The contractor must accomedate this work, and comply with all re- N\, R oM oIS Chackl  TRuT = Amm TSt ’"HH my
quirements. ) . N N ficate st A3 smm
Seeding in these areas is subject to confirmation of successful treatment. c\omgi"s QS data © Crown C&byrig 'i\d database right 2019 1:3.000 P02 STD
} e : 3,
e oot oo for mdmm ptioved project ony, If should ot be rafied upn by any othar party o used for any other ’ Y y y i . i
| This the h ' 3 U ol =l not be ral n by & 1 ‘or usod for any 50, n
me: nces hdocunlmb:pl:ﬂ:l:w”“‘” party or bo; lnemfw iip=ss_ o1 conts I or’zrwmlmmhllmnnncmnmhmhﬁh 8: 3 03, 0 30 80 90 120 150 Meters ENVOOOOS&QC BMM-DZ.4RV-DR-L—0307°20




= Notes
RN . =
. 2. ANlovels are in motres e
S 3, This crawing Is to communicats the deaign for planning purposes onfy and must
not ba usad for construction,
4, ‘shown aw survayed, will be required,
For Al detalls of trae.
cloarance and planting rafer to documant reference
ENVO000386C-BMM-DZ-4BP-DRL:0307021 - Final Landscaps Masterplan.
Key to symbols
Indicative v
Cantreline of proposed defence
Existing Ground Profils
5 Typlcal Water Lavel Profile
Ewmtrny absgnil wiost 10 be fevelled and relnstated to car
£oey e |1 matich 7]
Retaining wall
Shest pite
. e
7200 Indictive future raised davelopment platform
71.00]
] 37E1-32m 7E4- Hm 7R
0 LU . 37F-1 - 20Bm — —
8900/
58,00
m
E 67.00]
g
5800/
85.00
U 8400
m 63.00|
«Q
D s2.00 Relerence Drawings
% g g 5 g g g g ) g g g g g g £ g ] 8 g g g g g g g §
[ranege im) g g 8 ¥ 8 8 g 8 8 H 2 & g § g H g g g £ £ § & 3 & £ &
t + t t t 1) t t t t t t t t t t + + t t + t 1
Existing Ground Level § 2 5 % 4 2 8 3 2 Q 2 3 2 = g [ 9 R 2 3 g 14 k4 %
w3 8 0§ ¢ ¢ 8 ¢ & & & 8 & ¢ & & & ¥ § § § § & § § 3§ ¢
4 + + } T t T T ] t i + 4 t 1 t 1 1 i 1
Delonon Grast Level é 2 é -] e 2 3 8 8 g & g ] 1 8 -1 8 8 2 B 8 2 g 8 g 8
{m ACD) g g€ g g g€ g g 3 3 E g g 4 E E g E g & B g g g g g g g
1 A L 'S i L i A A A A A A i i i 1 ' ' i i ' i ' I ' '
PO1 | 27/08119 CC | Draft for EA raview J8 48
York Street Profile P02 | 071018 | ©G | For Planning Suomiasion 8
H1:500 V1:100 Surface ish I plain bt T Rev | Date Orawn | Deserlption k| Appd
colourad canarete tn bath sides. —
\eides Spring Bank House
Precast gravity wall with intepral |, M 33 Stamfard Strast
£ stone calored coping stone. J Ground slab Attrincham
i ‘Surtace finish n plain bult coloured " £ i 1/ MOTT M bt
: i plaln b ool "
E /' concrate o bath sidey " MACDONALD Uriled Kingdom
g"l_ -/ Extsting concesfe wall E-Inwmnmmhlnvmel _t = T +44(0)161 526 4000
Backtit ¢ o
ol Y S e g W bam Ve o
5 Nofinesconcrete =11 & .
H = Passivajaround anchor Client
o Environment Agency
s SheotPle Fiker deain Frws rryspe  Richard Fairclough House
| materiel TIVIFORITENT o Roed
6= /\ Age Wartington
Section A-A SectionB-B WaaHa
1208 Surtaca firfsh in plain bulf poloured 120
Surtace trth ot bt cooured & Gonerate o hoth skt N =
rete 1o buth Precast. rate ”
conar I g [E—— Gonorete panel i . Extciing tnilkdng waflto ba remavad Radcliffe & Redvales FRMS
ol ) i .J.' Component 37 York Street
:§ = Existing sloped ares to be levalled Planned Development Area
Y ‘and reinstated to car park used ko . -
hrein with non retum velves tch Chainage 0-270 Plan & Section
Drwf with non retumn valvas L I ‘\ Sh et1 °f1
Dr+ i o
I - Typleal iver lovel 4 Y Grouna iy
3 Fitter drain msserial g" pical o 1| . peckul Designed | J,Holden H Eng, check | J.Starfing 8
! Lea
\ Passiye gf==ind anchor Dresary C.Chau cc = sL
ShestPde | / \ -— Dwg. chack | ABurke AB Approved | s.Staring J8
e _Passey ground anchar . Stwel Pl 2, \ MM Project Number Scale at A1 Securty
| No fines concrete |_Fiter draln materiat 408463 As Shown STD
Na fines concrete: o 25m Som
- - r I ‘Suftebllity Dascription | Sult. Code
SectionC-C SectionD -D _tom am | Fit for Information s2
T Mo MacDonald 1:200 1:200 sm 10m Project Code. Originiter Vema Lecaten Thpe  Disc Swial ttumber Revision
o or e e or 1 ! | ENV0000383C-BMM-DZ-4WN-DR- T -0213380 P02

Cran; e T3380.0wg Gt 7. 2018 -




L-shaped retaining flood wall ties into high
ground on future development plot.

Wall has plain coloured concrete finish

to both sides, and a shaped coloured
concrete coping integrated into the precast
unit, and ranges in height on dry

side between approximatsly 2.0-3.0m.

BE Combination of sheet pile and precast unit flood

wall, finished with exposed sheet pile at low leval
& and plain coloured concrete to wet side, and
plain coloured concrete to the dry side, afl coped
by shaped coloured concrete integrated into the
' precast unit. Wall height approximately 2.5m on
dry side and 6.0m on wet side.

@

Flood wall ties into bridge parapet

&

|Location Map

gt dps b

Yo By
Barkrw Lol 41

me
Cm\l.liw- \

Irown Copytightand database
right 2019

Key to Symbols

—— Engineering measure
Water and flow direction
Public Rights of Way (PRoW)
i iSite of biological interest
___ Existing Data Terrain Model
(DTM) - 5m contours

€E'r3 Tree removed (indicative canopy)
€g3 Tree retained (indicative canopy}
7" Approx. area EGS meadow seed
777 Approx. area EM1 meadow seed
Approx. area EM8 meadow seed
Area of invasive species
I~
(treatment by others)
Landscaping works as designed
by Groundwork (see drawing

-u--,reference GM 2228 03)
1Approx site compound

Photograph/ visualisation location

o) and direction
D « « o Construction site access
Q Notes
@ 1 r =~ Y
(.o 2 Alf levels are in metres above Crcnence Datum {mAQD],
3. Containe OS data © Crown copyright and databass right {2019}
8 4_;....' i Agency LY andior database
ng be read in conjunction with Buivey Report
&, Landscapa works dasigned by groundwork {ses drawing reference GM 222 03)
P0Z| 0410118 | GO | Updata to Cant Comments| MB s
Existing ooncre!'e slope area to rear of fnﬁlled to P01 | 260019 | GO | First tesue MB | v
match surrm!ndmg ground level and reinstated Revl Date | Drawni Information o] Appd
to hardstanding —
Protective fencing to be erected adjacent to trees at the M Spring Bank House
edge of the site compound, maintained throughout the 33 Stamford Street
course of the works, in accordance with BS 5837:2012 M Gl/l:;\ﬂ;ms
Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction MACDONALD United Kingdom
T +44 (0)161 926 4000
# bam W mottmac.com
nuttatl
Numbers of individual trees to be removed Client
ta be confirmed throughout site area, and i 1A
N : . nvironmen jency
subject to working areas required Efvitontgett Richard Fairclaugh House
VIO Knutsford Road
A Agency Warrington
WA4 THG
~I N N Title
Non-native invasive species grow along the =
s e Radcliffe and Redvales FRMS
Agency are undertaking active treatment of Phase 2 Detailed Design
invasive species within the footprint of exist- Component 37
ing assets, this will continue for any future Final Landscape Masterplan
assets as a result of the Scheme.The con-
i tractor must accomodate this work, and com- Designed R Costa RG | Eng Chock M Brewster | MB
I - ply with all equirements. [T YT v WBrowmer | w8
Viewpoint 3 - Existing si Viewpoint 3 - At completion of proposals Seeding in thefse areasis SUbJ?Cf to GIS Chack|  TRuft TR | Approved IStaring | 45
o focale at A3 Status Rev Security
Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2019 | 1.1 000 s2 P02 STD
e oemartt et * wih Itahould not b retiad upon by any ot od for any other purpote, . . . x l ! OO0
and for £ 1 upon by any of us T | or 5
| et sl fr o fiiy o Ay e 'y o i 0 Ot g es ooty ar ot o oitio whi i o e o sisin ndtasupgfn s by olhr pries 10 20 30 a0 50Meters | ENVDOOOO3BIC-BMM-DZ-4WN-DR-L-0307021




Notes.
1. e i
2. ARlavels are in metres urd
3, This i ign for planning
not ke Usad for canstruction.
4, Existing treas shown as stitveyed, Some treo cisarance will be raquired,
Additional screening to be provided where Indicated. For Al dataits of tree
claarance and planting refer to document reference.
ENVO000389C-BMM-DZ-4BP-DR-L-0307017 - Finaj Landscape Masterplan,
Key to symbols.
Centrefine of dafence - no farmal dafence requirad
lll..
Wl Emberkment
f
Retaining L wakt
i
’ 3
Bl
.
i
Exitie vehizyfat aocess to be mainfainer
5 8 :
o 3
Q ~ 3 !
D +4 Reforoncs Drawings
(e}
=
Hartermrry ETAVE TARA
s 11 10114 s /-
PO1 | 26/09/19 ©C | Draft for EA review Js Js
P02 | O7THOMB ©C | Far Plarming Submission 5 .
Rev Date Deawn | Description Chiid | App'd
Spring Bank House
M 33 Starfard Street
M Altrincham
WAI41ES
woTY United Kingdom
MACDONALD
- T +44{0)161 526 4000
+ bam Wensamotraaiom
Lower Hinds Plan nuttall
1:1000 Client
Emvironment Agency
T e Richard Falrclough Housa
Environmens Johueres
LW Agency Wanington
Wad 1HG
Titke
Radcliffe & Redvales FRMS
Component 6 Lower Hinds
Planned Development Area
General Arangement
Sheet 1 of 4
Designed |JHaldan | JH Eng. check | J.Starting 8
Dmwn  |cohe | cc Coondinatian | 8.1ea st
Dwg. check | A Burke | an Approved | J,Staring Js
MMD Project Number Scale at A1 Security
408463 1:1000 sSTD
Suitablliity Description Suit. Code
Fit for Information 82
£ Mot MecDonsld Cimwa i e b | g e v oy 911, Gordalry Q R __5m 100m Prfert Code Ocfrater Vobame Loaslon Tiba Dt SarisfPhsber Revision
o L ] 000 e e — ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4LH-DR~ T - 0213374 P02
E T T e e T e A e R e




Sachion ol misbad b i I e
e higgh el ai bom e,
it kg | e 1] 3 V50

S

121 emapi e vty

15

£
08

Lower Hinds Plan

\
St

T

Notes.

In metres olherwin
Alllayels ra in matrer ik
This.

jgnor planning
ot be Used for conatnictian.
shown g survayed. [

@aps

»

For il delats of tres

cloarance end planting refer to documnd referertce
ENVOO00382C-BMM-DZ-48P-DRL0307017 - Final Landscape Masterpian,

Koy to symbols

s

26 abed

Chalnege (m}

2000

40,00 -

70.00

90.00 -

Exdating Ground Lwvel
(m AOD)

- 76.93 -1 60,00 4

77,351 110.00

.56+ 150.00

Datance Crest Lovel
(m AOD)

[+ 75.37 == 73,78 =4~ 30.00 <{

| 75.37 1= 75.17 4= 10,00
b 75.37 4 75.08

| 7537 - 72,04 =4

[ 75.37 4= 75.60 ~4- 50,00 -

7751

L 77.54-4-80.00

f——a 77,11

{———-77.10+ 100.00

- 77.48-1 120,00

b 77.76-1130.00
p————t- 77,691 140.00

et 77.45 160.00

f———=-77.711-170,004
———1-77.84 180,00 {

(——1-77.95-+190.00

ek 78,70 210,00

ot T7.83 - 230.00

[rte 77,53 -+ 250.00
et 78,13 4268000
et 77.B7 -1 270.00
et 77,70 - 280.00

- 77.80 - 200,

bl 7528 L 300,00

© Mot MesDoneld

£

7

Lower Hinds Profile
H1:500 V1:100

11n 2,15 grassed slope

Section A-A

1:200

GumTICha4034ZG0muments am weeed

T

0
1800 | L

o
1200 P

Centreline ef delonce - ro formal defence raquired
Exlating Ground Profle

Reforence Drawings

PO1 | 2609419 | CC | Drafl for EA review s | 38

PO2 | 0711018 | CC | For Planning Submission JS

Rov | Date | Orawn | Description

Spting Bank House

M 33 Stamord Street
Attrincham
M WA4 1ES

MOTT Unted Kingdom

+ bam

nuttall

T +44 (01161 926 4000
W www.mottmac.com

Cllert

Emvironment Ageney
Richard Fairclough Houss
Krutsford Road
Warrington

WAL 1HG

Environment
LW Agency

Tt

Radcliffe & Redvales FRMS
Component 6 Lower Hinds
Planned Development Area
Chainage 0-300 Plan & Section
Sheet 2 of 4

Designed | J.Holdan JH Eng. check | J,Starling 8

Oawr  |cchau | co Conrdinatlon | S.Lee sL
Dwg check [ABuke | AB | Approved | sswmrg | U8

MND Project Number Scale ot A1 Seaurity
408463 As Shown STD

‘Sultabilty Description Buit, Code
Fit for Information 82

03 a0 Crvun ol end ltoese 015 Gkt

L)
LE - S

Projest Code Origiaator Vokare Locsion Tyoe D Baril Hombes Revisien

ENV0000389C-BMM-DZ-4LH-DR- T - 0213375 P02

g O | 2015 - ZATPH eneASE




Embankment siope

i 1111 0, thop,

1 Maioteramos sooess track
0 e 102101 sl

Lower Hinds Plan
1:500

\vehicular acossa to ba maifaine

Tlv into existiag brisge abutment

Notes.

1 Bre In matres uniess stafed 3

2. Alllevels are In metrea Above Grdanance Datum (A0D) unkess stated ofherwise,

3, This crawing is to communicata the design for planning purposes andy and st
ot be used for corslruction.

4, Exigting how q, Some tree X
Addltional screening to be provided where indicated. For hl details of oo
olearanca and planiing refer to document reference
ENVODO0IEHC-BMM-DZ-4BP.DR-LGINTNT - Firal Landscape Masterplan,

ey to symbois
Centrefing ot
Cantrefing of cafence - no formal defence required
Existing Graund Profia
Ve
Embankment

80.00
79.00]
78.00]
v 7700
QJ 76.00]
Q 6C4D - 400m
D 75.00 — _
(o] 7400
w 73.00|
72,00
71.00)
g 8 g g 8 g g 8 8 € g g & 8 g 8 8 8 2 8 8 5 8 2
e T I I I E § 3 & ¢ § § § § § £ § % i § & § & & © § ]
1 T T 1 1 1 T 1 1] 1§ ¥ ¥ T T T T g ¥ T T T T L)
Bristing Grouna Level S 1 3 3 5 ] 3 § 2 2 ¢ e 3 2 5 3 b 8 3 = 2 2 2 5 ] % 3] b1 3 X
{m A0D) g S S & ¥ 3 4 X fd j & 8 S S IS S 5 [ = S N o & g 8 [ ? d 2 4
: : f I ] +——F 1 : : 1 : : : : : i - ; | i i : } ] ¥ I | |
Defence Crest Level 2 3 g & g 2 2 ] 4 2 B8 ] 4 1 -] -] 4 2 2 -4 2 2 & 8 2 b4 Ed ] 4
{mAGD} k4 g B4 4 b 4 & X g 4 X b4 b4 ¥ X ¥ S S 4 2 X X 4 ¥ X 2 4 4 s RS
1 1 1 i i i 1 i i i A A A L '} A, L i i 1 I} 1 1 1 i L 1 I ) ]
Lower Hinds Profile
H1:500 V1:100
Re-iocated TIGM Metrolink £
ant security fance o
§ 41n 2,15 grased slope
& 2 Ve Top soil
g 1215 1 /
3 granesd slope *
1Y
il \ 2 Impermeabls clay cora \
by \ o1l 7‘% —_— ' cless 1
Section B -B SectionC-C
1:200 1:200
2%m EOm
1600 T | - N —
I R 20m
R 120 T LT L L |
[cortabs o dun B Grown oopro n crabese e 2910, Coriaba | - 10m
son & Eavirommani § me T I T !

Relerence Drawings

PO1 | 26/69M8 | GG | Draft for EA reviaw S | Js

For Planning Submissikon s | -

Rev |Oate | Drawn | Description

Spring Bank House
I‘I 33 Stanfard Street
M Altrincham
WA14 1ES
MOTT United Kingdom
MACDONALD
T +44 (0)161 926 4000
+¥ bam Wanematmac.om
nuttall
Client
Emvironment Agency
=TT +  Richard Fairelough House
Environmene oo
LV Agency Wartinglon
WaAS 1HG
EXN
Radcliffe & Redvales FRMS

Component 6 Lower Hinds
Planned Development Area
Chalnage 300-600 Plan & Section

Sheet 3 of 4
Oealgned | 4 Hokien aH Eng. chack | J Starling Js
Drrwn C.Chau cc ‘Coardination | §,Lee SL
Dwg. check | ABurke AB Approved | J.Staring a8
MMD Project Numbsr Scale at A1 Sacurity
408463 As Shown 8TD
Sultability Description Sult. Code
Fit for Information 82
Projoi Cods. Criginslor Velime Loewien Type Disc Bacil Pratrert Revision
EN ~BMM-DZ-4LH-DR- T -0213376 P02




Ward: Prestwich - St Mary's Item 06

Applicant:  Moxruby Ltd
Location: Land adjacent to 152 Butterstile Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9TJ

Proposal:  Erection of attached 2 storey building comprising of ground floor retail unit with 1no.
flat above

Application Ref: 64902/Full Target Date: 20/01/2020
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

Description

The application relates to a small rectangular plot (70sgm) of hardstanding at the southern
end of the Neighbourhood Shopping Centre, on the corner of Butterstile Lane and Carr
Avenue. The commercial centre, with some residential accommodation on the upper floors,
is constructed of red brick and situated to the north and there are houses to the front, south
side and rear. There is a service road to the rear, serving the shopping centre and there is
on street parking along Butterstile Lane in front of the shopping centre. The land level
gradually down Carr Avenue from Butterstile Lane.

The house immediately to the rear (No.2 Carr Avenue) has a driveway and carport along
the boundary with the service road. Across Carr Avenue to the south, No.154 Butterstile
Lane has a side garden with boundary hedge and a ground floor kitchen window, stairwell
and bathroom windows in the side elevation facing the site.

The application proposes a two storey red brick building attached to the existing unit at 152
Butterstile Lane. The new build would have a retail unit (40sgm) at ground floor with a
shopfront onto Butterstile Lane and a 2-bed flat at first floor level. The building would extend
out 5.5m to the back of the footway on Carr Avenue and run back 8m before the building
cuts back into the site to form the two storey flat roofed stairwell at the rear. There would be
a secondary shop window at ground level on the Car Avenue frontage and a lounge window
to the flat at first floor. There would be a parking space and a bin storage area at the rear
with access onto the service road.

Relevant Planning History

02073/E - Three storey commercial premises comprising of ground floor storage, first floor

shop and second floor flat - Enquiry completed 09/01/2018

02321/E - Erection of 2/3 storey building comprising of ground floor shop and first floor flat -
Enquiry completed 01/08/2019

63920 - Erection of attached 2/3 storey building comprising of ground floor retail unit with 2
no. flats to upper floors - Refused 16/05/2019

Publicity

Immediate neighbours notified by letter dated 26/11/19. Three objections have been

received from the occupiers of Nos.2, 4 and 6 Carr Avenue

< It will cause more traffic and parking problems at an already bad spot. Shoppers
frequently park on double yellow lines at the top of Carr Ave causing buses and cars
unable to safely turn at this junction, it is a very narrow part of land for the build but it will
change a busy junction for the worse.

< It will alter the line of sight for all vehicles approaching the junction.

e The building will block out light to house at the rear.

e There is no room for delivery vans.

Page 94



The objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee.

Statutory/Non -Statutory Consultations

Traffic Section - No objection subject to conditions
Drainage Section - No objection.

Environmental Health - No objection subject to conditions
United Utilities - No objection.

Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent has agreed with pre-start conditions

Unitary Development Plan and Policies
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

S1/5 Neighbourhood Centres and Local Shops
S2/1 All New Retail Proposals: Assessment Criteria
H1/2 Further Housing Development

H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

EN1/8 Shop Fronts

SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury

SPD16 Design and Layout of New Development in Bury
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Policies - S1/5 - Neighbourhood Centres and Local Shops. The Council will seek to retain
retailing (Class Al), as the predominant use in small neighbourhood centres and in new or
existing local shops, to cater primarily for the day to day needs of residents and businesses.

S2/1 - All New Retail Proposals: Assessment Criteria. The Council will support new retalil
development proposals which accord satisfactorily with the following factors:

a) are within or immediately adjoining the main shopping area of existing centres;

b) sustain or enhance the vitality and viability of a centre;

c¢) are accessible by and would encourage greater use of public transport;

d) are in conformity with other policies and proposals of the Plan.

Having successfully established the principle of development, all retail proposals will be
considered with regard to their environmental impact and must take account of the following
factors:-

e) they should have regard to their surroundings in terms of design, scale, height, bulk, use
and colour of materials and landscaping;

f) the effects on the environment of the area as a result of increased traffic generation and
servicing;

g) the design of the proposal with regard to safety and security for shoppers, workers,
visitors and surrounding occupiers;

h) the effects on the amenity of nearby residents or businesses by reason of noise, smell,
litter or opening hours;

i) access and, where appropriate through negotiation, facilities for the mobility impaired;

Page 95



j) the provision of associated facilities. Where applicable, proposals should attempt to
provide an appropriate level of additional community benefit and/or offset the loss of or
impact on any amenity or resource present on the site. The following facilities serve as
examples; creche/children's play, baby changing and feeding, public conveniences
(including provision for the disabled) and recycling facilities;

k) the provision of adequate car parking and servicing.

EC4/1- Small Businesses. Proposals for small businesses will be acceptable when the scale
of development is appropriate to, and the use is environmentally compatible with, the
surrounding area in which it is to be located, and where they do not conflict with other
policies and proposals of the Plan.

EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design. The Council will give favourable consideration to
proposals which do not have an unacceptable adverse effect on the particular character and
townscape of the Borough's towns, villages and other settlements. Factors to be considered
when assessing proposals will include:

a) the external appearance and design of the proposal in relation to its height, scale, density
and layout;

b) the relationship of the proposal to the surrounding area;

¢) the choice and use of materials;

d) access and other design features for the mobility impaired,;

e) the design and appearance of access, parking and service provision;

f) landscaping, including the use of natural landscape features, and open space provision;
g) the use of lighting.

HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development. The Council will require all applications for
development to make adequate provision for their car parking and servicing requirements in
accordance with the Council's car parking standards.

Principle - The site is within a Neighbourhood Centre and surrounded by residential
development. The principle of some form of development on the site may be acceptable
subject to design, siting and highway issues being appropriately addressed.

Visual amenity and Streetscape - The site has remained unused other than for occasional
informal parking and bin storage. It has become overgrown and with concrete posts, the
remnants of a previous fence, along the back of the footway, the sight appears somewhat
unsightly.

Infilling the gap between the existing gable of the row of shops and the back of the footway
would extend the commercial row without having a significantly detrimental impact on the
commercial streetscape along Butterstile Lane. Although stepped down in height from the
adjoining building, the new structure would have the effect of narrowing the space across
Carr Avenue from 22m to 16.5m, between the gable of the shops and the side elevation of
the house at No.154 Butterstile Lane. However, given the commercial nature of the site
and with the building constructed in materials to match the adjoining commercial row and
the with an intervening service road between the site and the house immediately to the rear
(No.2 Carr Avenue), it would not have a seriously detrimental impact on the character of
the immediate locality.

Whilst in a purely residential setting, characterised by detached and semi-detached houses,
there would be an argument to restrict building to the back of the footway, this particularly
site has a distinctly commercial character which could accommodate some form of infill
without appearing out of character. The shopfront design and the access to the shop at
ground floor, whilst being set down from the existing shop frontages along the row, is
generally acceptable and would not be out of keeping with the existing building and would
not appear incongruous within the wider streetscape. The tiled pitched roof would also be in
keeping with the general appearance of the surrounding properties.

The proposal would, in terms of visual amenity be acceptable and comply with the NPPF
Page 96



and UDP Policies EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design and the guidance within SPD 16
Design and Layout of New Development in Bury.

Traffic and Parking - Interms of parking for the Neighbourhood Centre, there is on street
parking in front of the shops along Butterstile Lane and Sandy Lane. The proposal itself
includes a single parking space, together with bin storage at the rear of the site and also
allows for adequate visibility out of the unadopted service road.

Whilst the proposal is likely to lead to customer and delivery vehicles parking and carrying
out manoeuvres on the highway, customers visiting the centre and any delivery vehicles
would do this in any case and existing residents above the shops, for the most part, do not
have dedicated off-road parking. As such the proposals do not significantly alter the
existing situation.

There are no objections from the Traffic Team and the proposal, with appropriate
conditions, would comply with the NPPF and the following UDP Policies EN1/2 Townscape
and Built Design, HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

Residential Amenity - The proposed new building, extending off the existing row is not
considered to be particularly large and, within the streetscape, the impact on neighbour
amenity is negligible. The immediate neighbour at No.152 Butterstile Lane is a
coffee/sandwich shop which has a flat above. The neighbour to the rear is set down at a
lower level and has windows facing the site but these are either non-habitable or
secondary/side windows that cannot be afforded significant weight in any assessment. The
habitable windows in the first floor flat are a sufficient distance away from surrounding
neighbours and as such there are no serious overlooking issues.

The proposal in terms of the residential amenity, would be acceptable and complies with
UDP Policy H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development.

Objections - The issues raised by the objectors have been addressed in the above report.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2 015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered BL/PL/19/101A and the development
shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.
Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. Details/Samples of the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external elevations,
Page 97



together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development
iIs commenced. Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for the
construction of the development.

Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity.

Notwithstanding the details indicated on the approved plans, no development shall
commence unless and until full details, on a topographical based survey of the site
and adjacent highways, of the following have been submitted to and approved by
the Local Planning Authority:

« Foundation details for the proposed building confirming that there will be
adverse impact on/no encroachment under the adjacent adopted highway;

* Finished floor slab and parking space levels relative to Carr Avenue and
Butterstile Lane;

« A scheme of footway works on Carr Avenue and Butterstile Lane to a
specification to be agreed, incorporating the reconstruction of the footway
abutting the site required as a result of the construction of, and statutory
undertakers connections to, the building, demarcation of the limits of the
adopted highway and all associated highway remedial works required as a
result of the removal of the existing boundary wall, including, if required, the
relocation/replacement of the existing street nameplate;

* Measures at the interface with the adopted highway to ensure that there will be
no level differences between the back of the footway and the site;

* Measures to prevent vehicles encroaching onto/vehicle doors opening into the
path of pedestrian on, the adjacent footway;

e Bin storage arrangements within the curtilage of the property for the
commercial and residential uses proposed in accordance with Waste
Management's 'Guide to Refuse Collection Requirements & Storage Methods
for New Developments'.

The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the

Local Planning Authority prior to first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved.

Reason. To ensure good highway design, maintain the integrity of the adopted

highway and ensure the intervisibility of the users of the site and the adjacent

highways in the interests of highway safety.

No development shall commence unless and until a ‘Construction Management
Plan' (CMP), has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority
and shall confirm/provide the following:

e Hours of operation and number of vehicle movements;

» Storage of construction materials within the curtilage of the site;

¢ Method statement to cover the delivery and storage of materials and all works
abutting the adopted highway, including the provision, where necessary, of site
hoardings and safe temporary scaffolding arrangements and associated
pedestrian protection measures on the adjacent adopted highways;

* Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not either
carried on the wheels and chassis of any vehicles leaving the site or spread
onto the adjacent highways as a result of the proposed groundwork operations,
along with measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the operations.

The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period and the

measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended purpose for the

duration of the construction period. The area identified shall not be used for any
other purposes other than storage of construction materials.

Reasons. To mitigate the impact of the construction traffic generated by the

proposed development on the adjacent residential streets, and ensure adequate

off street car parking provision and materials storage arrangements for the

duration of the construction period and that the adopted highways are kept free of
Page 98



deposited material from the ground works operations, in the interests of highway
safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape
and Built Design and HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

6. Prior to the commencement of development, details of the boundary treatment
along Carr Avenue shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The approved details only shall be implemented as part of the
approved development.

Reason - To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
the visual amenities of the area pursuant to Policy EN1/2 Townscape and Built
Design of Bury Unitary Development Plan.

For further information on the application please contact Tom Beirne on 0161 253 5361

Page 99



Viewpoints

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

Y

COUNCIL
(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

<+ LB

ADDRESS: Land adj to 152 Butterstile Lane
Prestwich

APP. NO 64902

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

Page 100




64902

Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 101



64902

Photo 4

Page 102



64902

Page 103



1M Land Reqgistry  Title number MAN278168 e a2
Jfficial co by of Ordnance Survey map reference SD8002NE My «f )

Scale 1:1250 ’ ff

1tbe P]an Administrative area Greater Manchester : Bury

is official copy is incomplete without the preceding notes pagﬁ’ag e 104



Page 105



90T abed

—1

B

q
— — =V
= = — =
= = =X IS LTS =
\l//o/wééa = g /oo aa’*’u
: = ! JL
= = 0
= o /52 _
\L@e-éo f%: = ]
5()77*;4_@.(‘ Tit—e. [ A £ L_,é_uA/“/ or

| 2:5m | P
I + |
( | B £
. s Q
s
;—,442

AL $

I RacA o
@
—

RET Al Jz i

‘ :ﬁ”ﬁ § 0;'

i

AR

[~ | — —
% . — -
[} 97‘ (0 97 eoo '_;_'_:_,Affig;;f“
i _AL__ ,
~ COAL 2 LB fp e éf_,L,ﬁ'\\zA-f/O&/'
92.2%
oot
D7 650 %7 2o
- 7ot
PrErZA Mof 2
\T
N |
N\N= 2780
N
NS
|| - . i
© ?é AiTe sl
Fez
e ouioany T le o EANE N Y :
Sl PUINTAL S &
Vama
So LS - B - 7 \ 28 420 -
/ «
/L/ : T “_L
* 2 Steee
4 - FASrAT 98-8—4_;
SANG&E).

Il
1

Lose 10 Fres Co \/77?:/64,4&/9

7. 8co )L

y Lt lNAT oL -

<>

s

/54

Y

<. A2 2Z_ A&~

{ /52

\L

s OT TR T LoarsS o

>

-

89

\/\/7*e /&AOCA/“A_A&/ . SeSoo

BEw &~ STEEET Pouarrorer. ASODE

SITE
SITE ADJACENT
152 BUTTERSTILE LANE, PRESTWICH
PROJECT
NEW RETAIL WITH
RESIDENTIAL UNIT OVER
TITLE
EXISTING AND PROPOSED
PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
SCALE DATE DRAWN [IDRAWING NO.
1:100 Nov '19 RCR BL/PL/19/101 &g~/ A,

RT DESIGN

Architectural & Surveying Consultants

304 Valley Miil,
Cottonfields,
Eagley, Bolton.
BL7 9DY

Tel : 01204 591411

FIGURED DIMENSIONS TO BE FOLLOWED IN PREFERENCE TO SCALED.
ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE.

IN THE EVENT OF A DISCREPENCY REFER TO RT DESIGN.

THIS DRAWING REMAINS THE COPYRIGHT OF RT DESIGN AND MAY NOT BE
COPIED IN WHOLE OR PART WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.




Agenda Item 4a

BURY COUNCIL
DEPARTMENT FOR RESOURCES AND REGULATION

PLANNING SERVICES

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE
21 January 2020

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Page 107



Item:01

Access road off Halsall Close, Gorses Quarry, Bury Application No.
64022
Increase in width of existing access track (incorporating a bridleway)

Publicity

Letters of objection received from 73 Milbourne Road, 17 Chestnut Drive and James
Daly MP

Why does the application not include and ignore the widening works carried out to
the bridleway adjacent to the field in the ownership of Walmersley Golf Club?

As you are well aware this verge which contained hedges, bushes and trees has
been excavated by people who do not own this land.

The bridleway/access road in this location has never run the full width of the
perimeter wall. | back this claim up with evidence:

Bury council definitive maps clearly show verges between the bridleway and the
perimeter. The verge has now disappeared as it has been excavated by cowboys
who have also undercut the foundation of the dry stone wall and undermined the
structural integrity of this wall.

There are no stone setts local to the perimeter/dry stone wall, just the 2 stone
setts as described in bury councils description of bridleway 24bur. Therefore this
concludes the fact that the Bridleway/access road has never been as wide as the
stone wall.

As previously sent to the council, Google street view images showing exactly how
this lane looked liked previous to it's destruction and what it looks like now.

There is no way the work carried out is an improvement.

That part of the bridleway should be put to how it was or improved as the
applicant does not own this and it is in the public interest to reinstate this.

What are Bury Council enforcement are doing about the applicant at Further
Davies Farm who hasn't applied for planning permission for a massive double
extensions built ?

Concerned the application is progressing in favour of the developer despite many
objections and a whole community being outraged and upset.

Access along it is only allowed for the people who live at what was a small farm
dwelling and which is now a massive over developed cottage with several large
outer buildings and an excessively large parking area.

There has been commercial activity there for the last few years with illegal and
heavy traffic flow on the bridleway.

The developer also admits to having plans for another commercial enterprise at
the quarry itself (which he owns) but these are being kept secret from us for now
and the Council is being led to believe that the widening of the bridleway is purely
for domestic purposes.

The mitigation/restoration documents now fail to include almost half of the
severely damaged area that has been excavated. They seem to have cropped
this off when new documents were added in December.

The lower part of the track has suffered the worse of the flooding due to the
amount of vegetation which has been removed. The bridleway has doubled in
width in this area and trees, hedges and wildlife devastated by the process.

The affects the Council's engineers drainage report

Why has this been allowed to go to the Planning Committee and wonder if it is an
oversight and needs more attention.

There is a massive mound of earth which has been dumped from the excavation
which hasn't been mentioned (which cold possibly be used as part of the
restoration) so could be put back where it came from.

Page 108



| can see that the way forward with this application is to have a
restoration/mitigation plan but plead with the council to make sure it is adequate
and supervised as well as mandatory and enforceable.

Sadly, much wildlife will have perished indirectly due to the loss of habitat and
directly due to the use of heavy plant machinery used in the widening process.

Response to objections

In response to point 1 - Bury Council's Definitive Rights of Way Map does not
provide widths of footpaths or bridleways and does not include descriptions of the
surface/characteristics of a route. The Definitive Map uses lines to indicate the
location and direction of routes. That information is drawn on a base map provided
by Ordnance Survey (OS). OS create maps showing what is physically in place at
the time of a survey. The OS map is not a legal record relating to highways,
including public rights of way.

In response to point 2 and 3 - The width of the bridleway is not recorded in the
Definitive Statement. The lack of details regarding widths is a common occurrence
and in such cases, the width of a route should be determined by looking at what is
present on site. The best indication to the width of a route is usually the presence
of a boundary wall or fence, unless it can be argued that the structure was not
built with reference to the boundary with the right of way. In this case, it is
reasonable to conclude that the wall provides the boundary to the track/bridleway.
The removal of the verge planting to the lower end of the track is not
'development' by virtue of Section 55 of the Town and Country planning Act 1990
which defines development as ‘the carrying out of building, engineering, mining
or other operations in, on, over or under land, or the making of any material
change in the use of any buildings or other land". The removal of grass verge
and vegetation does therefore not require planning permission and this removal
has not, in effect, widened the access track/bridleway.

The area where the embankment has been excavated, and which is the subject of
this application, did not benefit from a boundary wall and it is reasonable to
conclude that the embankment marked the limit of the width of the access track.
The works carried out to the embankment within the application site are
engineering operations and did require planning permission.

This application is not in connection to any proposals for development at Gorses
quarry or any other properties.  The application is for the track widening works
only.

The application is for mitigation and restoration works, and conditions have been
recommended to ensure the scheme would be delivered.

Objection received from D Bentley - Ecologist - Summarised as follows:

Project is befuddied and beset by incompetence

Rachel Hacking Ecology Report of 14 Nov 2019 makes no mention of the
"Plateau area" that is referred to in Penny Bennet's reports. The "Plateau area"
lies within the SBI and was created from the disposal of materials taken from the
bridleway fringe. How can a responsible ecologist not understand what the
landscape architect is proposing and where? The ecological report needs to
match the Landscape Architect's report .

The landscape report needs to match the ecology report.

What is happening with the invasive species?

The re-profiling of the bank is an open invitation for more damage at the quarry.
The plateau area is not in the red edge - this has been ignored.

The revised plans propose less than previously proposed: No habitat modification
to encourage heather by much-needed limited birch clearance.

Page 109



{tem:02

¢ There is no understanding that the materiais taken away have been dumped
inside the quarry. The application makes no mention of hedgehogs.

o The project makes no attempt to restore damaged areas along the southern end
of the lane.

Response to objection.

* As stated in the Committee Report, the works to the quarry are the subject of a
separate enforcement action.
Therefore the proposed remediation works relate only to the works to the track.
All issues have been addressed in the proposed ecology report and suitable
conditions included to ensure delivery of the scheme.
A condition to include treatment for invasive species has been recommended.
All other issues have been covered in the main report.

Site at corner of Spring Lane & Bury Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26
2QX Application No. 64518

Erection of three storey block of 15 no. apartments with car parking, bin storage and
cycle storage with vehicular/pedestrian access from Pine Street

Consultations

Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to
access improvements, car parking, a construction traffic management plan, and
turning facilities.

Publicity - As the applicant, Bolton at Home, is unable to attend the committee

meeting, the following comments have been provided:

o We agree that the right of access is not a planning consideration and the Land
Registry title plan shows highlighted in yellow the formal access that the Social
Club have, which is from Pine Street and not from Spring Lane. We have met with
the Club on a couple of occasions to clarify this and look to try and work with them
to find a practical solution for all.

o We would also like to confirm that the 15 x 1 bed apartments proposed are
self-contained. This will not be a HMO and that subject to approval, we will look to
work with Bury Council to fulfil the 50% nominations agreement for allocations.

Conditions - The agent has agreed with pre-start conditions.

Issues - The applicant has submitted a viability appraisal where a case has been
presented that any commuted sum would render the development unviable. The
viability appraisal has been assessed and accepted and it is recommended that the
commuted sum for recreation should be waived on this occasion. It should be noted
that this recommendation should not sent a precedent and all future applications
should be assessed on their own merits. On this basis, a condition has been included
to personalise the permission to the applicant.

Conditions - Therefore conditions 9 and 10 should be amended and conditions 12 -
14 should be added in relation to affordable housing, access improvements and
turning facilities:

9. The car parking indicated on a revision of approved plan reference 19011-101
Revision A required to address the previous condition shall be surfaced, demarcated

Page 110



and made available for use prior to the development hereby approved being brought
into use and thereafter maintained at all times

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of road
safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

10. No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic
Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following:

e Access point for construction traffic from Pine Street, including measures/controls
to prohibit construction traffic from utilising the section of Pine Street to the east of
the site;

o Hours of operation and number of vehicle movements;

A scheme of appropriate warning/construction traffic speed signage in the vicinity
of the site and its access; Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of
vehicles within the curtilage of the site, including any requisite phasing of the
development to accommodate this;

¢ Parking on site of operatives' and construction vehicles together with storage on
site of construction materials, including any requisite phasing of the development
to accommodate this;

o |[f proposed, site hoarding/gate positions, including the provision, where
necessary, of temporary pedestrian facilities/protection measures on the adopted
highway;

e Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not carried on the
wheels and chassis of any vehicles leaving the site and measures to minimise
dust nuisance caused by the operations.

The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the demolition/construction period
and the measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended purpose for
the duration of the demolition and construction periods. The areas identified shall not
be used for any other purposes other than the turning/parking of vehicles and storage
of demolition/construction materials.

Reason. Information not submitted at application stage. To mitigate the impact of the
construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the adjacent
residential streets, and ensure adequate off street car parking provision and materials
storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period and that the adopted
highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground works operations, in the
interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies
EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

12. The development hereby approved shall only be developed by or on behalf of the
applicant as an affordable housing scheme and each and every residential dwelling
constructed as part of the scheme shall subsequently be occupied only and at all
times as affordable housing, as defined in Supplementary Planning Document 5 -
Affordable Housing Provision in New Residential Developments.

Reason - The proposed development has been granted given the particular
circumstances of the applicant following a funding package from the Homes England
which provides an opportunity to promote increased affordable housing, but as a
result a recreational contribution pursuant to Supplementary Planning Document 1
(Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision in New Housing Development) will not
be provided. This condition is thereby to ensure that in order to make the
development acceptable in planning terms, as a result of not making a recreational
contribution the whole development shall instead contribute to satisfying the need for

Page 111



affordable housing provision.

13. Notwithstanding the details indicated on approved plan reference 19011-101
Revision A, no development shall commence unless and until full details of the
following have been submitted on a topographical survey of the site and adjacent
adopted highways to, and agreed with, the Local Planning Authority:

e Dilapidation survey, to a scope to be agreed, of the footways and carriageways
abutting the site in the event that subsequent remedial works are required
following construction of the development;

e Revised car park layout to relocate spaces 7 & 8 within the curtilage of the site
clear of the agreed 6m highway improvement line measured from the easterly
kerbline of Bury Road;

e Swept path analysis of the proposed access onto Pine Street, to be a minimum of
5.5m in width, to ensure that no vehicle over-run will occur at the kerb radii;

* Following on from the above, formation of the proposed access onto Pine Street
to a specification to be agreed, incorporating the reinstatement of the redundant
footway crossing adjacent footway levels, reconstruction of the southerly Pine
Street footway abutting the site, provision of dropped crossing facilities for
pedestrians and all necessary highway/highway drainage remedial works required
as a result of the construction of, and statutory undertakers connections to, the
proposed development;

e Provision of a 4.5m x 60m visibility splay to the left at the junction of Pine Street
with Bury Road on land within the applicant's control, with no obstructions above
the height of 0.6m with the splay;

e Provision of a street lighting assessment of Pine Street and the junction with Bury
Road in view of the intensification of use proposed, and, if required, subsequent
scheme of improvements to existing street lighting on the adopted highway;

e A scheme for the review of the existing waiting restrictions on Pine Street/Bury
Road abutting the site, including details of the measures proposed, all necessary
modifications to road markings and signage and a timetable for implementation;

e Bin storage arrangements accordance with Waste Management's 'Guide to
Refuse Collection Requirements & Storage Methods for New Developments'.

The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to an agreed programme
with all highway works completed prior to the development hereby approved being
occupied.

Reason. To ensure good highway design, maintain the integrity of the adopted
highway and ensure the intervisibility of the users of the site and the adjacent
highways in the interests of highway safety pursuant to the following Unitary
Development Plan Policies:

Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design

Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development

Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development

14. The turning facilities indicated on approved pian reference 19011-101 Revision A
shall be provided before the development is first occupied and the areas used for the
manoeuvring of vehicles shall subsequently be maintained free of obstruction at all
times.

Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the highway
in the interests of road safety pursuant to the following Policies of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan:

Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design

Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development

Page 112



Item:03

Item:04

Item:05

Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development.

Euro House, 30-32 Walmersley Road, Bury, BL9 6DP Application No.
64707

Change of use from shop (Class A1) to Restaurant (Class A3) with flue and 4 no. air
conditioning units at rear; New shop front

Traffic
No objections subject to condition to secure appropriate servicing and bin
storage/collection.

Revised location plan.

The revised location plan (P213-100/A) includes land outlined in blue (dotted),
indicating ownership by the applicant. This indicates access can be gained from the
rear bin storage and service area to Walmersley Road.

16 Westbury Close, Bury, BL8 2LW Application No. 64766
Front porch extension and dormer extension at front

Nothing further to report.

Land to west of Metrolink line at Warth Road; Land to west of Bury Road,;
Land to east of Whitefield Road; Land to west of Hardy's Gate Bridge and
Land to north of York Street, Bury Application No. 64790

Proposal A - A series of sheet piled walls and concrete walls across 4 sites

Proposal B - Erection of an embankment and retaining wall at land to west of
Metrolink line at Warth Road

Publicity

Comments have been received from 42 Buttermere Road, Burnley, which have raised

the following issues:

e It would appear that the report was written prior to our meeting with the EA and
yourself.

e Although we accept that at very high river volumes, we would be flooded anyway,
it was at the lower volumes with the new flood defences in place where our own
earth defences would be topped, causing significant damage to our plant,
structures and business.

e | am surprised that the information in relation to flood risk has not been updated in
the committee report. The EA has made no effort to minimise the impact upon our
business and no alternative arrangements have been made.

e | would guess that it is a serious offence to mislead the planning committee.
Please update the report or a legal challenge may be necessary.

e This can be avoided if you add a condition requiring the defences located
upstream of the hydropower plant are changed so that they could withstand the
increased river height caused by the new scheme. We accept that protecting the
scheme from downstream backup is problematic.

e | would refer to you to the NPPF, which states that there should be no increased
risk of flood elsewhere. If the Council makes a perverse decision contrary to
national policy, a legal challenge may be appropriate.

¢ We are not seeking to stop the proposal but it needs to be amended to put in
place measures to protect the screw.

Page 113



Consultations

Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to a
dilapidation survey and a construction traffic management plan.

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the
inclusion of conditions relating to contaminated land.

Environment Agency - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating
to the environmental/habitat creation and informatives.

Pre-start Conditions - The agent has agreed with pre-start conditions.

Response to objectors

e The committee report was written after the meeting, which took place on 2
December between the Local Planning Authority, EA and the objector.

e At that meeting, the EA offered works and payments as compensation. See
further comments from the EA below.

o |t should be noted that the flood defences upstream (Component 6, Lower Hinds
on land to the west of Warth Road) of the hydropower plant are recommended for
refusal.

e The planning section of the EA have assessed the proposal, including the FRA
and have specific regard to the need to prevent an increase to flood risk on site
and downstream. The EA have no objections to the proposal, subject to the
inclusion of condition relating to environmental/habitat creation.

The EA has provided the following response to the comments relating to planting,
fishing and compensatory package for the hydropower plant:

A review of the proposed construction methods and working corridors has enabled
tree removal numbers to be significantly reduced across Phase 2, in turn reducing the
potential ecological impacts. We are working to identify suitable locations for
additional tree planting which will provide habitat for species who inhabit the river
corridor, such as the land at Lower Hinds associated with Component 6 (Site 5). The
river bank is encouraged to naturalise on completion, with trees located within the
banks retained, where possible, to prevent changes to the existing hydrological
regime. Access will be maintained at locations on Component 45 (application 64789 -
land to the south of Keswick Drive) and Component 38 (Sites 2 and 3) to ensure the
existing access utilised by the angling club is maintained to the water's edge.

The current situation with compensation for the hydropower company is as follows:

e At the meeting on 2nd December, we offered to install erosion protection to deal
with existing and potential future overland flows from Hutchinson's Goit and to
strengthen the existing embankment upstream of the site.

e Subsequently, the applicant has asked that the bank be raised to offset the
increase in current 1 in 100 flood levels due to the scheme. We are willing to do
this also.

e Interms of compensation for loss or damage due to flooding, we are able to
compensate on a case-by-case basis for any losses incurred because of
increased levels due to the scheme. We are however, unable to compensate "up
front" for losses which have not yet been incurred.

e Should the owners sell the site, we would expect that any new owners would
accept the risks as they stand at that time.

o Final details are still to be agreed so some aspects may change

Conditions

Therefore conditions 10 - 14 should be added in relation to a dilapidation survey, a
construction traffic management plan, contaminated land and environmental/habitat

Page 114



creation:

10. Proposal A - Notwithstanding the details indicated on the approved plans, no
development shall commence unless and until a dilapidation survey of the footways
and carriageways leading to and abutting the proposed site accesses in the event that
subsequent remedial works are required following construction of the development
along with full details of proposals to connect the new structure to/form new joints
onto Hardy's Gate Bridge have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Any required remedial works and details subsequently
approved shall be implemented to an agreed programme.

Reason. To ensure good highway design and to maintain the integrity of the adopted
highway/highway structure pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of
the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

11. Proposal A - The site access arrangements, measures and facilities detailed in
the approved Traffic Management Plan - Radcliffe & Redvales FRMS Phase 2' along
with measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not carried on the
wheels and chassis of any vehicles leaving the sites and measures to minimise dust
nuisance caused by the operations, shall be adhered to throughout the construction
period.

Reason. To mitigate the impact of the construction traffic generated by the proposed
development on the adjacent residential streets, and ensure adequate off street car
parking provision and materials storage arrangements for the duration of the
construction period and that the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material
from the ground works operations, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury
Unitary Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and HT6/2 -
Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

12. Proposal A - Within 3 years of commencement of construction of the
development hereby approved, a detailed environmental masterplan for the provision
and management of environmental/Water Framework Directive (WFD) habitat
creation along River Irwell waterbody (Irwell (Rossendale STW to Roch)
(GB112069064620)) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include the following elements:
e Detailed masterplan committing to delivery of a suite of appropriate WFD
mitigation measures within the River Irwell waterbody.
An updated WFD proforma to provide evidence that mitigation has been achieved.
Details of any new priority habitat created on site.
Detail extent and type of new soft landscaping including planting schedule based
on locally provenanced and native species.
Details of maintenance regimes.
Details of how restored riparian sites will be managed over the longer term
including adequate financial provision and named body responsible for
management plus production of detailed management plan
Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
scheme.
Reason. To identify risks associated with proposed scheme in relation to meeting
future WFD objectives. To identify any necessary mitigation that should be
implemented to ensure the proposals do not compromise meeting WFD objectives for
River Irwell waterbody. To avoid any environmental deterioration risk to the River
Irwell WFD waterbody and key ecological network, ensure the protection of wildlife
and supporting habitat. Also, to secure opportunities for enhancing the River Irwell
waterbody’s ecological potential and ability to provide a high quality and
multifunctional green infrastructure asset in long term, pursuant to Policy EN6/3 -

Page 115



Item:06

Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 15 -
Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

13. Proposal A - No development shall commence uniess and until:-

¢ A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site shall
be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority;

o Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;

¢ Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed Remediation
Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination and

subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory development of

the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas and the wider
environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 15 -

Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

14. Proposal A - Following the provisions of Condition 13 of this planning permission,
where remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried
out to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each stage of
the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the development being
brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human health,
controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy
Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Land adjacent to 152 Butterstile Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9TJ
Application No. 64902

Erection of attached 2 storey building comprising of ground floor retail unit with 1no.
flat above

Nothing further to report.

Page 116



COPYRIGHT RESERVED.

mhdram‘nglsMpmpen'yolA.J.cndmAssociamsud and must not be copled or used in whole or in part without

thek consant.
COM:

Gliants and contractors must fulfd thek duties under the CDM mgulations 2015.The client is required 1o notlly the

HSE of eny projacts lasting more than 30 dsys or ivolving more than 500 person days,

BADGER STREET

]
3 Existing area used for
f,’, bin storage and
] access to properties
- g served by rear
H E alleyway
m
| B
Concrete hardstandlng j o]
area for refuse collection :3
for numbers 30-32 ‘ B
Waimersley Rc::d -to A ) —_—
drain to car park area ] rea to be cross hatche
and into site drainage yellow thermoplastic onto
system tarmac surface to provide
D / servicing for numbers 30-32
New pedestrian /y Walmersley Road
access from car park

onto Waimersley
Road footpath

\

0 5

10 204

MOORGATE

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2016. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

30m

A.]. Cocker Associates

Axchitectural Design  Building Surveyors  Project Management Planning Supervisors

New Century House, 176 Drake Street, Rochdale, Lancs. OL16 TUP
Tel 01706 356860 Fax 01706 650574

project

Proposed change of use, Euro House,
Walmersley Road, Bury.

client scale - 1:1000 drawing No rev
o size - A4
PREL limited date - Nov.19 P213-100/A
drawn - NL
-Page-H?




Page 118



Agenda Ite

REPORT FOR NOTING

BULY,

Agenda
Item 5

DECISION OF:

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

DATE:

21 January 2020

SUBJECT:

DELEGATED DECISIONS

REPORT FROM:

HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

CONTACT OFFICER:

DAVID MARNO

TYPE OF DECISION:

COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF This paper is within the public domain
INFORMATION/STATUS:
SUMMARY: The report lists:

Recent delegated planning decisions since the last PCC
OPTIONS & The Committee is recommended to the note the report

RECOMMENDED OPTION

and appendices

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy
Framework? Yes

Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk

Considerations:

Executive Director of Resources to advise
regarding risk management

Statement by Executive Director N/A

of Resources:

Equality/Diversity implications: No
Considered by Monitoring Officer: | N/A
Wards Affected: All listed
Scrutiny Interest: N/A

20 119
age 11

fal
I




TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/ Executive Ward Members Partners
Strategic Leadership Member/Chair
Team
Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

This is @ monthly report to the Planning Control Committee of the delegated planning
decisions made by the officers of the Council.

2.0 CONCLUSION

That the item be noted.

List of Background Papers:-None

Contact Details:-

David Marno, Head of Development Management

Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation
3 Knowsley Place

Bury BL9 OEJ

Tel: 0161 253 5291
Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk

Page 120


mailto:d.marno@bury.gov.uk

Bury Metropolitan Borough Council

PLANNING APPLICATIONS DECIDED UNDER
DELEGATED POWERS

Between 09/12/2019 and 12/01/2020

Application No: 64551 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Jane Langan
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr & Mrs D Grimrod Agent: Abacus Architectural
Location: 2 Greenside Close, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4LE
Proposal: Single storey extensions at front, side and rear; 1.8 Metre high boundary gate/fence at side

and widening of existing driveway
Application No: 64573 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Jennie Townsend
Decision Date: 09/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr Steven Nevitt Agent: Peter Summersgill Architecture
Location: Former Floors To Go building, corner of Millett Street & Bolton Street, Bury, BL9 OHY
Proposal: Change of use from retail (Class A1) to gymnasium (Class D2) and external alterations
Application No: 64584 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho
Decision Date: 10/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mrs Amreen Alam Agent: HSH Enginering Design Service
Location: 214 Parkhills Road, Bury, BL9 9AL
Proposal: Single storey extension at rear
Application No: 64649 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Mark Kilby
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Emanuel Whittaker Agent: Howard & Seddon ARIBA
Location: Former Baptist Chapel, Bolton Street, Ramsbottom, BLO 9HU
Proposal: Replace the existing timber windows with new matching timber windows

Page 1 of 16 Page 121 13/01/2020



Application No: 64680 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho

Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: AGI Solicitors Agent: The Intelligent Design Centre
Location: 36 Prestwich Hills, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9PY
Proposal: Two storey extension at side
Application No: 64718 Application Type: P3JPA  Case Officer: Jennie Townsend
Decision Date: 17/12/2019 Decision: Prior Approval Required and
Granted

Applicant: Mr O Phillips Agent: Plan Design Go Ltd
Location: Derby Chambers, 2-8 The Rock, Bury, BL9 ONT
Proposal: Prior notification of proposed change of use of upper floors from office use (Class B1 (a)) to

14 no. flats (Class C3)
Application No: 64728 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Jennie Townsend
Decision Date: 10/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr Asif Saleem Agent: MAHE Architecture
Location: 6-8 Market Place, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9HT
Proposal: Change of use of first floor to form 2 no. additional dental surgeries (Class D1)
Application No: 64740 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Tom Beirne
Decision Date: 10/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: LK Group Agent: Equilibrium Architects Ltd
Location: The Globe Inn, 325 Tottington Road, Bury, BL8 1SZ
Proposal: Change of use from public house (Class A4) to form extension to dwellinghouse (Class C3),

external materials and demolition of existing internal section of yard wall
Application No: 64745 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Jennie Townsend
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr Vic Graham Agent: Clare Nolan
Location: Vic Graham Potato Merchants, South Royd Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3NA
Proposal: Change of use from warehouse unit to gym (D2) with 2.1m high security fence and gate

Page 2 of 16 Page 122 13/01/2020



Application No: 64752 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Tom Beirne

Decision Date: 10/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr MJ & RP Miller Agent:

Location: 71a Windsor Road, Prestwich, Bury, M25 0DB

Proposal: Change of use of first floor from residential to offices (B1(a))

Application No: 64767 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Jane Langan
Decision Date: 11/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr O Ajulo Agent: Equilibrium Architects Ltd
Location: 9 Braewood Close, Bury, BL9 7PG

Proposal: Part single storey/part two storey extension at rear with Juliet balcony window

Application No: 64772 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Helen Goldsbrough
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr K & Mrs E Comiskey Agent: Mr Matt Dorrian

Location: 7 Croft Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2SE

Proposal: Single storey side/rear extension

Application No: 64777 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Jennie Townsend
Decision Date: 20/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Fintek Agent: Philip Lambert Architecture
Location: Unit, 1-2 Halter Inn Works, 11 Redisher Croft, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9SA

Proposal: Siting of 2 no. storage containers

Application No: 64782 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Helen Goldsbrough
Decision Date: 07/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: United Utilities (Water) Ltd Agent:

Location: Heaton Park Service Reservoir, Heywood Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2RN

Proposal: Temporary widening of an access off classified highway to allow for construction work in

association with re-lining the eastern half of Heaton Park Impounding Reservoir

Page 3 of 16 Page 123 13/01/2020



Application No: 64788 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Helen Leach

Decision Date: 17/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Environment Agency Agent: Mott MacDonald
Location: Land to south of Warth Industrial Estate, Warth Road, Bury
Proposal: Erection of retaining walls & sheet piled walls between 1m & 3m in height to form a flood

defence between the metrolink bridge and Warth Bridge
Application No: 64793 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho
Decision Date: 20/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr Archibold Walsh Agent: Design Line Huddersfield Ltd.
Location: 12 Hardman Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OHB
Proposal: Proposed step lift to principle elevation and asociated works
Application No: 64794 Application Type: PMBP Case Officer: Mark Kilby

A
Decision Date: 17/12/2019 Decision:  Prior Approval Required and
Granted

Applicant: Mr L Slater Agent: Roman Summer Associates Ltd
Location: Plane Trees Farm, Bradley Fold Road, Ainsworth, Bolton, BL2 5QR
Proposal: Prior approval for a proposed change of use of agricultural building to form 2 no.

dwellinghouses and associated operational development
Application No: 64796 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Mark Kilby
Decision Date: 08/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr Lee Slater Agent: Roman Summer Associates Ltd
Location: Plane Trees Farm, Bradley Fold Road, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL2 5QR
Proposal: Widening and modification of existing access, formalisation of car parking and change of use

of agricultural land to form garden curtilage areas
Application No: 64798 Application Type: LBC Case Officer: Jennie Townsend
Decision Date: 10/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr Asif Saleem Agent: MAHE Architecture
Location: 6-8 Market Place, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9HT
Proposal: Listed building consent for internal alterations to part of first floor to form 2 no. dental

surgeries

Page 4 of 16 Page 124 13/01/2020



Application No: 64805 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Tom Beirne

Decision Date: 16/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Stephen Vincent Agent: Mr N Butterworth

Location: 7 Ringley Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7LD

Proposal: Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) of planning permission 62517 for alteration of front
elevation and roof

Application No: 64812 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Jane Langan

Decision Date: 17/12/2019 Decision:  Refused

Applicant: Mrs Raheela Khan Agent: NK Architects

Location: 128 Sunny Bank Road, Bury, BL9 8LJ

Proposal: Alterations to form patio and raised deck in rear garden and new hard standing at front

Application No: 64819 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Mark Kilby

Decision Date: 07/01/2020 Decision:  Refused

Applicant: Mr Carmelo Bilardi Agent:

Location: 1-3 Chapel Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4AL

Proposal: Retention of 4 no. ventilation ducts/flue at rear

Application No: 64820 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Helen Goldsbrough

Decision Date: 12/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr Tony Clough Agent: MGD

Location: 2 The Fairways, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7BN

Proposal: Single storey front extension

Application No: 64823 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho

Decision Date: 20/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr A Cope Agent: Debtal Architecture Ltd

Location: 14 Castle Hill Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OFR

Proposal: Raising of ridge height of roof/roof extension with dormers at front and rear to form 3 storey
dwelling; First floor extension at side and single storey extension at side/rear and garage
conversion

Page 5 of 16 Page 125 13/01/2020



Application No: 64825 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Helen Goldsbrough

Decision Date: 20/12/2019 Decision:  Split Decision
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Syed Obaid Agent: HSH Enginering Design Service
Location: 65 Sheepfoot Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 ODN
Proposal: Proposal A: Front porch and garage conversion
Proposal B: Hip to gable roof extension, dormer at rear with juliet balcony
Application No: 64829 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Helen Goldsbrough
Decision Date: 12/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr J Lyons Agent: Mr John Hodkinson
Location: 176 Whittingham Drive, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9NY
Proposal: Single storey side and rear extension
Application No: 64830 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Jane Langan
Decision Date: 20/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr A Law Agent: Mr John Hodkinson
Location: 23 Booth Way, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3JL
Proposal: Two storey side extension
Application No: 64831 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Jennie Townsend
Decision Date: 17/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr Chi Cuong Chu Agent: I. Planning Services
Location: 70 Cross Lane, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2RF
Proposal: Change of use from hot food takeaway (Class A5) to dwellinghouse (Class C3): Replacement
single storey rear extension and new windows/door to front elevation
Application No: 64833 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Jane Langan
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr M & Mrs S Imran Agent: HSH Enginering Design Service
Location: 20 Thorp Avenue, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2GW
Proposal: Front porch; Part single/part two storey extensions at side/rear and erection of outbuilding at

rear; Wall/railings to side boundaries at front of property

Page 6 of 16 Page 126 13/01/2020



Application No: 64836 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho

Decision Date: 20/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr N Khan Agent: Mr Stewart Rothwell
Location: 92 South Cross Street, Bury, BL9 ORS

Proposal: Single storey extension at rear

Application No: 64837 Application Type: LBC Case Officer: Mark Kilby
Decision Date: 19/12/2019 Decision:  Split Decision

Applicant: Ei Group PLC Agent: Planning Potential Ltd
Location: Old White Lion, 6 Bolton Street, Bury, BL9 0LQ

Proposal: Listed Building Consent for:

Proposal A: Replacement static illuminated projecting sign; 2 x timber plaques; 2 x amenity
boards; 5 x replacement static illuminated lanterns

Proposal B: 1 x non-illuminated timber fascia panel.

Application No: 64846 Application Type: LDCP Case Officer: Oliver Sear
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Lawful Development

Applicant: IX Wireless Ltd Agent:

Location: Junction of Walshaw Road / Fenton Street, Bury, BL8 1NJ

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed erection of poles up to 15m in height to support

the carrying of fibre internet cables, together with a street cabinet for the housing of electronic
communications apparatus.

Application No: 64848 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Jane Langan
Decision Date: 09/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr G Ellis Agent: William McCall
Location: 117 Bury and Bolton Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4JY
Proposal: Single storey extension at rear; Alterations to windows to side elevation and render to
external elevations
Application No: 64849 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho
Decision Date: 20/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Jason Deach Agent: chris.malkinArchitecture
Location: 24 Canterbury Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OHY
Proposal: Two storey rear extension; Enlarged parking area to front of dwelling

Page 7 of 16 Page 127 13/01/2020



Application No: 64853 Application Type: ADV Case Officer: Mark Kilby

Decision Date: 09/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: ice signs Itd Agent: Sign Chain Ltd

Location: Age UK, Unit C, Park 66 Retail Park, Pilsworth Road, Bury, BL9 8RS

Proposal: 2 No. internally illuminated fascia signs

Application No: 64855 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho
Decision Date: 20/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr Chris Hogg Agent: Conway Architectural Design

Location: 5 Booth Way, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3JL

Proposal: Single storey extension at side and rear with bin store

Application No: 64859 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr & Mrs J McFadian Agent: 27 Projects

Location: 4 Stanley Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8QY

Proposal: Single storey extension at side

Application No: 64860 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Oliver Sear

Decision Date: 10/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr J Prince Agent: Mr D Hislop

Location: 18 Newquay Avenue, Ainsworth, Bolton, BL2 5QQ

Proposal: Single storey side extension

Application No: 64863 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr G Dearlove Agent: Northside Plans Ltd

Location: 12 Westbourne Avenue, Radcliffe, Manchester, M45 7RY

Proposal: Part single storey/part two storey extensions at side

Page 8 of 16 Page 128 13/01/2020



Application No: 64864 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Helen Leach

Decision Date: 09/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr Graham Coffey Agent: Zara Moon Architects

Location: Mums Harris Farm, Watling Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3QR

Proposal: Demolition of existing single/two storey extension, conservatory and porch. Erection of
two/single storey extension at side; conversion of attached barn to additional living
accommodation

Application No: 64868 Application Type: LDCP Case Officer: Oliver Sear

Decision Date: 20/12/2019 Decision:  Lawful Development

Applicant: Mr Vadasz Agent: Mr Clarke

Location: 9 Collins Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3BW

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed redevelopment of existing attic space into an

additional bedroom with access from a newly formed protected stair and corridor and a
dormer window at the rear

Application No: 64872 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Helen Goldsbrough

Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Klusiatis Agent: John Holt Architects Itd

Location: 22 Rollesby Close, Bury, BL8 1EW

Proposal: Single storey side extension; Alterations to garage roof

Application No: 64874 Application Type: LDCP Case Officer: Oliver Sear

Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Lawful Development

Applicant: Ms Jess Thiele Agent: R.A.Fisk and Associates

Location: 266 Parr Lane, Bury, BL9 8LU

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed construction of dormer to rear elevation, addition
of rooflights and removal of rear door and replacement of rear window.

Application No: 64876 Application Type: LDCP Case Officer: Oliver Sear

Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Lawful Development

Applicant: Mr Tim Roddy Agent: Conway Architectural Design

Location: 26 Chapeltown Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1YF

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed - demolish existing conservatory to rear of

detached house. Build new single storey pitched roof extension to rear of dwelling. To form
new shower room and living area.

Page 9 of 16 Page 129 13/01/2020



Application No: 64880 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho

Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr A Khan Agent: Mr S Rothwell

Location: 8 Hunstanton Drive, Bury, BL8 1EG

Proposal: Two storey side and front extensions; Single and two storey rear extension

Application No: 64881 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr N Ashraf Akheter Agent: I. Planning Services
Location: 243 Rochdale Road, Pimhole, Bury, BL9 7BX

Proposal: Single storey rear extension

Application No: 64882 Application Type: NON Case Officer: Helen Leach
Decision Date: 03/01/2020 Decision:  Approve

Applicant: Bellway Homes Ltd (Manchester) Agent:

Location: Land at Mountheath Industrial Estate, George Street, Prestwich, M25 9WB

Proposal: Non-material amendment following grant of planning permission ref. 63324 for Approval of

reserved matters - Erection of 124 no. dwellings including details of appearance, scale,
landscaping and layout pursuant to planning permission 62127:

Substitution of front boundary treatments to Plots 47, 65, 72-73, 83, 94, 103, 108 & 109 1.8m
walls to 1.8m Timber Board & Batten fences

Application No: 64884 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho
Decision Date: 10/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr Compton Agent: Mr Sam Power

Location: 26 Swarbrick Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9TD

Proposal: Single storey rear extension

Application No: 64885 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Jane Langan
Decision Date: 06/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr M Baig Agent: Mr S Rothwell

Location: 11 Hastings Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6UR

Proposal: Twol/single storey extension at side; Two/single storey extension at rear; Front porch

Page 10 of 16 Page 130 13/01/2020



Application No: 64886 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Helen Goldsbrough

Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr Thomas Dunlop Agent: Mr James Scott

Location: 2 The Island, Railway Street, Summerseat, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL9 5QJ

Proposal: Two storey extension at rear

Application No: 64893 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho

Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: B Hellawell Agent: Mr Paul Ormandy

Location: 43 Hillside Crescent, Bury, BL9 6PZ

Proposal: Single storey extension at rear and garage conversion

Application No: 64894 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho

Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mrs C Crossley Agent: Mr Neil Butterworth

Location: 349 Heywood Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2RN

Proposal: Two storey extension at side and single storey extension at rear

Application No: 64895 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Helen Goldsbrough

Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Huw Williams Agent: Mr N Butterworth

Location: 11 Whalley Drive, Bury, BL8 2JZ

Proposal: Single storey detached granny flat in rear garden

Application No: 64897 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Tom Beirne

Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: The Jewel Foundation Agent: MTPC My Town Planning
Consultancy

Location: St Gabriels Playscheme, Bishops Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OHT

Proposal: Placing of a modular building for medical services and re-location of parking provision

Page 11 of 16 Page 131 13/01/2020



Application No: 64898 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Helen Goldsbrough

Decision Date: 06/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr & Mrs W Beswick Agent:
Location: 237A Heywood Old Road, Rochdale, Manchester, M24 4QR
Proposal: Single storey rear extension to form veranda; Attic conversion with rear dormers
Application No: 64899 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Jane Langan
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr & Mrs McGahan Agent: Vision Architectural Consultancy
Ltd
Location: 45 Ennerdale Drive, Bury, BL9 8HY
Proposal: Two storey extension at side and rear
Application No: 64900 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Helen Goldsbrough
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr Cheetham Agent: studioPH Architecture
Location: 6 Barnhill Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9NH
Proposal: Two storey side extension including alterations to existing garage; Single storey rear
extension; Loft conversion with dormer window
Application No: 64904 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho
Decision Date: 10/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr S Rashid Agent: Mr S Rothwell
Location: 199 Parkhills Road, Bury, BL9 9AJ
Proposal: Two storey extension at side; single storey extension at front with porch; single/two storey
extension at rear and widening of driveway
Application No: 64905 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr Wagar Ahmed Agent: I. Planning Services
Location: 47 Parkhills Road, Bury, BL9 9AS
Proposal: Demolition of existing single story garage to be replaced with single storey rear extension;

Rear dormer extension; Addition of window to front elevation

Page 12 of 16 Page 132 13/01/2020



Application No: 64906 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho

Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Ms A Hamilton Agent: Mr S Herd
Location: 7 Muirfield Close, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1PW
Proposal: Erection of single storey side and rear extension and associated external works
Application No: 64907 Application Type: GPDE Case Officer: Mark Kilby
Decision Date: 17/12/2019 Decision:  Prior Approval Not Required -
Extension
Applicant: Mr & Mrs D Vaughan Agent: Artech Design
Location: 23 Woodley Avenue, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1BL
Proposal: Prior notification for proposed single storey rear extension
Application No: 64908 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Helen Goldsbrough
Decision Date: 10/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr A Robinson Agent: Mr Simon Jackson
Location: 145 Turton Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3QA
Proposal: Single storey ground floor utility extension
Application No: 64909 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho
Decision Date: 10/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr Daniel O'Brien Agent: Mr Daniel O'Brien
Location: 73 Milbourne Road, Bury, BL9 6PU
Proposal: Two storey extension st side
Application No: 64910 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Jane Langan
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr Mike Watson Agent: TADW Architects
Location: 267 Heywood Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2QR
Proposal: Two storey extension at side, single storey extension at rear, porch and canopy roof at front

Page 13 of 16 Page 133 13/01/2020



Application No: 64914 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Helen Goldsbrough

Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr Josh Ricketts Agent: RT Design
Location: 872 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 8DW
Proposal: First floor extension at front/side and replacement front porch
Application No: 64916 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Helen Goldsbrough
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr Neil Waldman Agent: IL Bainbridge Ltd
Location: 16 Woodhall Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7QF
Proposal: Single storey extension at front
Application No: 64917 Application Type: GPDE Case Officer: Oliver Sear
Decision Date: 06/01/2020 Decision:  Prior Approval Not Required -
Extension
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Kenyon Agent: Thorp Design Services Ltd
Location: 71 Ajax Drive, Bury, BL9 8EF
Proposal: Prior notification for proposed single storey rear extension
Application No: 64921 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho
Decision Date: 10/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Emma Harrison Agent: Pce Designs LTD
Location: 9 Bowes Close, Bury, BL8 1UA
Proposal: Two storey side extension and front porch
Application No: 64922 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Oliver Sear
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Tony Webber Agent: PPY design Ltd
Location: 23 Ringley Drive, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7LX
Proposal: Single storey side & rear extension

Page 14 of 16 Page 134 13/01/2020



Application No: 64927 Application Type: LDCP Case Officer: Oliver Sear

Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Lawful Development
Applicant: Mr Neil Waldman Agent: IL Bainbridge Ltd
Location: 16 Woodhall Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7QF
Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed rear dormer extension
Application No: 64930 Application Type: NON Case Officer: Jennie Townsend
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: St Modwen Development Limited and Bury Agent: NJL Consulting
Council

Location: Land at Chamberhall, Magdalene Road, Bury, BL9 OES
Proposal: Non-material amendment following grant of planning permission 63185:

To include the low level retaining wall to the landscape zone north west of block D
Application No: 64931 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Helen Goldsbrough
Decision Date: 23/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions
Applicant: Mr Nadeem Younis Agent: Raja Riaz
Location: 117 Prestwich Hills, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9PY
Proposal: Variation of condition no. 3 (materials) of planning permission 63640 for roof extension to

existing bungalow with dormers at front and rear to form two storey dwelling, two storey
extension at side and rear with rear balcony and front porch: Amend - Roof tiles - from red to
dark grey/black; Windows - from white to dark grey black; Doors - from white to dark
grey/black; Dormer cladding - from tiles to dark grey/black cladding to front and cheeks to
dormers; Gutters/fascia/soffits/down pipes - from white to dark grey/black

Application No: 64934 Application Type: LDCE Case Officer: Oliver Sear
Decision Date: 10/01/2020 Decision:  Lawful Development

Applicant: Mr lan Reynolds Agent: Mr John Hodkinson
Location: 396 Rochdale Old Road, Bury, BL9 7TF

Proposal: Dog kennel within rear garden of dwelling.

Application No: 64939 Application Type: NON Case Officer: Jane Langan
Decision Date: 12/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr G Rodriguez Agent:

Location: 32 Mount Pleasant, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2SD

Proposal: Non-material amendment following grant of planning permission 64743 for single storey side

and rear extension:External walls changed from facing brick to concrete block with white self
colour render as existing front elevation

Page 15 of 16 Page 135 13/01/2020



Application No: 64942 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Jane Langan

Decision Date: 10/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr Mark Grumbridge Agent: Summit Conservatory Design Ltd
Location: 9 Brookmoor Road, Prestwich

Proposal: Single storey extension at rear

Application No: 64950 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho
Decision Date: 10/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mrs Catherine Jones Agent: Steven Allcock Consulting
Location: 43 Wellbank Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3HX

Proposal: Single storey side extension with pitched roof over to form storage and dormer window.

Application No: 64951 Application Type: FUL Case Officer: Oliver Sear
Decision Date: 10/01/2020 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Cohen Agent: Thorp Design Services Ltd
Location: 14 Hillsborough Drive, Bury, BL9 8LE

Proposal: Single storey rear extension

Application No: 64957 Application Type: NON Case Officer: Helen Goldsbrough
Decision Date: 12/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr Jeffrey Agent:

Location: 9 Carr Bank Drive, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9DG

Proposal: Non-material amendment following grant of planning permission 63778 for single storey

extension at front, side and rear with raised terrace area at rear and porch at front:
Change to roof. Now features a window in the gable end

Application No: 64966 Application Type: NON Case Officer: Amanda Uhunmwagho
Decision Date: 19/12/2019 Decision:  Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Mr & Mrs D Cainer Agent: Green Square Architecture Ltd
Location: 51 Prestwich Park Road South, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9PF

Proposal: Non-material amendment following grant of planning permission 62390:

Amendment to conditions 2 & 6. Parking area finish amended from resin bound gravel to
tarmac and aco drain added.

Total Number of Applications Decided Under Delegated Powers : 79

Page 16 of 16 Page 136 13/01/2020



Agenda Ite

REPORT FOR NOTING

Bliny,

Agenda
Item 6

DECISION OF:

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

DATE:

21 January 2020

SUBJECT:

PLANNING APPEALS

REPORT FROM:

HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

CONTACT OFFICER:

DAVID MARNO

TYPE OF DECISION:

COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF This paper is within the public domain
INFORMATION/STATUS:
SUMMARY: Planning Appeals:

- Lodged

- Determined ) none

Enforcement Appeals

- Lodged

- Determined ) none
OPTIONS & The Committee is recommended to the note the report

RECOMMENDED OPTION

and appendices

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy
Framework? Yes

Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk

Considerations:

Executive Director of Resources to advise
regarding risk management

Statement by Executive Director N/A
of Resources:
Equality/Diversity implications: No

Considered by Monitoring Officer: | N/A

Page 137




Wards Affected: All listed
Scrutiny Interest: N/A
TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership
Team

Executive

Member/Chair

Ward Members

Partners

Scrutiny Committee

Committee

Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

This is a monthly report to the Committee of the Planning Appeals lodged against
decisions of the authority and against Enforcement Notices served and those that
have been subsequently determined by the Planning Inspectorate.

Attached to the report are the Inspectors Decisions and a verbal report will be
presented to the Committee on the implications of the decisions on the Appeals that

were upheld.
2.0 CONCLUSION

That the item be noted.

List of Background Papers:-

Contact Details:-

David Marno, Head of Development Management
Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation,

3 Knowsley Place ,Bury
Tel: 0161 253 5291

BL9 OEJ]

Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk

Page 138



mailto:d.marno@bury.gov.uk

Planning Appeals Lodged [U:
between 09/12/2019 and 12/01/2020 =N

Application No.: 64719/FUL Appeal lodged: 12/12/2019
Decision level: COM Appeal Type: Written Representations
Recommended Decision: Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Harrington House Estates Ltd.
Location 79 Bury New Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7TEG

Proposal Change of use from existing 6 bed HMO (Class C4) to 8 bed (8 person) house in
multiple occupation (HMO) (Sui Generis)

Application No.: 64720/FUL Appeal lodged: 11/12/2019
Decision level: DEL Appeal Type:
Recommended Decision: Refuse

Applicant: Andrew Industries Ltd
Location Andrew Textile Industries Ltd, Walshaw Road, Bury, BL8 1NG

Proposal Variation of condition no. 17 (affordable housing provision to include vacant building
credit) of planning permission ref. 64128

"Total Number of Appeals Lodged: 2

Page 139



Planning Appeals Decided
between 09/12/2019 and 12/01/2020 @;W
Application No.: 64357/FUL Appeal Decision: Dismissed
Decision level: DEL Date: 13/12/2019

Recommended Decision: Refuse
Applicant: Mrs Lauren Cohen

Appeal type: Written Representations

Location: 408 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1PZ

Proposal: Creation of new vehicular access and driveway

Page 140



' The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 4 December 2019

by Graham Wraight BA(Hons) MSc MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State
Decision date: 13 December 2019

Appeal Ref: APP/T4210/D/19/3237543
408 Bury Old Road, Prestwich M25 1PZ

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

The appeal is made by Mrs Lauren Cohen against the decision of Bury Metropolitan
Borough Council.

The application Ref 64357, dated 25 June 2019, was refused by notice dated

8 August 2019.

The development proposed is a driveway.

Decision

1.

The appeal is dismissed.

Main Issue

2.

The main issue is the effect of the proposed development on highway safety.

Reasons

3.

The proposed driveway would be accessed directly from Bury Old Road, a busy
classified road. Whilst the appellant has made reference to properties in the
vicinity of the site that have driveways, these instances are limited in number
and it is generally uncommon in the surrounding area for individual properties
to take a vehicular access from the main road.

The addition of a driveway in this location would result in an increase in the
number of vehicles entering and exiting the road, to which the Highway
Authority has raised an objection. I share this concern and consider that the
proposed development would lead to conflict with the very frequent traffic
which passes the site. This would result in significant harm to highway safety.

I was able to observe during my site visit that there is parking provision to the
rear of the dwelling. Whilst the appellant contends that this area is not useable
and is regularly blocked, I have no substantive evidence to demonstrate that
this is the case. In any event however, the availability or otherwise of the rear
parking area does not justify an access point onto Bury Old Road that would
cause the degree of harm to highway safety that I have identified.

The appellant has provided additional information in support of the appeal
regarding the size of the front parking area and the ability to turn a vehicle.
These plans do not however appear to have been provided at the planning
application stage and therefore have not had the benefit of comment by the
Highway Authority. However, as I have found the principle of the access point

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 141


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/T4210/D/19/3237543

itself to be unacceptable, it is not necessary for me to consider, in the absence
of comments from the Highway Authority, whether the additional information is
likely to overcome the Council’s second reason for refusal.

The appellant considers that the proposed development is required, that it
would improve the property and would bring benefits to the area. Whilst there
would be some resultant benefits, in particular to the property itself, these do
not outweigh the harm to highway safety that I have identified. A copy of an
approval obtained from the Highway Authority to undertake works to the public
highway has been provided, however this is clear that planning approval is also
required for the proposal.

For these reasons, I conclude that the proposed development would cause
significant harm to highway safety. I have been referred to Saved Policy H2/3
of the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and the Alterations and Extensions
to Residential Properties Supplementary Planning Document 2010, but both
refer only to highway visibility matters. However, the National Planning Policy
Framework (The Framework) outlines sustainable transport as a key planning
objective and within this is a requirement that developments have safe and
suitable access. As I have found that the proposal would have an unacceptable
impact on highway safety, the objectives of The Framework would not be met.

Conclusion

9.

For the reasons given above, I conclude that the appeal should be dismissed.

Graham Wraight

INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 1422


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 17 December 2019
	4 Planning Applications
	Final Index_2_1_1_1.pdf
	Final Index_2_1_1.pdf
	Final Index_2_1.pdf
	Final Index_2.pdf
	Final Index.pdf
	Final Report.pdf
	Viewpoints.pdf
	Photos.pdf
	Plan 1.pdf
	Final Report.pdf
	Viewpoints.pdf
	Photos.pdf
	Plan 1.pdf
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 5.pdf
	Plan 4.pdf
	Final Report.pdf

	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Final Index_2.pdf�
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations




	Final Index_2_1.pdf�
	Final Index_2.pdf
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations



	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Final Index_2.pdf�
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations




	Final Index_2_1.pdf�
	Final Index_2.pdf
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations



	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Final Index_2.pdf�
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations





	Final Index_2_1_1.pdf�
	Final Index_2_1.pdf
	Final Index_2.pdf
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations



	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Final Index_2.pdf�
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations




	Final Index_2_1.pdf�
	Final Index_2.pdf
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations



	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Final Index_2.pdf�
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations




	Final Index_2_1.pdf�
	Final Index_2.pdf
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations



	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Final Index_2.pdf�
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations






	Viewpoints.pdf
	Photos.pdf
	Plan 1.pdf
	Plan 2.pdf
	Plan 3.pdf
	Final Index_2_1_1_1.pdf�
	Final Index_2_1_1.pdf
	Final Index_2_1.pdf
	Final Index_2.pdf
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations



	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Final Index_2.pdf�
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations




	Viewpoints.pdf
	Photos.pdf
	Plan 1.pdf
	Final Index_2_1.pdf�
	Final Index_2.pdf
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations



	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Final Index_2.pdf�
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations




	Aerial Photo 1.pdf
	Aerial Photo 2.pdf
	Viewpoints Sites- 1-4.pdf
	Viewpoints Site 5.pdf
	Photos.pdf
	Overview.pdf
	Plan 1.pdf
	Plan 2.pdf
	Final Index_2_1.pdf�
	Final Index_2.pdf
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations



	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Final Index_2.pdf�
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations





	Plan 3.pdf
	Plan 1.pdf
	Plan 2.pdf
	Plan 3.pdf
	Plan 4.pdf
	Plan 5.pdf
	Plan 1.pdf
	Plan 2.pdf
	Plan 1.pdf
	Plan 2.pdf
	Plan 3.pdf
	Final Index_2_1_1.pdf�
	Final Index_2_1.pdf
	Final Index_2.pdf
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations



	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Final Index_2.pdf�
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations




	Final Index_2_1.pdf�
	Final Index_2.pdf
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations



	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Final Index_2.pdf�
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations




	Final Index_2_1.pdf�
	Final Index_2.pdf
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations



	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Final Index_2.pdf�
	Plan 3.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations


	Plan 2.pdf�
	Sheets
	102 - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plan
	103 - Proposed Second & Roof
	104 - Proposed Elevations






	Viewpoints.pdf
	Photos.pdf
	Plan 1.pdf
	Plan 2.pdf
	Plan 3.pdf

	4a Supplementary agenda
	5 Delegated Decisions
	Agenda Item 5 Delegated Decisions_1.pdf
	TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:
	2.0 CONCLUSION
	List of Background Papers:-None Contact Details:-
	Tel: 0161 253 5291

	delegated decision list 091219-120120-c.pdf�
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Proposal: Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Agent:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Agent:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Decision Date: Applicant:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Agent:
	Application No:
	Proposal: Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Proposal: Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Agent:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Proposal: Application No:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Proposal: Application No:
	Applicant:
	Agent:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Proposal: Application No:
	Application No:
	Proposal: Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Agent:
	Application No:
	Applicant: Location:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Proposal: Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Applicant:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Agent:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Application No:
	Proposal: Application No:
	Agent:
	Proposal:
	Application No:
	Proposal:
	Total Number of Applications Decided Under Delegated Powers : 79


	6 Planning Appeals
	Agenda Item 6 Appeals.pdf
	s 78 appeal lodged 091219-120120.pdf
	s 78 appeals decided 091219-120120.pdf
	3237543 -64537 - 408 Bury New Road, Appeal Decision.pdf


